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NKANDLA LOCAL MUNICIPAL ANNUAL REPORT:  2016/2017 
 

1. LEGAL MANDATE FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE MUNICIPAL ANNUAL REPORTS: 

Section 121 of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA) stipulates that: 
1. Every municipality and every municipal entity must for each financial year prepare an annual report in accordance 

with this chapter. The council of the municipality must within nine months after the end of a financial year compile 

an annual report of the municipality and of any municipal entity under the municipality’s sole or shared control in 

accordance with section 129. 

 
2. The purpose of an annual report is- 

 
a. To provide a record of activities of the municipality or municipal entity during the financial year to which the report 

relates 

b. To provide a report on the performance against the budget of the municipality or municipal entity for that financial 

year 

c. To promote accountability to the local community for the decisions made throughout the year by the municipality 

or municipal entity 

 
3. The annual report of a municipality must include- 

 
a. The annual financial statements of the municipality, and in addition, if section 122 (2) applies, consolidated financial 

statements, as submitted to the Auditor General for audit in terms of section 126 (1) 

b. The Auditor General’s report in terms of section 126 (3) on those financial statements 

c. The annual performance report of the municipality prepared by the municipality in terms of section 46 of the 

Municipal Systems Act 

d. The Auditor General’s audit report in terms of section 45 (b) of the Municipal Systems Act 

e. An assessment by the municipality’s accounting officer of any arrears on municipal taxes and service charges 

f. An assessment by the municipality’s accounting officer of the municipality’s performance against measurable 

performance objectives referred to in section 17 (3) (b) for revenue collection from each revenue source and for 

each vote in the municipality’s approved budget for the relevant financial year 

g. Particulars of any corrective measures taken or to be taken in response to the issues raised in the audit reports 

referred to in paragraphs (b) and (d) 

h. Any explanation that maybe necessary to clarify issues in connection with the financial statements 

i. Any information as determined by the municipality 

j. Any recommendations of the municipality’s audit committee 

k. Any other information as may be prescribed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 

 
CHAPTER 1:  MAYOR’S FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
MAYOR: CLLR AT NTULI 
 

1. Foreword by the Mayor 

A lot has been achieved by our Municipality during 2016/2017 financial year. This is perhaps best mirrored not only 

by visible infrastructure that has been developed around Nkandla town and around in 14 wards but also by changing 

lives of people by social cohesion, providing support to youth in education, providing  skills development and 

upliftment of  both cooperatives and small businesses (SMMES). 

The Municipality has invested significant resources for delivery of range of services to the communities. The 

Municipal finance management act requires the Municipality to use resources effective and efficiently by 

implementing sound financial management and provide service in line with best value principle to meet the needs 

of the communities. The effective performance provides opportunity to demonstrate value for money, the 

achievements of objectives, and that equitable access is provided to appropriate, cost effective and good quality 

service. .  With the supporting structures including the Audit committee ,internal Auditors and a support from COGTA 

we are convinced that we have applied a value for money and redress to our community and we are hopeful that by 

the next financial year, we will be able to once again receive clean audit opinion which is our key objective. 

Performance management has played an important role in accountability because it has provided the bases for 

accessing whether levels of service have achieved, although the performance has been improved but we still need 

to put more support to Heads of Department and cascade the performance to lower level. The draft performance 

framework that will enable the management to conduct the performance assessment to all staff members has been 

concluded. 

I consider that better performance information and reporting can help us understand and address our local 

municipality current and on-going challenges. Providing relevant and understandable performance information will 

contribute towards building a relationship of trust and confidence between the Municipality and our community. 

As a Municipality with the total population of 114416 and unemployment rate of 89% and 99% of those employed 

earn less than R1 600 a month in accordance with the Census 2011.  This indicates that most of the community is 

indigent which attest to relatively minimal rates base and a huge strain on the Municipality’s resources.   
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We have however taken advantage of the Government Progress to accelerate job creation, as a result 120 people 

have been able to get jobs through the Expanded Public Works and Community Works Programs, and this is a minimal 

way in which the municipality contributes to Job Creation as well as Human & Community Development as a Goal of 

the PDGS.1300 houses holds were electrified, beneficiaries who receive the free electricity as a basic service has 

increased from 800 to1235,electricity faults and outages has been dealt with through upgrade of electricity 

infrastructure. Land is our main resource, our key focus was to identify key land pockets and prospective catalytic 

projects to attract investors into the Municipality .and the land for Shopping Centre as well as an industrial park as 

means to create a revenue based collection and improve the local economy has been reserved and developed with 

a number of shops. Despite all the blatant challenges that the Municipality faces including poor sources of revenue 

which results in perpetuated infra-structural back-logs, minimal economic activities, and high poverty and illiteracy 

rates. 

 Staff costs are also an alarming issue in our budget and the Municipality has decided to review job description of all 

post in order to merge those that are interrelated.  

we are confident that with minimal resources we are able to tackle these challenges, manage our finances 

appropriately and account to the community of Nkandla through vigorous public participation meetings and regular 

interaction with our Ward Committees which are the legal structure representing all interest groups within Nkandla.  

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

            Councillor A.T NTULI 
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2. FOREWORD FROM THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER 

The immense task of being in the wheel of a Local Government Institution is to successfully balance good 

governance, efficient administration and sound financial management and public accountability and ensuring the 

involvement of our communities in all the processes of the Municipality.  In terms of the Constitution of the 

Republic of South Africa our developmental duties as local government are to structure and manage the 

administration, and budgeting and planning processes and give priority to the basic needs of the community, and 

to promote the social and economic development of the community; as well as to participate in national and 

provincial development programmes. In planning for the five year term of Councils Office and during our annual 

reviews, we ensured that all our plans per each Key Performance Area of local government are informed by our 

developmental role.   

Our planning and implementation processes involve an extensive engagement with the communities that we 

serve as well as the key stakeholders such as other government institutions and sector departments as well as 

private business to ensure holistic development, as with the minimal rates base and our grant dependency we 

could not advance significantly in meeting community needs while also minimizing the back-logs.  Therefore we 

ensured that our Integrated Development Plan is truly inclusive of all stakeholders that contribute towards the 

development of the municipal area, hence the number of projects within our area are fund by Municipal infra-

structure grant and other Government departments. 

Nkandla Municipality has demonstrated that it practices good governance and prudent financial management in 

the year under review. The immense task at hand now therefore is to maintain the unqualified report that we 

received in the previous year and progress to a Clean Audit Opinion by putting more emphasis on implementing 

the Auditor General’s recommendations and strengthening our internal controls as we were doing in the financial 

year of 2016/17.The fraud prevention strategy was developed and risk assessment was conducted by the risk 

committee that the council has successfully establish to mitigate all the risks that are facing the municipality 

particular at an IT section.  
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3. ASSESSMENT OF ANY ARREAS ON MUNICIPAL TAXES AND SERVICE CHARGES BY THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER  
 
The high levels of unemployment in the municipality’s jurisdiction have impacted negatively on our ability to collect 

outstanding debt. Consequently, an increased number of indigents characterize the municipality revenue base. As a 

result long outstanding debtors have been significantly been impaired. 

 Therefore, this is reflected in the small equitable share allocation because the formula put significant weight on the 

population size. In light of the above the municipality is still exploring ways of funding indigents as the equitable 

share is not enough. 

The aging municipal electricity infrastructure is also impacting negatively on revenue collection as electricity is lost 

in transmission, illegal connections and incomplete billings attributed to the old infrastructure. 

The electricity supply in the Municipality is being supplied by the Municipality and Eskom. 

Our municipal accounts consist of mainly electricity supply, rates, refuse removal and other revenue. Water supply 

and sanitation is the function of the District Municipality. 

To illustrate our point in the slow collection rate our Municipality finds itself, see the billing sample of a month of 

June; 

Table 1: Billing and Actual Collections as at 30 June 2017 

Refuse collection billing for June 2017  

Billing R 808 984.83 

Collection R 472 210.92 

Net-effect R  336 773.91 

Overall 58% 

 

Rates collection billing for June  

Billing R12 263 865.78 

Collection R 11 654 995.28 

Net- effect R 608 870.5 

Overall 95 % 

 

Conventional electricity billing for the month of June  

Billing R6 861 929.13 

Collection R 6 867 166.79 

Net – effect (5 237.66) 

Overall 100% 

 

Receivables/Debtors  
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Electricity R3 092 236.76 

Property Rates R12 286 198.75 

Refuse Removal R 3 242 347.92 

Sundry Debtors R488 122.15 

Total debt R 19 109 034.49 

 

In a bid to alleviate the debt situation, the municipality has embarked on job creation initiatives, particularly EPWP 

and CWP. These initiatives are expected to create job opportunities and the spin off effects will result in the lowering 

of outstanding debt as income sources are created for the impoverished communities. The municipality has also 

tightened debt collection measures to improve debt recovery. The municipality has upgraded its infrastructure and 

is planning to the reintroduction of electricity disconnection for residents owing for any municipal services. 

Therefore, the Municipality expects these measures to improve debt collection going forward 

 

In conclusion I would like to extend my gratitude to the committed and dedicated officials and councillors of Nkandla 

who strive every day to ensure that today is better than yesterday and tomorrow looks much better than today. 
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4.  MUNICIPAL OVERVIEW 

4.1 Municipal Council  

   

 

SPEAKER: Cllr S.O SIBIYA  

Nkandla Municipality has 14 large wards and its council is made of 27 seats. There were two political parties in the 
council; Inkatha Freedom Party and African National Congress. Councillors were serving in different council 
portfolios. The schedule of councillors of Nkandla Local Municipality is as follows:  

NAME & SURNAME WARD CREDENTIALS 

Cllr .T.P Mncube 01 Ward council  

Cllr .Z.M Mbeje 02 Ward council 

Cllr.B.B Dlomo 03 Ward council and EXCO Member 

Cllr. T.F Nxumalo 04 Ward council 

Cllr. P.R Dlamini 05 Ward council 

Cllr. AT. Ntuli 06 Ward council and Mayor 

Cllr.M.N Mthombeni 07 Ward council 

Cllr.T. B Mbuyisa 08 Ward council 

Cllr. L. M. B Msimang 09 Ward council 

Cllr.Philani Jabulani Buthelezi 10 Ward council 

Cllr. B.Z Mncadi-Mpanza 11 EXCO Member 

Cllr.A.S Sikhakhane 12 Ward council 

Cllr. V.S Lushozi 13 Ward council 

Cllr B.S Mbambo 14 Ward council 

Cllr. N.F.J Nzuza 06 Deputy Mayor 

Cllr. S.O Sibiya  02 Speaker 

Cllr.  N.P.N Magubane 10 Chairperson of MPAC 

Cllr. N.P Mahaye 01 PR 

Cllr. N.R Xulu 11 PR 

Cllr. M.B.E Ntombela 03 PR 

Cllr. F.K Magubane 06 PR 

Cllr. D.B Mpungose 05 PR 

Cllr.  S. Buthelezi 11 PR 

Cllr. J.B Ntuli 06 PR 

Cllr. B.B Ndima 09 PR 

Cllr. N.P Zulu  PR 

Cllr.N.W Gasa 05 PR 
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4.2 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 1.   CLLR. A.T NTULI– MAYOR 

2.    CLLR. N.F.J NZUZA - DEPUTY MAYOR 

3.     CLLR. S.O SIBIYA SPEAKER 

4.    CLLR. B.B DLOMO- EXCO MEMBER 

5.   CLLR. - EXCO MEMBER 

6. CLLR B.Z MNCADI- MPANZA - EXCO MEMBER   

4.3 COUNCIL PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES 

 

1. Budget and treasury portfolio Committee 
 

2. Technical service  portfolio Committee 
 

3. Corporate service portfolio Committee 
 

4. Community service  portfolio Committee 
 

5.  Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) 
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5. VISION, MISSION AND OBJECTIVES 
 

5.1 VISION 

To be a high performing rural Municipality driven by continuous improvement of quality of lives for Nkandla citizens 
5.2 MISSION 

Nkandla Municipality renders effective service delivery encompassing nature and heritage to ensure poverty 
alleviation, sustainable economic growth and development 

5.3 STRATEGIC OUTCOMES 

NATIONAL KEY PERFOMANCE 
AREA 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

 

A. Good governance, 
community participation, 
and ward committee 
systems 

 

1. Attain effective and efficient municipal administration 
2. Enhance community participation in governance 
3. Decrease municipal risks through risk management 
4. To ensure efficient and effective internal and external 

communication 
5. Advance and maintain the financial viability of the municipality 
6. To ensure effective and efficient planning, implementation and 

maintenance of municipal infrastructure 

B. Municipal Transformation 
and institutional 
development 

 

1. To improve service delivery and the image of the municipality 
2. Strengthen and improve employment equity in the municipality 
3. Attain effective and efficient municipal administration 
4. Organizational skills development and capacity building 

C. Local economic 
development and social 
development 

1. To improve the quality of life through social infrastructure 
development 

2. To create a conducive environment for socio -economic growth 
3. To promote a safe and healthy environment for the Nkandla 

community 

D. Infrastructure 
development and basic 
service delivery 

1. To improve quality of life through social infrastructure development 
2. To promote safe and healthy environment for the Nkandla 

Community 

E. Financial Viability and 
management 

 

1. Advance and maintain the financial viability of the municipality 
2. Improve the financial performance of the municipality 
3. Optimize budget implementation in the municipality 
4. To improve institutional efficiency through adequate systems and 

effective internal controls 

F. Cross cutting measures 1. To promote a safe and healthy environment for  Nkandla 
community 
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6. POWERS, FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES  
 
In terms of section 84 of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act No. 117 of 1998, the Nkandla 
Municipality has the following powers and functions: 
 

 Integrated Development Planning  
 Solid waste disposal 
 Regulation of passenger transport services 
 The establishment, conduct and control of fresh produce markets and abattoirs 
 The establishment, conduct and control of cemeteries 
 Promotion of local tourism for the area 
 The imposition and collection of taxes, levies and duties as related to the above functions  
 Municipal roads 
 Municipal public works relating to any of the above functions  

 
7. WHO ARE WE? 

Figure: Nkandla Map  

The municipality is in western area of UThungulu District (DC28). It is situated close to the country’s two largest ports, 
lying about 130 kilometres inland from Richards Bay and 250 km north of Durban. Nkandla Town is classified as a 
Rural Service Centre (RSC) and a Provincial Rural Administrative Centre (PRAC), is the only formalized urban area 
located within Nkandla situated approximately 50kilometres south-west of Melmoth and 65kilometres from Eshowe. 
It is isolated from the major economic development corridors: access is via a main tar road from Melmoth, and tar 
road from Eshowe, Kranskop and Nqutu. 
 
The Municipality (KZ 286) consists of a vast rural area when compared to other Municipalities in the District but 

and low percentage of Economic Activity in the area.  

Table 1 below is a table briefly summarizes the demographic profile for the Municipality as per the Statistics South 

Africa (Stats SA) 2011 census. Additional information in this regard will be highlighted under the Analysis Phase of 

the document 
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Table 1: Basic Facts 

BASIC FACTS FIGURES 

2001 2011 

Total Number of 

Population 

32 277 34 442 

Total Number of 

Households 

6189 6252 

Age Profile 

0 - 9 

10 - 19 

20 - 29 

30 - 39 

40 - 49 

50+ 

 

23% 

22% 

19% 

12% 

10% 

14% 

 

24% 

22% 

17% 

12% 

8% 

14% 

Source: Stats SA 2011 Census 

Table 2: Population by gender 

Age Group Male Female Grand Total 

0 - 9 4262 4059 8321 

10 - 19 4062 3682 7744 

20 - 29 3160 2880 6040 

30 - 39 2274 2077 4351 

40 - 49 1375 1574 2949 

50+ 2354 2682 5036 

Grand Total 17486 16956 34442 

Source: Stats SA 2011 Census 

Table3: Nkandla Population by racial group 

Table 3 : Nkandla Population Black 
African 

113923 
  

Coloured 114 
  

Indian or Asian 103 
  

White 167 
  

Other 108 
  

Total 114416   

Source: Stats SA 2011 Census 
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Table 4: Unemployment 

 

Source: Stats SA 2011 Census 

Employment has grown by 1.9% from 2001 to 2011. The growth is not significant enough to put a dent in the high 

rate of poverty experienced by the community. The municipality has embarked on the Community Work 

Programme and the Extended Public Works Programme to try and offset the high levels of unemployment and 

poverty. To date 120 of jobs have created using the two programmes 

Table 5: Income Analysis 

No income 2470 

R 1 - R 4800 1292 

R 4801 - R 9600 2430 

R 9601 - R 19 600 5679 

R 19 601 - R 38 200 6021 

R 38 201 - R 76 400 2344 

R 76 401 - R 153 800 1246 

R 153 801 - R 307 600 601 

R 307 601 - R 614 400 282 

R 614 001 - R 1 228 800 38 

R 1 228 801 - R 2 457 600 27 

R 2 457 601 or more 30 

 
 
 
Table 6: Employment Status  

 

  Employed Unemployed Discouraged work-seeker Other not economically active Total 

  6907 5398 8907 40115 61327 

Working age population  61327 

According to the Stats SA census, over 99% of the population earns less than R1600. This puts a strain on the 

municipal resources because almost the entire population falls within the indigent bracket. Although people have 

jobs, the lack skills prevent them from getting decent wages or salaries.  

 

 

 

Discouraged work-
seeker

14%

Employed
11%

Not economical 
active

9% 

[Unemployment]
65%

Employment status
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8. Traditional Authorities  

The municipality has eighteen (18) traditional authorities, namely: 

Table 7: Traditional Authorities 

TRADITIONAL AUTHORITY INKOSI WARDS 

Chwezi TC Nkosi Sibisi 1 

Kwa- Zondi TC Nkosi Zondi 2 and 3 

Khabela  TC Nkosi Dlomo 3 and 2 

Chunu TC Nkosi Mchunu 2 and 3 

Mpungose TC Nkosi Mpungose 1 and 5 

Ekukhanyeni  T/A Nkosi Khanyile  4 

Kwa -Xulu TC Nkosi Xulu 10 

Godide  TC Nkosi Ntuli 12  

Mahlayizeni TC Inkosi Biyela 6 

Chube TC Nkosi Shezi  11 

Nxamalala Nkosi Zuma 14 

Ezindlozi T/A Nkosi Khanyile 11 and 14 

Mangidini T/A Nkosi Biyela  7 

Magwaza T/A Nkosi Magwaza 13 

Izigqoza T/A Nkosi Zulu  12 

Amaphuthu T/A Nkosi Mbhele 10 

Ngono T/A Nkosi Ntuli 9 

Qhudeni Trust farm  Mdluli (Umholi) 8 

There is a fairly good working relationship between the municipality and Amakhosi. Amakhosi are involved in the 

development of their areas of jurisdiction. The participation of Amakhosi in Council affairs has been formalized. 

Section 81 of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act was used as a guide in formalizing the process. 
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9. KEY CHALLENGES 
Key Challenges 

 

 
 
 

10. SUCCESSES 

Although challenges have been sighted above, which are generally typical of smaller, rural municipality, there are 

successes which may be deemed minimal but a major leap in terms of municipal development, they can be 

summarized as follows: 

 The Implementation of the Community Works Programme which created a number of jobs; 

 The number of households electrified 

 Number of indigent receiving free basic service 

 The road rehabilitation projects to improve accessibility in previously inaccessible areas. 

 

 

 

 

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA CHALLENGES 

Institutional Transformation  Gazzeting of the By-laws  

 Lack of job description and salary levels 

 Lack of upgrade on  IT  

Infrastructure and Services  Aged electricity infrastructure 

 Poor infrastructure maintenance  

 Poor access to infrastructure and services 

Social and Economic Development  High levels of unemployment 

 High levels of poverty 

Good Governance and Democracy  Vastness of most wards prevents 
Councillors from reaching all their 
constituency  

Financial Viability  Lack of revenue 

 Non complience in payment for service 
providers 

 Reliance on grants 

Spatial and Environmental 
Management 

 Invasion  on Municipality land 

 Lack of  upgrade to land-fill site 
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CHAPTER 2:  GOVERNANCE 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

In order to promote accountability to the local community for the decisions made throughout the year by the 

municipality as per Section 121 (2)(c) of the Municipal Finance management Act read in conjunction with the Section 

18(1)(d) of the Municipal Systems Act, the Municipality has to ensure that the relevant governance structures exist 

and are functional.  Both the political and administrative structures of Municipality need to be fully capacitated in 

terms of numbers and of skills. In drafting this Annual Report, the intention is not only to comply with relevant 

legislation but to promote accountability for the decisions that Council undertook in the financial year 2013/14.  

Critical to appropriate decision making are mandatory committees that each Council should establish to ensure that 

the nine characteristics of good governance are adhered to namely: Participation, Rule of Law, Transparency, 

Responsiveness, Consensus Oriented, Equity & Inclusiveness; Effectiveness and efficiency, Accountability as well as 

Sustainability.  The focus of this Chapter is on Governance Structures, Intergovernmental Relations, Public 

Accountability & Participation as well as Corporate Governance. 

2. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES  

2.1 Political Governance 

As indicated above there are twenty seven councillors that constitute Nkandla Local Municipal Council,  
The Municipality is a plenary system with ward committees. 
 There are four portfolio committees appointed by Council. These committees are aligning to the functions of various 
departments of the Municipality; 
 

 Budget & Treasury Portfolio Committee  : Chief Financial Officer  

 Corporate Services Portfolio Committee  : Director: Corporate Services 

 Technical Portfolio Committee   : Director: Technical Services 

 Community Services Portfolio Committee              : Director Community Services 

There are other forums and committees that are operational in the Municipality and those committees and forums 
are the following; 
 
• Local Labour Forum; 
• Integrated Development Plan Representative Forum; 
• Oversight Committee (MPAC) 

 Audit committee 

 Operation Sukuma sakhe(LTT) 
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2. ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURES 

The Organisational Structure was reviewed and adopted by Council at the beginning of the financial year. A revised 
selection, recruitment and appointment policy that seeks to address the imbalances in the employment profile of 
the Municipality has been adopted by Council. There are ninety nine employees in the Municipality. Council approved 
five departments in the Municipality the departments are as follows: 

 Office of the Municipal Manager; 

 Corporate Services; 

 Technical Services; 

  Budget and Treasury Office; and 

 Community Services 

The functions of these Departments are as follows: 
Table 8: Departmental Functions 
DEPARTMENTAL FUNCTIONS 

Department Functions 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 
MANAGER 

The Department is responsible for Municipal Management, billboards and 
display of advertisements in public places; Communications, Municipal 
strategic Planning, compliances, Risk assessment and Performance 
Management, Municipal Finance Management and child care facilities. 

CORPORATE SERVICES Administration: The department is responsible for municipal administration; 
security and cleaning services; human resource management; legal services; 
information technology and council support services. 

BUDGET AND TREASURY 
OFFICE. 

Income: The department is responsible for Revenue Management; debt 
management and internal controls. 
Expenditure: is also responsible for expenditure management; procurement; 
materials; insurance; internal controls and properties management. 

TECHNICAL SERVICES Electricity: The department is responsible for electricity and gas reticulation 
and street lighting. 
Civil services: The department is responsible for air pollution; municipal 
public works; storm water management; cemeteries; funeral parlours, 
cleansing; fence and fences; burial of animals; planning and land use 
management, refuse removal; refuse dump site and solid waste 
management, municipal roads. 

COMMUNITY SERVICES Community Services: The department is responsible for building regulations, 
local tourism, and promotion of local economic development and facilitation 
of libraries 
Protection Services: it is also responsible for firefighting services; noise 
pollution; public places; street trading; traffic and parking; disaster 
management; control of public nuisances; municipal public transport; public 
safety; motor licensing; roadworthy testing; and municipal policing. 
Facilities: local sports facilities; market stalls, municipal parks and recreation 
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3. STAFF COMPONENT 

The Municipality had a compliment of ninety nine staff members inclusive of five Section 57 staff members as well 
as five financial intern staff members included in this statistics, excluding 3 casual workers. During the year three 
staff members resigned. 
Table 20: Staff component per department 

Department No of staff 

Office of the Municipal Manager 12 

Budget and Treasury Office 25 

Corporate Services  19 

Community service 34 

Technical Services  30 

Total 120 

 
Senior Management: 
All Senior Managers are responsible for portfolio committees in their departments.  
 
Table 8: Senior management 

Directorate Responsible  Committee  

Municipal Manager L.S Jili Council and Oversight Committee 

Chief Financial Officer S. Ntombela Budget and Treasury Committee and Budget Committee. 

Director Corporate Services N. P Xulu Corporate Services Committee. 

Director Technical Services N.M Mnyandu Technical Services Committee. 

Director Community Service Vacant Community Service Committee 

 
Employment Equity Development 
The Municipality had developed and approved the employment equity plan in 2013/2014 and this plan is being 
reviewed from time to time. There has been no major improvement in this regard. (See the table below) 
 
Table 9: Employment Equity Development 

Employment Equity Implementation Designation Group Non-Designated Group Women Total 

Senior  Management  5 0 1 5 

Middle Management  12 0 3 12 

 
One hundred percent of the total top management is made up of the designated group while non-designated 
group is zero percent. The middle management is one hundred percent designated group. Seventy five percent of 
the professional staff is made up of the designated group and twenty five percent is the women. This is a slight 
change from the previous year which is in the right direction. See the table below to illustrate figures: 
 
Table 10: Ethnic groups employed by the municipality 

Occupational 
level 

Male Female 

 
Senior 
Middle 
Other Staff 

A C I W A C I W TOTAL 

4 Nil Nil Nil 1 Nil Nil Nil 5 

09 Nil Nil Nil 3 Nil Nil Nil 12 

55 NIL Nil Nil 49 Nil Nil Nil 104 

Total Staff 68 NIL Nil Nil 52 Nil Nil Nil 120 
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4. INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

To ensure co-operative governance and to implement wall to wall development, this municipality participated in the 

following IGR Forum meetings that sat at District Level, wherein matters that were cross-boundary were discussed 

and relevant sector departments invited to give inputs on other technical matters: 

 The Mayors Forum 

 The Municipal Manager’s Forum 

 The Planning Forum 

 The Infra-structure Development Forum 

 The LED Forum 

 The Co-operate Services Forum 

 Financial Management Forum 

 Performance  management advisory committee 

The Municipality also participates in other structures as the Forum of Municipalities and Members of the Executive 

Councils, the Speaker’s Forum in Legislature and the Premier’s Monitoring & Evaluation Committee.  Participation in 

these committees ensures that planning if undertaken in line with National, Provincial & District Priorities and key 

strategic documents. 

           5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

5.1 Risk Management 

In the year 2016/17 the top five risks as per the risk register are: 

1.       None existence of Municipal By laws 

2.       Failure to attract investors 

3.       Inadequate registry and records management. 

4.       Failure to collect debt 

5.       Reliance on consultancy 
 
In trying to mitigating these risks, the following actions were undertaken: 
1. Cogta was requested to support the review of the Municipal By-laws, once completed they would be public 

engagements in the following financial and gazetting; 
2. The LED & Tourism Plan will be reviewed,  
3. Policies were reviewed in order to suit changing environments. 
4. Action plan on records management and establishment of records management system has been developed 
5. The municipality is currently developing revenue enhancement strategy 
6. The policy in use of consultancy was  developed in 2015/2016 
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5.2 Anti-fraud &Corruption Strategy 
This Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy and Fraud Prevention Plan has been developed and adopted by council. 
The plan complements the National Anti-Corruption Strategy of the country and supplements both the Public 
Service Anti-Corruption Strategy and the Local Government Anti-Corruption Strategy. 

The draft policy also gives effect to the various legislative instruments relating to fraud and corruption. 

In addition, the Policy provides guidelines as to how to respond should instances of fraud and corruption be 
identified.  

A. ACTIONS CONSTITUTING FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION MANIFESTS ITSELF IN A NUMBER OF WAYS AND VARYING DEGREES OF INTENSITY.  

These include, but are not limited to: 

 unauthorised private use of municipal assets, including vehicles; 

 falsifying travel and subsistence claims; 

 conspiring unfairly with others to obtain a tender; 

 disclosing proprietary information relating to a tender to outside parties; 

 accepting inappropriate gifts from suppliers; 

 employing family members or close friends;   

 operating a private business in working hours;  

 stealing equipment or supplies from work;  

 accepting bribes or favours to process requests; 

 accepting bribes or favours for turning a blind eye to a service provider who does not provide an appropriate 
service;  

 submitting or processing false invoices from contractors or other service providers; 

 misappropriating fees received from customers, and avoiding detection by not issuing receipts to those 
customers; 

 misappropriation of Municipal funds; 

 falsifying accounting records or documents 

 falsifying consumer debtors accounts or amending such accounts without authority; 

 Theft. 

B. STATEMENT OF ATTITUDE TO FRAUD 

Fraud represents a significant potential risk to the Municipality’s assets and reputation.   

The Municipality is committed to protecting its funds and other assets 

It is in the draft policy of the Municipality that fraud, corruption, maladministration or any other dishonest activities 
of a similar nature will not be tolerated. Such activities will be investigated, where required, and actions instituted 
against those found responsible. Such actions may include the laying of criminal charges, civil and administrative 
actions and the institution of recoveries where applicable. 

This draft Policy includes prevention, detection, response and investigative strategies. 
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5.3 Supply Chain Management 
Council adopted a Supply Chain Management Policy which covers all procurement processes and the various 
committees that have to be established to ensure transparency in supply chain.  The following bid committees were 
established in 2013/14 with members as follows: 

A. Bid Adjudication Committee 
B. Bid Specification Committee 
C. Bid Evaluation Committee 

 
A. ADJUDICATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 

Mr S Ntombela                  (Chairperson) 

Mr N.M Mnyandu   (Vice Chairperson) 

              Mrs N.P Xulu      Secretary  

B. SPECIFICATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 

Ms N.C Ngema                    Chairperson 

  Mr M Shezi    Vice Chairperson 

Ms L. Mthombeni    Secretary 

C. EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 

Mr J.M Nkosi     Chairperson 

Mr N. Sikhakhane   Vice Chairperson 

Ms L.S Buthelezi                  Member 

Mr  J.M Sibiya    Member and secretaries 

5.4 Public Satisfaction with Municipal Services 

Although no customer satisfaction survey was undertaken to determine the level of satisfaction with Municipal 

Services, there is a suggestion box that was provided at the rates to enable the community to comment on issues of 

service and service delivery.  Also during the public participation meetings a record is taken on matters that require 

urgent attention.  Key matters that were raised included: 

 Rehabilitation of Road Infra-structure and storm water drainage system; 

 Electricity outages 

 New access roads; 

 Adequate Billing. 

All the raised matters then became the basis of the Performance Score-card for the following financial year within 

the respective Key Performance Areas. 
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5.5 Municipal Oversight Committees 

A. The Audit Committee 

Nkandla Local Municipality has an Audit Committee as prescribed Section (166) of the Municipal Finance 
Management Act 56 of 2003.  The Audit Committee serves the purpose of being an independent advisory body to 
the Council, the Political Office Bearers and the Accounting Officer thereby assisting Council in its oversight role.    
 
Membership of the Audit Committee  
There are three (3) members of the Audit Committee and one member resigned, namely:- 

 Mr G.S. Majola   (Chairperson)  

 Ms N. Mchunu    Member 

 Dr B.V Thabede         Member 

 Mr  S Kunene     Member 
 

The Committee sat 4 times during the financial year and the report is attached to this report on the observations of 
the Audit Committee. 
 
B.  Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) 

Functions and terms of reference of the committee 

The main purpose of the MPAC is to exercise oversight over the executive functionaries of council and to ensure 

good governance in the municipality. This will include oversight over municipal entities. In order for the MPAC to 

fulfil this oversight role, it needs to be provided with the necessary information and documentation to interrogate 

the actions of the executive. 

 

Members of MPAC are: 

Cllr N.P.N Magubane    Chairperson  IFP 

Cllr L.MB Msimango   Member   IFP 

Cllr BZ Mncadi Mpanza                 Member  ANC 

Cllr T.P Mncube                  Member   IFP 

Cllr T.F Nxumalo                  Member    IFP 

Cllr B.B   Ndima                          Member   ANC 

 

All political parties within Council are represented in the MPAC.  8 meetings were held and an overall oversight report 

is attached to this report as an annexure. 
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CHAPTER 3:  SERVICE DELIVERY AND ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
 Introduction and Overview 

 
1. SUMMARY 

 
The annual  performance report for 2016/2017 Municipality financial year for the period starting from 01 July 2016  

to 30 June 2017 including an assessment results emanating from the targets set on the 2016/2017 Integrated 

Development Plan (IDP), 2016/2017 Service Delivery Budget and Implementation plan (SDBIP). The municipal has 

been measured and evaluated based on the following six key performance areas:  

 Institutional development, capacity and transformation, 

 Financial management and viability, 

 Socio economic development, 

 Infrastructural Development, and 

 Democracy and good governance. 

 Cross cutting interventions 

2.  BACKGROUND 

 
Section 41 (1) (a) of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 states that: 

 

a) The Municipality must set appropriate key performance indicator as a yardstick for measuring performance 

including outcomes and impact, with regard to the Municipality development priorities and objectives set out in 

its Integrated Development Plan. 

 

b) Takes steps to improve performance with regards to those development priorities and objectives where 

performance target are not met. A comparison of the performance with the targets set and performance for the 

last previous financial year 

 

c) Report to council, other Political structures, Municipality staff and public 

    Section 45(1) the results of the performance must be measured and audited as part of Municipality      

    Internal Auditing Processes and annually by the Auditor general.  

 

Section 72(1) (a) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) act 56 of 2003 states that the accounting 

officer of a Municipality must by 25 January of each year assess performance of the Municipality during the first 

half of the financial year, taking in to account the Municipality Service Delivery performance during the first half of 

the financial year and the service delivery targets and performance indicators set in the delivery and budget 

implementation plan. 
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3. Performance Management Processes and Compliances 

 

The Municipality has considered the above legislations to determine the level of compliance to the prescripts 

indicated and sighted the following 

 
4.1 Organizational Performance Management 

 

 The targets that were set on the Municipal IDP and SDBIP has been taken in to consideration, weighted and 

evaluated 

 The key performance areas that were used were in accordance with the legislation and six National KPA has 

taken in to consideration as per (organizational Performance Management starter pack Model September 

2004) and National treasury circular no 13.     

 Steps to be taken to the targets not met were taken in to consideration and the action plan as a monitoring 

tool has been develop to monitor the implementation of those targets. 

 

4.2   Individual Performance Management 
 

 The Generic Performance Plans in the form of the SDBIP have been reviewed in quarter three and the 

Personal Development Plans, which spells out areas of personal development as per the guidelines for 

section 54/56 employees have been taken in to consideration, and the individual competencies as per the 

performance Regulations in the Notice no 805 published on 01 August 2006 and local Governance 

regulations on appointment and conditions of employment of senior Managers ,Reg 21 of 17 January 2015 

were considered.   

 The Individual performance has been conducted during the mid-year   

4.  PERFOMANCE REPORTING PROCESS 
 
The municipal performance and individual performance is monitored and reports are submitted on a regular bases. 

 

 The individual and organizational monthly operational reports are submitted to MANCO within 1 week after 

the end of each calendar month. 

 Quarterly Departmental and organizational performance reports are submitted for evaluation and 

verification to MANCO, Internal Auditors, and Audit Committee and submitted to council for approval. 

 

 This report includes highlights from the key performance measures included in the IDP 2016/2017. These 

priority measures constitute the Municipal Scorecard for 2016/2017. 

 Performance Monitoring underpins the Municipality’s IDP in terms of reviewing progress regularly in 

achieving our priorities and delivering value for money. Early investigation of variances enables remedial 

action to be taken where appropriate. 
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4. Good Governance and Public Participation 
 

The Municipality has been able to develop the following: 

 The standard operating procedures and delegations. 

 Operational Ward committees, public participation and transparency. 

4.1  A community consultation and participation 

Public participation strategy 
 
The Municipality has reviewed the public participation strategy and was approved by council to be effective in year 
2017/2018. 
 
9.2 THE CURRENT CORE MECHANISMS FOR COMMUNITY CONSULTATION IN NKANDLA MUNICIPALITY 
 
OPERATIONAL WARD COMMITTEES 
 
The ward committee mechanism identified as primary vehicle utilized to drive community participation by our 
municipality. This mechanism is utilized in order to encourage and improve community involvement in planning 
and  performance management of the Municipality. As it gazetted that all municipality must establish ward 
committee policy guided by the COGTA guidelines. The ward committee establishment policy was reviewed and 
adopted by the council on 29 September 2016. Ward committee members were then established in all 14 wards, 
with the total of 140 ward committee members which get an out of pocket allowance.COGTA conducted an 
orientation for the ward committee members on 30 November2016. 
All wards are functional as they hold their monthly meetings to discuss various issues including the IDP, Budget and 
Annual report. 
 
Community based plans (CBP)  
 
Community Based Planning is a form of participatory planning which has been designed to promote community 
participation. CBP provides municipalities with the means to strengthen the participatory aspects of their IDP giving 
effect to the requirements of the White Paper and the Systems Act CBP promoting ward level plans & community 
action. 
 
Community based plans have been developed in all 14 wards by community members ward community members, 
CDW’s and councilors through the public participation unit. The community has given the chance to identify their 
needs and prioritize them through the CBP for their inclusion in the draft IDP. 
 
Ward Committees 
 
The community was consulted through various public participation meetings in all 14 wards. Traditional Leadership 
and community members were given a report on the projects and programmes that had been done in their wards 
by the Municipality in the previous 5 year IDP. The Community was also given a chance to outline their needs for 
the drafting of the Integrated Development Plan. After the draft IDP had been submitted to COGTA it was made 
available to the community for comments. The municipality held various meetings with Ward committees and war 
rooms to get comments on the draft IDP before finalizing the 2017/2022 IDP. 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT WORKERS (CDWs) 
 
The CDWs programme of government which was introduced to bring government closer to the people.  CDWs are 
working close with our Municipality and they provide assistance in encouraging the communities to participate in 
the affairs of local government and to assist in making the community award of service delivery initiatives and 
implementation. 
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OPERATION SUKUMA SAKHE 
 
This programme was initiated in the Province to address the provincial priority of the “War on Poverty”. Structures 
were established at the ward level to assist in integration of services to provide comprehensive, integrated and 
transversal services to communities through effective and efficient partnerships. 
 
The Operation Sukuma Sakhe programe in our Municipality has rebuild the fabric of society by promoted human 
values, fighting poverty, crime, diseases, deprivation and social ills, ensuring moral regeneration, by working together 
through effective partnerships.  
The partnership in our Municipality  include civil society, development partners, communities and government 
departments, to  provide a comprehensive integrated service package to communities. 
All structures for operation Sukuma sakhe has been reviewed in line with current council.  
 
The 1ST LTT (Local Task Team) meetings sit on the 28th of February 2017 after the local government elections; the 
reason is that we were in a process of forming new structures i.e. war rooms at ward level. 
 
 The war rooms are fully functional in all 14 wards  i.e. ward 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13 & 14. I.e. 100% complete. 
The reports are received from the war rooms on regular base to LTT  .  
  The construction of Sukuma Sakhe housing project is in progress as at 05 September 2016: 
 

 Awarded   447 

 Approved  444 
 
Early Childhood Development 
  
We have managed to train 26 ECD practitioners 15 have completed basic ECD courses they are waiting for their 
certificates and 11 of them missed some modules, they are requested to complete their courses so that they 
receive the certificates. 15 ECD practitioners are busy doing ECD level 4 at TREE Durban, funded by Helwel. 6 ECD 
practitioners graduated at the end of December, they were doing ECD level 4. 
 

.Senior Citizen  
We are in the process of establishing the senior citizen’s forum at ward level. The following wards have senior 
citizen’s forums:-Ward 1,3,10 and 13. 
 No program at the moment, we are intended to meet with them in the next financial year to develop their plan 
of action.  

 
 Disability 
 
We are in a progress of establishing disability forum, the following ward s have disability forums ward 1, 3, 10 and 
13 and After we have completed at ward level, we will then form the Nkandla disability forum at Local level. 
 
No program at the moment, we are intended to meet with the disability forum in the next financial year to develop 
the disability plan of action. 
 
HIV & AIDS 

 
Nkandla Municipality managed to restructure our HIV and AIDS coordinating structures at ward level and at Local. 
We managed to establish 14 WAC (Ward Aids Council) and 1 LAC (Local Aids Council) as required.  These Councils are 
required serve for five years. WACs & LAC are required to sit on Monthly bases.  
In terms of HIV/AIDS we have to review and implement HIV/AIDS Strategy to address this pandemic. We will review 
our strategy after the Province had reviewed their strategy because we are required to align the two strategies.  
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Youth  
 
A number of youth are eager for skills development as the means to get jobs. We need to hold youth summit by the 
1st quarter to continuously address the issues skills development for youth and come out with youth policy for 
Nkandla Municipality. As the municipality we have manage to do some skills development programmes. There are 
96 youth who receive bursaries from the municipality’s budget for 2016/17 financial year and 15 funded by service 
provide   to further their studies. 59 Youth from different wards were trained on Environmental management in the 
program funded by LGSETA via Mfolozi FET.120 Youth from different wards trained on Public administration in the 
program funded by Public sector Education & Training Authority (POETA), the list of beneficiaries attached.  
 
Gender  
 
There are a number of cases reported to police station as from April to July  
2016; we will report by the next quarter the cases from September to March 2017. Gender cases are as follows:  
 
 

Cases  
 April - June 2016 September 2016 Total  

 Number of gender cases reported to the police 
resulting into conviction 

14 38 52 

Number of gender cases reported to the police  32 25 57 

Number gender based cases reported to the  
13 7 20 

 
 The municipality is required address the above situation by organizing gender based awareness programmes at ward 
level to ensure that the number of gender cases decrease. The above is planned.  
 
THE IDP PROCESS 
 
The Municipal Systems Act (MSA) states that the IDP is the principal strategic planning instrument which guides 
and informs all planning and development, and all decisions with regard to planning, management and 
development in the municipality and ultimately it binds the municipality in the exercise of its executive authority. 
It is also required by legislation that a municipal council adopt a process to guide the planning, drafting and 
adoption of its IDP. This process plan is required to include:  

 a programme specifying time-frames for the different steps; 

  outline mechanisms, processes and procedures for consultation of the community, organs of state, 

traditional authorities and role-players; 

 identify all plans and planning requirements binding on the municipality 

 be consistent with any other matters prescribed by legislation. 

 

9.3 IMPROVING COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT IN PMS 

 With the vast plethora of community structures and proliferation of structures and mechanisms currently involving 
community participation in municipalities, it is proposed that the legislated process of the IDP be utilised as the 
mechanism to consult the community on the development of municipal targets and key performance indicators  
and that the ward committee as a mandatory established structure be utilised to regularly report to the community 
on the achievement of set targets as per the IDP. 
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IDP 
 
The White Paper on Local Government, March 1998 states as follows: “Integrated development planning, budgeting 
and performance management are powerful tools which can assist municipalities to develop an integrated 
perspective on the development in their area. 
 
Chapter 6 of the Municipal Systems Act speaks about this integrated system which calls for municipalities to 
implement performance management systems which are in line with the priorities, objectives, indicators and targets 
contained in the IDP.   It is through the performance management process that a municipality will be able to measure 
whether it has achieved its developmental objectives through an integrated planning and implementation process. 
 
The MFMA requires municipalities to have a Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) to be based 
on specific targets and performance indicators derived from the IDP, thus linking the IDP, the performance 
management system and the budget. 
 
Performance management holistically should be the process whereby municipalities set their priorities through the 
performance management system as per the IDP, conduct their business as per the SDBIP and relate to the 
community they serve through community input and public participation.   This calls for the IDP process and the 
performance management process to be seamlessly integrated. 
 
IDP Rep Forum     

The IDP Rep Forum is consulted by councilors, traditional leadership, government departments, NGO’s, NPO’s, 

private Sector and various other groups in the community. 

The IDP Rep Forum meeting were held quarterly during the drafting and compilation of the IDP municipality and 

various government departments outlined their plans for the 2017/2018 financial year. 

Adoption of 2017/2022 IDP  

The 2017/ 2018 Draft IDP was tabled to council on 23 March 2017. The Draft IDP was adopted by council then 

submitted by COGTA on 24 March 2017. A notice was put in the newspaper that the Draft IDP/Budget and Annual 

report were available at Traditional Authorities, Libraries and the website for public comments. 

The 2017/ 2022 IDP was tabled to council on 27 June 2017 after considering the public comments. The IDP was 

adopted by council then submitted by COGTA on 07 July 2017. 

IDP Steering Committee 

The IDP Steering Committee is constituted by Manco members where IDP matters are discussed as items as and 

when the need arises. 

Community Consultation / Public Participation 

Public participation plays a pivotal role in the development of the IDP as it is legislative requirement that the 

community is consulted for developments within the Municipality. The community is consulted using the Community 

Participation Strategy which was reviewed and adopted by council on the 27 June 2017. 

 

 The overall score for the KPA is 79% for the third quarter for 2016/2017, UP by 11% from 2016/2017 mid-

year report which was 68%.  
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5.  Institutional transformation  

4. GOVERNANCE  

In order to promote accountability to the local community for the decisions made throughout the year by the 
municipality as per Section 121 (2)(c) of the Municipal Finance management Act read in conjunction with the 
Section 18(1)(d) of the Municipal Systems Act, the department has to ensure that the relevant governance 
structures exist and are functional.  
 

Political Governance 
As indicated above there are twenty seven councillors that constitute Nkandla Local Municipal Council,  
The Municipality is a plenary system with ward committees. 
 
 There are four portfolio committees appointed by Council. These committees are aligning to the functions 
of various departments of the Municipality; 
• Budget & Treasury Portfolio Committee  : Chief Financial Officer  
• Corporate Services Portfolio Committee  : Director: Corporate Services 
• Technical Portfolio Committee   : Director: Technical Services 
• Community Services Portfolio Committee              : Director Community Services 
 
There are other forums and committees that are operational in the Municipality and those committees and 
forums are the following; 
• Local Labour Forum; 
• Integrated Development Plan Representative Forum; 
• Oversight Committee (MPAC) 
• Audit committee 
• Operation Sukuma sakhe(LTT) 

 ICT Steering Committee 

 Anti-fraud and anti-corruption committees 

 Risk committees 
 
a) LABOUR MATTERS 

APPOINTMENTS TEMINATIONS PENDING CASES RESOLVED CASES CASES REFERED TO 
BARGAINING COUNCIL 

5             1 
 

1 1 0 

 
4.2 ADMINISTRATION/ COMMITTEES 

The committees unit is responsible for the administration of the sitting of committees of the Council as well as the 
compilation of the agendas. 

COMMITTEE NUMBER OF PLANNED MEETINGS NUMBER           OF MEETINGS HELD 

Council 1 per Quarter 3 &5 Special meeting 

ExCo 3 Per Quarter 7 

Finance 3 Per Quarter 7 

Technical 3 Per Quarter 5 

Corporate 3 Per Quarter 6 

Community 3 Per Quarter 4 

MPAC 1 Per Quarter 4 

 
 

 The overall score for the KPA is 63% for 2016/2017 annual, down by 15% from 2015/2016 annual report which 

was 78. %.  
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LED, CULTURE AND TOURISM 

1. BACKGROUND  

 Tourism and Entrepreneurship Careers Expo Meeting, District Arts and Culture meeting, Consultation Meeting 

(SMME), Arts and Culture Forums selection, Community Meeting (Bangamanzi Area Ward 09), Community Meeting 

(Malunga area), SMME workshop /Training programme, Tourism Expo Meeting, District Arts and Culture Forum. , 

Community Meeting (Malunga area), Operation siyaya emhlangeni plenary meeting, Nkandla Arts and Culture 

Forums meeting, District CTA/CTO meeting, Nkandla CTO meeting, District arts and Culture workshop, Launch of 

Culture Thursday and Africa day build-up event, Promotion of culture Thursday at Mthiyaqwa High school, Business 

licence workshop (Mhlathuze Local Municipality), Business licence workshop (Nkandla Council Chamber) ,Informal 

traders permit cards, Nkandla May Rural Horse Riding Event (Business Trading Permit Cards, Tourism and 

Accommodation Indaba, The Pan- African Health Tourism Congress, King Cetshwayo District Heritage Summit, 

International Festival of Zulu Music and Cultural Heritage, District Economic Development Forum, Plenary Meeting 

for Operation Siyaya Emhlangeni, Reed Dance, King Cetshwayo District Community Dialogue and Youth in Arts 

Campaign 

                 SMME 

                  Local Economic Development & Tourism Section has a responsibility in empowering local SMMEs with skills and 

without skills. The programme was aimed at empowering SMMEs and also motivating them onto how to handle 

their money and make profit and to encourage them to be involved into co-operatives and also it was to introduce 

to them the co-operative bank of which they were encourage to take part in or so to say to have their shares in the 

bank so that it will be easy for them to grow and lend money into that bank.   

Local Economic Development & Tourism Unit has a Skills Development Programme for SMMEs as one of the 

programmes aimed at empowering young entrepreneurs. The consultation programme benefited the SMMEs living 

within the Nkandla Municipal area of jurisdiction from ward 1 to ward 14. 

Arts and Culture Forums selection. 

Introduction 

The department of Arts, Culture & Tourism working with the Municipalities is implementing a number of programmes 

and projects towards the development and promotion of arts & culture in the Province.   

That is the reason Nkandla Local Municipality will establish forums at a local level that will act as intermediary 

between the community and the District and Province. 
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Purpose 

 It seeks to bring together all key stakeholders such that they speak in one voice on arts & culture matters. 

 Forums will be established at local level with an aim of providing knowledge to arts & craft activists and 

ensure participation is done at all levels. 

 To identify gaps in the arts & culture sector.   

 To communicate with Department of arts, culture & tourism on behalf of artists and culture 

activists/practitioners. 

Roles, Responsibilities and Functions 

The arts & culture forums shall: 

 Serve as a channel between Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism, Nkandla Municipality (LED Office) and 

the arts and culture community. 

 Represent artists and culture activists at Local, District and Provincial Level, in any information sharing 

sessions or in any activities assigned by the Municipality and the Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism. 

 Assist Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism with sending information regarding: 

 KwaZulu-Natal Arts & Culture Council grants application forms  

 Any other relevant information 

 Assist the public who are unable to complete the application form. 

 Assist Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism with compiling and updating performing   arts and visual arts 

& crafts database. 

 Represent artists and culture activists at the relevant meetings. 

 Liaise with Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism on behalf of artists and culture activists. 

 Work with existing relevant structures on common issues pertaining to the promotion of arts & culture. 

The LED unit together with the office of the Municipal Manager attended a community where they ought to explain 

to the community of Bangamanzi about the municipal sequencers under Youth and also LED.  

Programmes for youth and LED that were deliberated were: 

 Drivers licence 

 Mayoral study assistance 

 India scholarship  

 Imfolozi Tvet 

 School debates 

 Co-Operatives 
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 SMME’S 

 Marathons 

 Mayoral Cup 

The community aided a lot on the above programmes since they were not aware of what is being premeditated for 

them or the things that can service them in order to take care of themselves and their relatives.                                                           

 LED COMPAIGNS 

The campaign is about the following items: 

 Issue of crime in ward 3 

 Poverty 

 Access road 

 Job opportunities 

 Water crises  

 The issue of HIV and AIDS 

The campaign was reported to the office and the response was the issue of budget and that they will come up 

with an answer after budget review.  

SMME WORKSHOP /TRAINING PROGRAMME 

Introduction 

The LED unit together with the SMMES attended a workshop/ training programme that took place on the 14-16 0f 

February 2017 at uMhlathuze Local Municipality. The workshop was about training SMMES to bake bread, cakes, 

rolls and constructing pizza. They were also encouraged to open their own businesses of baking so that they will sell 

their product to the local community and benefit as co-operatives. Below are the pictures of the cooperatives baking 

during the training:                        
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3.9 DISTRICT ARTS AND CULTURE FORUM. 

The department of Arts, Culture & Tourism working with the Local Municipalities attended district arts and culture 

forum elections that took place on the 23rd of February 2017. The arts and culture forum structure was elected and 

the following are the members that were elected as the part of the arts and culture forum: 

3.9.1 Roles, Responsibilities and Functions 

The arts and culture forum that was selected shall do the following: 

 Serve as a channel between Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism, Nkandla Municipality (LED Office), King 

Cetshwayo District and the arts and culture community. 

 Represent artists and culture activists at Local, District and Provincial Level, in any information sharing 

sessions or in any activities assigned by the Municipality and the Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism. 

 Assist Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism with sending information regarding: 

 KwaZulu-Natal Arts & Culture Council grants application forms  

 Any other relevant information 

 Assist the public who are unable to complete the application form. 

 Assist Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism with compiling and updating performing   arts and visual arts 

& crafts database. 

 Represent artists and culture activists at the relevant meetings. 

 Liaise with Department of Arts, Culture & Tourism on behalf of artists and culture activists. 

 Work with existing relevant structures on common issues pertaining to the promotion of arts & culture. 

WOMEN IN ARTS AND CULTURE EMPOWERMENT SESSION 

The led unit attended a workshop at Mlalazi Local Municipality on the 16th of March 2017. The workshop was about 

endowing women in arts and cultures especially those who are part of the Zulu reed dance (umkhosi womhlanga). 

The workshop was a success since most of the issues that were outlined encouraged them as women’s. They were 

also urged to stand up for themselves as women and also to take part in in businesses such as cooperative, and many 

more so that they will benefit at women 
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3.12 NKANDLA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY ARTS AND CULTURE FORUM  

Nkandla Municipality has established the Arts and Culture forum and the purpose of establishing arts and culture 

forums in the local municipality wards is because the Municipality with arts and culture need to work hand in hand 

to make sure that that arts is promoted in all wards. 

NKANDLA INFORMAL CHAMBER 

Number of meetings has been held with Nkandla informal chamber in order to advise them with business 

opportunities, creating a data base of all Nkandla traders, introducing the business licences, around Nkandla, 

establishing the policy that will be gazetted in order to protect Nkandla town against the invaders. 

 
4.3 OPERATION SIYAYA EMHLANGENI PLENARY MEETING 

 
Tourism unit had successfully organised the operation siyaya emhlangeni and also sent a number of maidens to an 
annual event of uMhlanga that took place Enyokeni KwaNongoma. 
 

 

District Community Tourism  

Nkandla Municipality as part IGR participate in the District community tourism in order to align district programs and 

local municipality .The structures is meant  formalised tourism programs and the  representatives are from all local 

municipality, tour guides, EDTEA and other bodies such as Liquor Licence Board, KZN Wildlife and Sharks Board. 

 
LAUNCH OF CULTURE THURSDAY AND AFRICA DAY BUILD-UP EVENT 
 
The LED unit joined cultural launch at University of Zululand.The purpose of the event was to showcase African 

culture so to unite people as Africans. The other purpose was to encourage African people to go back to their roots 

and also to transform their minds as to be  able to accept cultural diversity 
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The program was also launched at Mthiyaqwa High School .The learners were thought about National symbols 

including the South African flag, National anthem, South African court of arm, South African constitution 

 
 
 BUSINESS LICENCE REGISTRATIONS 

 
The registration of business that are operating under Nkandla Municipality area has started and a number of 
business has been registered and the registration campaign is taking place on regular basis conducted by the LED 
unit .The registered business data base is available . 

DISTRICT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FORUM 

The purpose of the forum is to present LED programs that each municipality have. The following are district 

programs: 

 The next billionaire- they support SMMES, Support BnB’s, Co-operatives.  

 Co-op support- they support SMME’S with baking stoves. 

 Artisan Development- partnership with DAC, these people will be trained to be entrepreneurs and they will 

also identify markets for them.  

 They identify farmers to be supported. 
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LIST OF ALL OUR FACILITIES 

 list of all our Municipality facilities : 
 

OFFICES COMMUNITY 
SERVICE CENRE 

SMME PARK PARKS TAXI RANK SPORTS FIELDS HALLS MARKET STALLS 

Main Offices Lindela MPCC SMME Park 
Phase  

Recreational 
Park (Sinqobile) 

Dolwane Taxi Rank Indoor Sports Centre  Ophindweni Hall Business Park 

Technical 
Offices 

Thuma CSC SMME Park 
Phase  

Recreational 
Park (Sakhile 

Lindela Taxi Rank Nkandla Stadium Ndweni Community Hall Fresh Produce Market 

Disaster and 
Traffic Unit 

Jameson’s Drift CSC   Chwezi Taxi Rank Qhudeni Sports field Mangidini Hall Agricultural Centre 

(Mzinokhanyayo) 

Staff 
Accommodatio
n 

Esibhudeni CSC   Jameson’s Drift Taxi 
Rank 

Chwezi Market stalls Pholela Hall Chwezi Market stalls 

Council House King Cetshwayo 
CSC 

  Mfongosi Taxi Rank Chwezi Sportsfield Mzimhlophe hall Dolwane Market Stalls 

        

 Godide CSC   Qhudeni Taxi Rank Nkungumathe Sports 

field 

 Agricultural Centre 

Ward 14 

 Mvutshini CSC      Machanca Market Stalls 

 Mdlelanga CSC      Thalaneni Market Stalls 

 Ezimpisini/ 
KwaGugu CSC 

     Ward 5 Market Stalls 

(Sangweni) 

 Bhacane CSC      Ward 13 Market Stalls 

 Thala CSC      Ward 14 Market Stalls 

 Vimbimbobo CSC      Ward 6 Market Stalls  
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 The overall score for the KPA is 85% for 2016/2017 annual report, up by 7% from 2015/2016 Annual report which 
was 78%  
 
6. Financial Management and Viability  

 

DEPARTMENTAL MENDATE 

The department operates with four units (Supply Chain Management, Budget & Financial Reporting, Expenditure 

Management, Asset Management and Revenue Management). The general purpose for this report is to outline the 

progress to-date in relation to Budget & Treasury in terms of performance. Since its inception, Nkandla Local 

Municipality has been using the service of consultants (Accounting firms) in conduction of asset management task and 

compilation of a GRAP compliant asset register.  The norm was that the consultant could perform all updates and 

compile the register at the end of each financial year, during the preparation of Annual Financial Statements of the 

municipality. In the last financial year, the municipality has established the Asset Management Unit within Budget & 

Treasury department, under Supply Expenditure and Financial Reporting. The division is getting assistance from one of 

the giant accounting firms (CAMELSA) whereby a binding clause for the transfer of skills is clearly charted on the service 

level agreement.  

The core functions of Supply Chain Management focus more on ensuring the compliance with SCM Policy and 

procedures applicable in a fair, competitive, cost effective and credible procurement of goods and services. The 

functioning of this unit revolves around meeting the targets and deadlines.  

With the aim of collecting and enhancing revenue, Nkandla Local Municipality has established a fully fleshed and 

functional unit that assists in collecting monies that are owed to the municipality. The segregation of duties within the 

unit will assist in ensuring that customer service is kept as a priority notwithstanding the proper channels of reporting.  

With that goal in mind, the department has been structured in such a way that it produces the best service to 

community members. The Revenue Manager, who is at the middle level of management, is playing an oversight role 

in the unit. The revenue Accountant is responsible for supervising the cashier, and reports directly to the Revenue 

Manager. The service related issues are attended to by the revenue officer who then reports to the accountant, with 

the assistance of the council cashier who is the face of customer service desk.  

An intern in the unit assists with all revenue related reconciliations and some fundamental reports that are really crucial 

for revenue administration. In order to monitor the progress of the unit’s functionality, and whether it approaches the 

right direction, the personnel at their levels are required to plan every week ahead and produce a report at the end of 

each month to enable the revenue manager to assess their performance and identify the areas of improvement and 

take corrective actions where necessary. 

 

GOVERNANCE  

In order to promote accountability to the local community for the decisions made throughout the year by the 

municipality as per Section 121 (2)(c) of the Municipal Finance management Act read in conjunction with the Section 
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18(1)(d) of the Municipal Systems Act, the department has to ensure that the relevant governance structures exist and 

are functional. 

PORFOLIO COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

NO NAME  POSITION POLITICAL 
PARTY 

NUMBER OF 
PORTFOLIO 
MEETINGS 

NUMBER  
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

1 Cllr AT Ntuli Portfolio Chairperson IFP 03 03 

 
2 

 
Cllr TF Nxumalo 

Portfolio Committee 
Member 

IFP 03 03 

 
3 

 
Cllr TB Ntombela 

Portfolio Committee 
Member 

IFP 03 03 

 
4 

 
Cllr NM 
Mthombeni 

Portfolio Committee 
Member 

IFP 03 03 

 
5 

 
Cllr N Zulu 

Portfolio Committee 
Member 

ANC 03 0 

 
6 

 
Cllr  BS Mbambo 

Portfolio Committee 
Member 

ANC 03 0 

 
 
5. REVENUE MANAGEMENT 

The implementation of Revenue Collection plan and enhancement strategy to assist in raising monetary values to fund 

strategic measures to address the issue of persistent electricity distribution losses remains a priority. The municipality 

has to ensure that in its strategic planning sessions, these matters are scrupulously dealt with. The impact of recent 

implementation of the resolution to write off 50% of customer debts, also need to be taken into consideration when 

planning the collection plan going forward, as it has a direct impact on the value of the municipality’s debtors’ book. 

 

6. EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET & REPORTING 

The strategic objective is to ensure good governance, financial viability and optimal institutional transformation with 
capacity to execute its mandate. Section 71 of the MFMA and Section 28 of the Government Notice 32141 dated 17 
April 2009 and the Local Government: Municipal Financial Management Act 2003, Municipal Budget and Reporting 
Regulations necessitates that specific financial particulars to be reported on and in the format prescribed. 
Section 71(1) states that the Accounting Officer of a municipality must by no later than 10 working days after the end 
of each month submit to the Mayor of the municipality, and the relevant National and Provincial Treasury, a statement 
in the prescribed format on the state of the municipality’s budget reflecting the following for that month and for the 
financial year up to the end of that month. 
The monthly budget statement of a municipality must be in the format specified in Schedule C and include all the 
required tables, charts and explanatory information, taking into account any guidelines issued by the Minister in terms 
of Section 168 (1) of the MFMA Act. 
 
The mSCOA implementation progress was as follows: 
 

NO. ITEM STATUS % COMPLETION START DATE 

1. Project Planning Completion 100%  

2. Project Governance/ Change Management Completion 100%  

3. ICT Assessment Completion 100%  

4. Creation of mSCOA Database Completion 100%  

5. Data Migration Completion 100%  

6. System Agents Completion 100%  
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7. Customers Master Files Completion 100%  

8. Valuation Roll and Billing Data Not started 0%  

9. Supplier Master Files Completion 100%  

10. Fixed Assets Completion 100%  

11. Inventory Not started 0%  

12. Conversion of Opening Balances Completion 25%  

13. Chart of Accounts WIP 55%  

14. Take-on Balances Started   

15. mSCOA System Training Not Started   

16. User Acceptance Testing Started   

17. Parallel Run Started   

18. System Go Live Not Started  01-May-17 

19. Handholding Not Started  01-May-17 

20. CSD Integration In Progress 20%  

 
COST CONTAINMENT MEASURES 
 
 Section 62(1)(a) of the Municipal Finance Management Act No. 56 of 2003 (MFMA) stipulates that the accounting 
officer of a municipality is responsible for managing the financial administration of a municipality and must for this 
purpose take all reasonable steps to ensure that the resources of the municipality are used effectively, efficiently and 
economically. 
 
Excessive and wasteful expenditure must be reduced, and action has be taken to manage unnecessary expenditure.  
The following costs cutting measures among others are being implemented to also address Cash flow challenges 
experienced by the municipality: 

NO AREA FUNCTION ACTION AMOUNT 

1 Finance (SCM) Requisition
s 

Terminate all requisition orders that are important 
but not urgent such as:- 

 Small plant tool 

 Removal of illegal structure 

 Bakery Business 

 Electricity line Rehabilitation 

 Disaster requisition 

R762 000 

2 Finance  Revenue 
collection 

Vigorous implementation of electricity disconnection 
as per Credit control and Debt collection policy for 
arear accounts & electricity tempering 
 
All Business People not paying for rates and refuse be 
disconnected after 7 days notices have been served. 
 

R1.9 
million 

3 Finance  Rates 
collection 

Ensuring that Public Works their pay remaining 
balance owed to the municipality 

R1.7 
million 

4 OMM Contracted 
Services 

Defer appointment of Service Provider for Cleaning 
Services to July 2017. 

R300 000 

5 CORPORATE 

SERVICES 

Fleet 
Manageme
nt 

Curbing of fuel consumption by stopping/limiting 
identified vehicles from being utilised. 

R600 000 



41 

 

 
7. ASSET MANAGEMENT 

The asset management function at the institution is not functioning optimally. The fixed asset register needs to be 

updated on a monthly basis and reconciled to the general ledger on a monthly basis. But due to system and capacity 

related challenges, the unit remain less active.  

8. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

Review of the Supply Chain Management Policy  

The Council of Nkandla Municipality adopted an amended SCM Policy on the 30th May 2016.  SCM Regulation 3(a) 

states that the accounting officer of a municipality must 3(a) promptly prepare and submit a draft supply chain policy 

complying with SCM regulations to the council of the municipality for adoption and reg 3(b) at least annually review 

the implementation of the policy, he/she may submit proposals for the amendment of this Policy to the council, and 

such amendments must comply with the legislative requirements.  National Treasury issued Circular 62 and Circular 

69 which municipalities must comply with.  The practice note and the circulars issued, prompted that the SCM Policy 

be reviewed and amended accordingly to align it with the legislative requirements.  The draft SCM policy for 2017/2018 

was submitted the council on the 28th of March 2017 with the draft Budget and other budget related policy. National 

Treasury has introduce the new policy on model SCM policy for infrastructure Procurement and Delivery Management, 

The Management has prepare the draft policy that will be submitted to the next Council Meeting for adoption.  

Supply Chain Management Unit:  

Regulation 3 states the following:  

a) Each municipality must establish a supply chain management unit to implement its supply chain management 

policy.  

b) A supply chain management unit must, where possible, operate under the direct supervision of the Chief 

Financial Officer or an official to whom this duty has been delegated in terms of section 82 of the act.    

The Supply Chain Management Unit in terms of the legislation is responsible for the following prescribed functions:  

6 HR Employee 
related 
costs 

Deferring new appointments to July 2017 

 Auxiliary 

 General Worker 

 IT Technician 

R450 000 

7 HR Employee 
related 
costs 

A complete stop to Overtime/ S&T and 
Accommodation 
 

R150 000 

8 IT Administra
tion  

Restricted use of telephone R40 000 

9 COMM SERVICES/ 

CORPORATE 

SERVICES 

Lease 
agreement 

Fast tracking the signing of all rental lease 
agreements for all the tenants that have vacated 
municipal premises. 
 

R150 000 

10 WHOLE 

MUNICIPALITY 

Catering & 
Accommod
ation 

Stopping of catering and accommodation R150 000 
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 Demand management;  

 Acquisition management;  

 Disposal management;  

 Logistics management; 

Supply Chain Processes  

Demand Management  

The system of demand management must allow for the analysis of proper needs, establishment of a supplier database, 

implementation of IDP projects and drafting of proper specifications.  Circular 62 of issued by National Treasury 

requires that municipalities develop a procurement plan for all procurement needs with an estimated value above 

R200, 000.  

Acquisition Management  

The system of acquisition must allow for compliance with all the ranges of procurement as legislated.   

Bid Committees  

The following bid committees are established to allow for the smooth implementation of the competitive bidding 

process:  

 Bid Specification Committee;  

 Bid Evaluation Committee; and  

 Bid Adjudication Committee  

Supplier Database  

There is a supplier database in place.  Prospective suppliers are allowed submit the forms any time, however the 

received forms are processed monthly on review of the database. The process of cleaning the supplier database started 

in the beginning of the current financial year and is ongoing progress. The National Treasury through MFMA Circular 

No.81 has introduce the Web Based Central Supplier Database (CSD) for registration of prospective suppliers to assist 

in performing validation functions of key supplier information. The advert that invite the prospective service providers 

to register and update their in information in the municipal database was placed in the ilanga newspaper and municipal 

website in the month of June 2016. In Quarter 4 Management will issue an Advert in the local and provincial circulating 

newspaper.  

One intern and SCM Practitioner are dealing with the supplier database under the supervision of the Manager: SCM. 

The process includes the following but not limited thereto:  

1. Ensuring Supplier are registered with National Treasury CSD, 

2. Ensuring suppliers are registered with Cipro, 

3. Linking commodities to the suppliers profile,  

4. Entering the suppliers tax reference number and VAT registration number  
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5. Entering the physical and postal address of the supplier  

6. Confirm all suppliers have completed database forms  

By the end of the quarter under review the process of capturing was 100% complete as the database are captured as 

they come. Sage Evolution is busy with the establishing and configuration of the Financial System with National 

Treasury Web Based Central Supplier Database as per MSCOA Requirement. 

Ranges of procurement  

The following are the ranges of procurement and their implementation thereof:  

 Procurement 

Process  

  VALUE    Implementation   

  

Petty  Cash  

Purchases  

 Up to R2000 [VAT incl.]   Petty Cash fund managed by the expenditure section   

Written 

Quotation 

  Over R2000 [VAT incl.] 

up to R30 000 [VAT 

incl.]  

  Centralized with SCM unit.  SCM officials initiates and 

completes the process   

Formal Written  

Price Quotation  

 Over R30 000 [VAT 

incl.] 

up to R200 000 [VAT 

incl.]  

  Centralized with SCM unit.  SCM officials initiates and 

completes the process. 

Competitive 

Bidding  

 Over R200 000[VAT 

incl.] or Long Term  

Contracts  

 Centralized with SCM unit.  A SCM official initiates and 

bid committees completes the process.  See the 

functioning of bid committees below  

 
Publication of Tender Results  

Section 75(1)(f) of the Municipal Finance Management Act states that “The Accounting Officer of a municipality must 

place on the website all supply chain management contracts above a prescribed value”. The National Treasury has since 

prescribed the value as above R100, 000.00.   

Logistics Management  

The Accounting Officer must implement an effective system of logistics management in order to provide for the setting 

of inventory levels, placing of orders, receiving and distribution of goods, stores and warehouse management, 

expediting orders, transport management, vendor performance, and maintenance and contract administration.  The 

municipality has a stores whereby the purchase orders and consumables are issued to departments.  The SCM Policy 

requires that quarterly stock takings be conducted.  The stock taking was conducted by SCM Officer under the 

supervision of the Manager: SCM on the 31st of March 2017 to ensure that stocks are kept at the optimal stock level.  

Disposal Management  
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There have been no disposals in the year under review  

Risk Management 

The following measures are in place to mitigate risk in the SCM process 

 Officials involve in SCM are made aware and have signed the SCM Code of Conduct 

 Trans-union system was used to vet all Councillors and Official whether are directors of other  businesses 

 Quotations received are approved by Directors and CFO prior to being considered 

 Checklists are in place to ensure that all applicable SCM requirements are adhered to. 

Contract Management 

The Contract Register is update each and month and the report is being sent the Provincial Treasury after two months 

as per their request. The SCM Practitioner is responsible for updating the contract register and filing of all contract 

with the assisted of the Finance Intern under the supervision of the Manager: SCM. 

 The overall score for the KPA is 82% for 2016/2017 Annual report, down by 18% from 2015/2016 annual report 
which was 100% 

FINANCIAL REPORTING (CAPITAL TRANSFERS) 

Capital Transfers include both Electricity Grant and Municipal Infrastructure Grant, the allocation for each, is as follows; 

for Electricity there is an allocation of R18 000 000.00 and for MIG there is an allocation of R21 000 000.00 for 2016/17  

Financial Year.On our Departmental SDBIP we set a target of spending 25% of an allocation each quarter. Of which is 

R5, 448 750.00 for MIG and R4 500 000.00 for Electricity which gives us a total of R9 948 750.00 to spend quarterly. 

MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT (MIG) 
For each quarter we set to spend R5, 448 750.00 and thus far in this quarter we have spent R1, 223 467.4 to date. 

Quarter Contractors 
Expenditure 

Consultants 
Expenditure 

Total Expenditure 
Per Quarter 

Quarter 1 R 6, 561 884.23 R 1, 170 062.02 R 7, 731 946.25 

Quarter 2 R 9, 303 562.42 R 1, 013 977.38 R 10, 317 539.8 

Quarter 3 R 6, 118 187.71 R 246 328.9 R 6, 364 516.61 

Quarter 4 R 1, 223 467.4 R 0.00 R 1, 223 467.4 

Total R 1, 223 467.4 R 0.00 R 1, 223 467.4 

 

ELECTRICITY GRANT 
An allocation of R18, 000, 000.00 was set for 2016/17 financial year with an expenditure of R4 500 000.00 per quarter. 

Up to now we have spent R258  859.99 to date. 

Quarter Contractors 
Expenditure 

Consultants 
Expenditure 

Total Expenditure 
Per Quarter 

Quarter 1 R5, 538 989.50 R 647 246.40 R6, 186 235.90 

Quarter 2 R5, 580 600.36 R505 451.3 R6, 086 051.66 

Quarter 3 R 4, 376 764.81 R 1, 518 576.9 R 5, 895 341.71 

Quarter 4 R 258 859.99 R 0.00 R 258 859.99 

Total R258 859.99 R0.00 R258 859.99 

 

the total expenditure for both these grants is R1 482 327.39 out of R39 000 000.00. 
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WASTE MANAGEMENT CAMPAIGNS. 
 

The management campaigns was done at Nkandla town. All waste worker come together to clean the rank and 
taught  the people the importance of waste management.  

 
Fig 1: street sweeping 

 
fig 2 loading waste in plastic bags 
 
RECYCLING PROGRAMME. 

 
The Municipality has one recycler in town, two co-operatives in land fill site, one at Ntigwe, one at Dolwane, one at 
Thalaneni and one at Mjahweni.  They use MPACT to sell their recyclables (papers and plastics), collect a can to sell 
cans and Consol to sell bottle.  
 
Electrical  

Infrastructure maintenance 
Nkandla Town electrical infrastructure has aged and the majority of the current electrical infrastructure has surpassed 
its expected lifespan, 30% of the existing infrastructure is required to be refurbished in order to create a firm supply 
and avoid ongoing maintenance issues within the town. The above statement is limited to budgetary 
Requirements. Urgent attention is required to address the critical defects on transformers and MV line feeding the 
municipality, this line needs urgent attention. 
Another MV Line that feeds Nkandla Clinic also need urgent attention. 
Power Enquiries 
All power enquiries are attended to when they come and they are done immediately. In these months there were 4 
power interruptions occurred. 
The line next to the municipality that give supply to boxer store needs to be changed. Assessment has been done to 
change the line and the contractors did come to do assessment and waiting for quotations 
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GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
 
 ESRI South Africa has delivered the software information currently busy with installing the user codes for access to 
the software.  
 
BUILDING INSPECTORATE 
 
A number of building plans were approved and are currently being monitored, approval is done through submission 
of circulation registers to a number of units within the municipality. An item on illegal structures in town was 
prepared and council has since resolved that they will be removed. . 
 
REVIEW OF THE SPATIAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 
A meeting was held with COGTA officials and the district on the review and support templates were signed as COGTA 
was indicting areas of intervention. The Town Planning Scheme will be reviewed to be SPLUMA complaint. 
 
OTHER DEVELOPMENTS     
Wilkru PTY has purchased erf173 for the development of Shoprite Store, Confirmation of services letter were draft 
and issued to the developer, demolishing will begin soon. 
An application was made to Transnet for the purchase of erf 91 who are the owners of this site .Once there is an 
agreement land will be transferred to the Municipality for development.  
 
 PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT 
 
Construction of Ediphini Causeway and Access Road 
 Pictures 

 
 
 
4.2  CONSTRUCTION OF NKETHABAWELI-MANZAWAYO ACCESS ROAD  
 Photos 
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CONSTRUCTION OF NKETHABAWELI-MANZAWAYO ACCESS ROAD PH 2 
 Pictures 

 
Hauling and processing on progress 

 
Installation of box culvert on progress 
 
CONSTRUCTION OF NGOMANKULU-NSUZE BRIDGE 
 Photos 
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Road alignment to the west abtument. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 EXTENSION OF ROAD ALIGNMENT TO NGOMANKULU BRIDGE 
 
 

 
 
CONSTRUCTION OF VUMANDLAMVU CSC  
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 CONSTRUCTION OF SAKHILE ACCESS ROADS 
 Pictures 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 CONSTRUCTION OF KWANTSHIZA ACCESS ROAD 
 
 Pictures 
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 CONSTRUCTION OF NKOMEZIPHANSI ACCESS ROAD 
 Pictures 

 
 
 
 

5 MAINTEANANCE OF CBD AND TOWNSHIP ROADS 
 
All CBD and Township roads are maintained internal and should be maintain on daily basis, the municipality has a 
limited resources to repair all the road one time.  
The challenge is that Nkandla population is increasing day by day so there is a need to upgrade our ageing 
infrastructure such as road classes and its width. It is very true that Nkandla Town is developing as we are expecting a 
Shopping Centre and TVET of which are under construction, a proper business plan need to be developed for the 
upgrade of all CBD’s road network, thus this can contribute even on traffic accommodation within the town. 
 

 
Street swiping on progress 
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Patching of potholes on progress 

. 

 The overall score for the KPA is 82% for 2016/2017 Annual report, up by 27% from 2015/2016 Annual 
report which was 55
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Project Name

Project Status

Budget Start Date
Possible Savings on 

project
Construction Cost

Expenditure to Date for 

Constr.

Balance on 

Contractor
Professional Fees

Expenditure to Date for 

Professional fees
Balance on Fees Total Expenditure to Date Budget Balance

% 

Progres

s to 

Date

Comments Consultant Contractor

ESAKHILE ACCESS ROAD

The newly appointed service provider is 

progressing very well on site.He is busy laying 

Kerbs and processing layers.

R 16 645 508.00 2017/01/27 R 0.00 R 6 773 808.63 R 3 553 258.93 R 3 220 549.70 R 0.00 R 0.00 R 0.00 R 3 553 258.93 R 3 220 549.70 80% The project is promising

Bi 

Infrastrustructur

e

Bi Infrastrustructure 

(Turn-key)

NGOMANKULU/NSUZE PEDESTRIAN 

BRIDGE

This project is practical complete. 

R 6 197 863.97 2015/05/18 R 0.00 R 6 197 863.97 R 5 871 037.45 R 326 826.52 R 0.00 R 0.00 R 0.00 R 5 871 037.45 R 326 826.52 100%
The project can be  handed 

over to the public.

SDM 

Consulting 

Engineers

SDM Consulting 

Engineers

EMATHENGENI ACCESS ROAD PHASE I

This project is practical complete.

R 6 600 000.00 2015/05/01 -R 4 318 150.27 R 8 524 150.27 R 8 159 509.21 R 364 641.06 R 2 394 000.00 R 1 551 480.00 R 842 520.00 R 9 710 989.21 R 1 207 161.06 100% complete

Impumele 

Consulting 

Engineers 

(PTY)Ltd

MBS Yimpie JV

KWANTSHIZA ACCESS ROAD PHASE 1

This project is practical complete.

R 3 000 000.00 2015/11/03 R 716 238.91 R 2 003 299.20 R 2 003 298.55 R 0.65 R 280 461.89 R 802 856.43 -R 522 394.54 R 2 806 154.98 -R 522 393.89 100% complete

Fakumoya Alphan JV 

QV Biyela 

Constraction

KWANTSHIZA ACCESS ROAD PHASE II

This project is practical complete.

R 6 655 456.80 2016/07/24 R 4 116 106.80 R 2 227 500.00 R 2 194 635.43 R 32 864.57 R 311 850.00 R 281 356.27 R 30 493.73 R 2 475 991.70 R 63 358.30 1000% complete Somkhanda Plant Hire

NKETHABAWELI TO MANZAWAYO ROAD 

PHASE I

 The project is almost complete, however the 

contructor still have to complite minor concrete 

works.

R 3 000 000.00 2015/11/04 R 0.05 R 2 631 578.90 R 2 350 622.20 R 280 956.70 R 368 421.05 R 344 128.30 R 24 292.75 R 2 694 750.50 R 305 249.45 96%

The contractor deserted the 

site however  engineer has 

issued certificate of non-

perfomance.

Mbali Investments cc

NKETHABAWELI TO MANZAWAYO ROAD 

PHASE II

Bulk earthworks have been completed.

 Road-bed preparation has been complete.

 Hauling and processing of gravel wearing 

course has commenced and its 99% with 

compaction on the edges the

outstanding activity. The contractor has 

completed excavations and base slab for the 

causeway.

R 5 000 000.00 2016/07/14 R 1 899 770.00 R 2 719 500.00 R 2 299 257.60 R 420 242.40 R 380 730.00 R 0.00 R 380 730.00 R 2 299 257.60 R 800 972.40 75%

The contractor deserted the 

site however  engineer has 

issued certificate of non-

perfomance.

Mzabalazo Investment 

(PTY)LTD

NKOMEZIPHANSI ACCESS ROAD PHASE I

This project is practical complete. 

R 3 688 000.00 2015/12/01 R 0.00 R 3 235 087.72 R 965 721.93 R 2 269 365.79 R 452 912.28 R 354 340.09 R 98 572.19 R 1 320 062.02 R 2 367 937.98 100% complete PROZ Consulting

NKOMEZIPHANSI ACCESS ROAD PHASE II

The contractor has been appointed and his still 

finalizing some contractual obligations.

R 2 274 543.20 not yet started -R 725 456.80 R 2 493 328.20 R 0.00 R 2 493 328.20 R 506 671.80 R 0.00 R 506 671.80 R 0.00 R 3 000 000.00 15%
awaiting for contractual 

obligations

Mdu Shandu 

Constraction

EDIPHINI 

The contractor is on site, they are busy with 

the construction of a causeway. Diversion of 

water has been completed and blinding has 

been completed. The contractor has been 

delayed for the past five days due to the 

rainfall.  

R 3 000 000.00 2016/07/24 -R 770 550.00 R 3 307 500.00 R 1 892 987.04 R 1 414 512.96 R 463 050.00 R 439 897.50 R 23 152.50 R 2 332 884.54 R 1 437 665.46 70%
Contractor is progressing well  

on site.
Ibhelenabangani 

Mdu Shandu 

Constraction

VUMANHLAMVU COMMUNITY SERVICE 

CENTRE

The contractor is progressing very well on 

site.He is busy with plastering,tubing,painting 

and finishes.

R 4 050 000.00 2016/07/14 -R 567 000.00 R 4 050 000.00 R 3 847 465.80 R 202 534.20 R 567 000.00 R 559 912.49 R 7 087.51 R 4 407 378.29 R 209 621.71 93%
The contractor is progreessing 

on site.

Mafahleni 

Engineers & 

Project Managers 

cc

TPL Mkhize

Capital Projects Monthly Progress Report as at 31 March 2017

Isivivane 

Consulting 

Engineers 

(PTY)Ltd

Mafahleni 

Engineers & 

Project Managers 

cc

Impumele 

Consulting 

Engineers 

(PTY)Ltd
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Electrification Projects Progress Report

  Budget Start Date Savings on project Construction Cost
Expenditure to Date 

for Constr.

Balance on 

Contractor
Professional Fees

Expenditure to 

Date for 

Professional fees

Balance on Fees
Total Expenditure to 

Date
Budget Balance

% Progress to 

Date
Comments Consultant Contractor

VIMBIMBOBO 

ELECTRIFICATION
R 8 500 000.00 2013/10/25 R 4 500 000.00 R 4 000 000.00 R 1 726 359.00 R 2 273 641.00 R 0.00 R 0.00 R 0.00 R 1 726 359.00 R 2 273 641.00 80%

The Contractor is busy 

with construction and is 

awaiting for ESKOM to 

energise.

BTMN 

Consulting 

Engineers

Turn-Key

MASOLOSOLO 

ELECTRIFICATION
R 1 610 000.00 2016/07/04 -R 1 508 466.59 R 2 208 772.90 R 2 229 349.25 R 290 344.44 R 280 854.39 R 9 490.05 R 2 489 627.29 90%

The project is still on the 

designing stage.

DLOLWANE ELECTRIFICATION R 1 817 000.00 2016/07/04 -R 1 508 466.59 R 1 328 397.40 R 2 819 380.31 R 290 344.44 R 239 989.53 R 50 354.91 R 1 568 386.93 80%
awaiting for eskom to 

energize

MAKHANYEZI 

ELECTRIFICATION
R 2 093 000.00 2015/04/13 -R 1 855 249.15 R 3 463 376.45 R 3 038 759.07 R 424 617.38 R 484 872.70 R 484 797.99 R 74.71 R 3 523 557.06 R 424 692.09 95% Project complete

Hamsa 

Consulting
A1 Electrical

EZIJIBENI ELECTRIFICATION R 1 978 000.00

2015/11/05

-R 2 141 597.26 R 3 613 681.81 R 3 444 873.55 R 168 808.26 R 505 915.45 R 453 182.19 R 52 733.26 R 3 989 055.74 R 221 541.52 95% Project complete
Hamsa 

Consulting

Veeze Micro 

Enterprise

NTSHIZA ELECTRIFICATION R 2 750 000.00
2016/02/08

-R 8 390 927.66 R 9 772 743.56 R 6 440 658.95 R 879 299.82 R 1 368 184.10 R 641 436.87 R 523 710.19 R 7 082 095.82 R 1 403 010.00 80% Underconstruction
EMC 

Consulting
Goldrod Trading cc

SIXHOKOLO/ MPONDO 

ELECTRIFICATION
R 1 633 000.00

2015/11/05
-R 655 742.08 R 2 069 072.00 R 2 096 740.93 -R 27 668.93 R 219 670.08 R 178 268.73 R 41 401.35 R 2 275 009.66 R 13 732.42 60% Underconstruction

Sibgem 

Management
Zakhele Electrical

NHLOSHANE 

ELECTRIFICATION
R 8 000 000.00 2015/04/13 -R 6 000 000.00 R 18 000 000.00 R 13 098 376.18 R 4 901 623.82 R 0.00 R 0.00 R 0.00 R 13 098 376.18 R 4 901 623.82

65%
Underconstruction

Sibgem 

Management
Turn-Key

VUTSHINI/BHACANE/ 

MALUNGA/ MNDUNDUZELI/ 

QUTHU ELECTRIFICATION

R 7 619 000.00 2016/08/15 -R 15 604 977.85 R 18 074 541.97 R 4 437 708.86 R 13 636 833.11 R 2 530 435.88 R 1 153 738.52 R 1 376 697.36 R 5 591 447.38 R 15 013 530.47 40% Underconstruction
Worley 

Parsons
Goldrod Trading cc

Igoda Projects Goldrod Trading ccR 4 147 777.71 R 670 452.37
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11. ASSESSMENT OF THE PERFOMANCE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDER BUDGET AND TREASURY 

The monitoring of the service provider performance is ensured through the signing of the Service Level Agreement. It is currently being done by user department levels. The end user department is providing monthly reports to 
the SCM unit as well. Service providers who fail to perform are reported to SCM and the necessary action is taken including the termination of the contract or cancellation of an order. 

Bid Number Name of external 
Service Provider 

Date Contract 
Awarded 

Date of expire ring 
of contract 

Service provided in 
terms of the SLA 

Value of project Comparison with previous year Current Financial Year Assessment of Service Providers 
Performance 

Target Actual Target Actual G S P 

 CAMELSA CCG 
SYSTEMS 

29/04/2014 Not stated Yes R1 100 000 N/A N/A Implementation 
and 
maintenance of 
financial 
system. 

100% x   

 NTSIDI and Associates 01/03/2016 30/11/2018 Yes R1 486 300 N/A N/A Preparation of 
annual financial 
statements for 
2015/2016 to 
2017/2018 
financial years 

Preparation 
of annual 
financial 
statements 
in progress. 

x   

 NTSIDI and Associates 12/07/2014 30/06/2017 Yes 15% for vat refunded Preparatio
n of vat 
returns 
and 
submissio
n to SARS 
and VAT 
reconciliat
ions. 

All VAT returns 
submitted to 
SARS, VAT 
reconciliation 
prepared and 
vat refunds 
received by 
municipality 

Preparation of 
vat returns and 
submission to 
SARS and VAT 
reconciliations. 

Submission 
of vat 
returns and 
preparation 
of vat 
reconciliati
ons in 
progress. 

x   

 ABSA Cash focus 08/04/2012 08/04/2015 Yes Dependant  on services 
rendered to the 
municipality 

Banking 
service 

100% Banking service 100% x   

 BPG Mass Appraisal 30/09/2012 30/09/2018 Yes R1’589’099.00 valuation 
roll 

100% valuation roll 100% x   

 G4S 25/03/2014 24/03/2018 Yes Dependant on the service 
rendered to the 
municipality. 

Cash 
managem
ent 

100% Cash 
management 

100% x   

 CONLOG solution for 
utilities 

27/03/2014 26/03/2017 Yes Dependant on the service 
rendered to the 
municipality. 

Electricity 
revenue 
collection 

100% Prepayment 
revenue 
management 

100% x   

 Payday 01/04/2013 28/02/2016 Yes R214 974.36 Payroll 
Software 

100% Payroll software  100% x   

Assessment Key 

Good (G) The service has been provided at acceptable standards and within the time frames stipulated in the SLA/Contract  

Satisfactory (S)  The service has been provided at acceptable standards and outside of the timeframes stipulated in the SLA/Contract 

Poor (P) The service has been provided below acceptable standards  
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 Travel with Flair 01/02/2017 30/02/2020 Yes Dependant on the 
service rendered to the 
municipality 

Travel 
agency 
service 

100% Travel Agency 
service 

100% x   

 Indwe Risk Services 01/07/2014 30/06/2017 Yes Dependant on the 
service rendered to the 
municipality 

Insuranc
e service 

100% Insurance 
service 

100% x   

 Ayanda Mbanga 
Communication 

22/01/2016 21/01/2019 Yes Dependant on the 
service rendered to the 
municipality 

Advertisi
ng 
Agency 

100% Advertising 
Agency 

100% x   

 
12. ASSESSMENT OF THE PERFOMANCE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDER –CORPORATE SERVICE 

The monitoring of the service provider performance is ensured through the signing of the Service Level Agreement. It is currently being done by user department levels. The end user department is providing 
monthly reports to the SCM unit as well. Service providers who fail to perform are reported to SCM and the necessary action is taken including the termination of the contract or cancellation of an order. 

 

Bid 
Number 

Name of external 
Service Provider 

Date Contract 
Awarded 

Date of expire 
ring of contract 

Service provided in 
terms of the SLA 

Value of project Comparison with previous 
year 

Current Financial Year Assessment of Service 
Providers Performance 

Target Actual Target Actual G S P 

 RIS VEHICLE HIRE 12/04/2012 29/04/2017 Yes Depends on km 
travelled 

VEHICLE HIRE 100% VEHICLE HIRE 100% x   

 Pay Day 01/04/2013 30/04/2013 Yes R214974.36 PAYDAY 
SYSTEM 
SOFTWARE 

100% PAYDAY SYSTEM 
SOFTWARE 

100% x   

 IZINGCWETI 15/03/2016 15/03/2017 Yes R800 000.00 IT SUPPORT 100% IT SUPPORT 80% x   
 Inqolobane 

Technologies 
01/05/2015 30/04/2016 

Renewable 
Yes R18 000,00 WEBSITE 

HOSTING 
 WEBSITE 

HOSTING 
100% x   

 Asande Security 
Services 

2016/05/10 21/09/2016 Yes ____ SECURITY 
SERVICE 

100% SECURITY 
SERVICE 

100% x   

 Red spike Security 
service  

00608/2016 06/2017 ___ ____ SECURITY 
SERVICE 

100% SECURITY 
SERVICE 

100% x   

 Gumede & Jona 
Incorporated 

14/11/2014 30/11/2017 Yes Depends on 
work done 

LEGAL 
ADVISOR 

80% LEGAL ADVISOR 100% x   

 Botha & Olivier 
incorporated 

14/11/2014 30/11/2017 Yes Depends on 
work done 

LEGAL 
ADVISOR 

100% LEGAL ADVISOR 100% x   

 Capital Office 
Automation 

20/05/2016 20/05/2017 Yes Depends on 
copies done 

PRINTING 
SERVICE 

80% PRINTING 
SERVICE 

90% x   

 

 

Assessment Key 

Good (G) The service has been provided at acceptable standards and within the time frames stipulated in the SLA/Contract  

Satisfactory (S)  The service has been provided at acceptable standards and outside of the timeframes stipulated in the SLA/Contract 

Poor (P) The service has been provided below acceptable standards  
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13. ASSESSMENT OF THE PERFOMANCE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDER TECHNICAL SERVICE 
The monitoring of the service provider performance is ensured through the signing of the Service Level Agreement. It is currently being done by user department levels. The end user department is providing 
monthly reports to the SCM unit as well. Service providers who fail to perform are reported to SCM and the necessary action is taken including the termination of the contract or cancellation of an order. 

 

Bid 
Number 

Name of external 
Service Provider 

Date Contract 
Awarded 

Date of 
expire ring 
of contract 

Service provided in 
terms of the SLA 

Value of project Comparison with previous Quarter Quarter three Assessment of 
Service Providers 
Performance 

Target Actual Target Actual G S P 

NKA/GRA
DER/2015
/16 

L & R 30-09-2015  Provision and 
operating of a Grader 
(RRUP) 

R2, 000, 000.00 Nil 0 Provision and 
operating Grader 

100% x   

NKAMP/1
3-14/01 

Isivivane 14-01-14 14-01-16 KwaNtshiza Access 
Road P2 

R2, 227,500.00 Project 
Management 

100% PMU Support 100% x   

NKAMP/1
3-14/01 

Somkhanda Plant 
Hire  

14-07-16  R311, 850.00 Project 
Construction 

100% PMU Support 0% x   

NKAMP/1
3-14/01 

Mafahleni 
Engineers and 
Project Managers 

14-01-14 14-01-16 Nkethabaweli to 
Manzawayo P1 

R368, 421.05 
 
R2, 631,578.90 

Project 
Management 

100% Project Management 100%   x 

 
NKAMC/D
N/1516/0
5 

Mbali Investment 
cc 

12-10-15 27-05-16 Nkathebaweli to 
Manzawayo P1 

Project 
Construction 

100% PMU Support 100%   x 

NKAMC/D
N/1617/0
3 

Mzabalazo 
Investment (PTD) 
LTD 

14-07-16 29-01-17 Nkethabaweli to 
Manzawayo P2 

R2, 719, 500.00 
 

Project 
Construction 

100% Project Construction 100%   x 

 Mafahleni 
Engineers 

14-01-14 14-01-16 R380, 730.06 Project 
Management 

100% Project 
Managements 

100%  x  

NKAMP/1
3-14/01 

Impumele 
Consulting 
Engineers 

14-01-14 14-01-16 Nkomeziphansi 
Access Road P1 

R2, 789, 117.71 Project 
Management 

100% Project Construction 100%   x 

NKAMC/D
N/1516/0
4 

Proz Consulting 18-12-15 18-06-16 R390, 476-48 Project 
Construction 

100% Project Management 100%   x 

 Mdu Shandu 
Construction 

15-02-17 15-06-17 Nkomeziphansi 
Access Road P2 

 
R2, 493, 328.20 

Project 
Construction 

100% Project Management 100%  x  

Assessment Key 

Good (G) The service has been provided at acceptable standards and within the time frames stipulated in the SLA/Contract  

Satisfactory (S)  The service has been provided at acceptable standards and outside of the timeframes stipulated in the SLA/Contract 

Poor (P) The service has been provided below acceptable standards  
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 Impumele 
Consulting 
Engineers 

14-01-14 14-01-16 R506, 671.80 Project 
Management 

100% Project Construction 100%  x  

 Mdu Shandu 
Construction 

14-07-16 17-04-17 Ediphini Access Road 
and Causeway 

R3, 307, 500.00 
 

Project 
Construction 

100% PMU Support 100%  x  

 Ibhelenabangani 14-01-14 14-01-16 R463, 050.00 Project 
Management 

100% PMU Support 100%  x  

 TPL Mkhize 14-07-16 02-03-17 Vumanhlamvu CSC R 4, 050, 000.00 Project 
Construction 

 Project Management 100% x   

 Mafahleni 
Engineers 

14-01-14 14-01-16  
R567, 000.00 

Project 
Management 

0% Project Construction 100% x   

 Bi Infrastructure 15-02-17 15-06-17 Esakhile Access Roads R6, 773, 808.63 
 

Turn-Key 100% Turn-Key 100%   x 

ELECTRIFICATION PROJECTS 

NKAREP/1
3-14/02 

Igoda Projects 13-04-15   
Masolosolo/Dolwane 

R3, 427,000.00 Project 
Management 

100% VEHICLE HIRE 100% x   

 Goldrod Trading 04-01-16 30-06-16 Project 
Construction 

0% Project Construction 100% x   

 Hamsa 15-08-12 31-08-16 Vumanhlamvu 
Electrification 

R23, 356, 684.42 Project 
Management 

100% Project Management 100% x   

NKAREP/1
3-14/01 

Omphile Electrical 
and Construction 
cc 

08-08-13 31-08-16 Project 
Construction 

100% Project Construction 100% x   

NKAREP/1
3-14/02 

HAMSA 13-04-15   
EzijibeniElectrificatio
n 

 
R1, 978, 000.00 

Project 
Management 

100% Project Management 100% x   

NKAEL/D
N/1516/0
4 

Veeze Micro 
Enterprise 

05-11-15 30-06-16 Nil 0% Project Construction 100% x   

NKAREP/1
3-14/02 

HAMSA 13-04-15  Makhanyezi 
Electrification 

 
R2, 093, 000.00 

Project 
Management 

100% Project Management 100% x   

NKAEL/D
N/1516/0
3 

A One Elect cc t/a 
A1 Electrical 

05-11-15 30-06-16 Nil 0% Project Construction 100% x   

NKAREP/1
3-14/02 

EMC 13-04-15   
Ntshiza Electrification 

 
R2, 750, 000.00 

Project 
Management 

100% Project Management 100%   x 

NKAEL/D
N/1516/0
7 

Goldrod Trading 08-02-16 08-02-19 Nil 0% Project Construction 100% x   

NKAREP/1
3-14/02 

BTMN 05-11-15 05-11-18 Thaleni/Vimbimbobo 
Electrification 

R12, 699, 000.00 Turn-Key 100% Project Management 
& Construction 

100% x   

NKAREP/1
3-14/02 

Sibgem 
Management 

13-04-15    
R1, 633, 000.00 

Project 
Management 

100% Project Management 100%   x 
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NKAEL/D
N/1516/0
1 

Zakhele Electrical 05-11-15 30-06-16 Esixhokolo 
Electrification 

Nil 0% Project Construction 100%   x 

 Sibgem 05-11-15 05-11-18 Nhloshana 
Electrification 

R8, 000, 000.00 Turn-Key 100% Turn-Key 100% x   

NKAEL/D
N/1516/0
8 

Goldrod Trading 
cc 

23-08-16 23-08-19 Mvutshini,Qothu,Ma
dlozi,Malunga and 
Sidashi 

R18, 974, 541.97  100% Project Construction 100% x   

 Worley Parsons 
Resources and 
Energy 

15-08-12  R2, 530, 435.88  100% Project Management  x   
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14. DEPARTMENTAL PERFOMANCE COMPARISON WITH PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR 

DEPARTMENTS 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR PERFOMANCE 2016/2017 FINANCIAL YEAR 

 TOTAL TARGETS TOTAL TARGETS ACHIEVED % ACHIEVED TOTAL TARGETS TOTAL TARGETS ACHIEVED % ACHIEVED 

CORPORATE SERVICE 16 10 62% 20 10 50% 

COMMUNITY SERVICE 29 23 79.3% 27 17 63% 

BUDGET AND TREASURY DEPARTMENT 33 32 97 % 34 32 94% 

TECHNICAL SERVICE DEPARTMENT 38 24 63.1% 36 33 92% 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER 11 11 100% 13 11 85% 

EXECUTIVE MANAGER 39 29 74.3% 38 28 74% 

TOTAL  166 130 78.3% 168 131 79% 

 



60 

 

15. OVERALL MUNICIPAL PERFOMANCE AND COMPARISON OF 2015/2016 WITH 2016/2017 FINANCIAL YEAR  

DEPARTMENTS 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR PERFOMANCE 2016/2017 FINANCIAL YEAR 

NKPA TOTAL TARGETS TOTAL TARGETS 

ACHIEVED 

% ACHIEVED TOTAL TARGETS TOTAL TARGETS ACHIEVED % ACHIEVED 

DEMOCRACY AND GOOD GOVERNANCE 56 45 80.3% 52 40 77% 

INSTITUTIONAL TRANSFOMATION 18 14 78% 24         15 63% 

BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY 31 17 55% 38 31 82% 

LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 24 19 79% 13 11 85% 

 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND VIABILITY 26 26 100% 28 23 82% 

CROSS CUTTING MEASURES 11 9 82% 13 11 85% 

TOTAL  166 130 78.3% 168 131 78% 
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16. COMPARISON OF ALL QUARTERS  WITHIN FINANCIAL YEAR 
 (Section 46 Municipal systems act) 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
17. COMPARISON OF 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR WITH 2016/2017 FINANCIAL YEAR (Section 46 Municipal systems 
act)  
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18.Background to municipal scorecard 
 
•The Municipal Scorecard Annexure A approach reflects the 6 National KPA’s and local priorities and enables a wider 
assessment of how the municipality is performing. 
•The performance report is based on measures included within the Municipal Scorecard. 
• The criteria used reflect factors such as previous performance levels, comparative performance and budget 
implications. These were agreed by Council on June 2016. 
 
 
19. Lessons Learnt and Way Forward 

 
The targets that were set and adopted by the council need to be achieved at all cost and reasons for variances and 
action to correct need to be provided as part public accountability. The projection in the budget need to be realistic 
as this affect the planned targets when there is an under collection and that results to targets not met. Revenue 
collection strategy need to be implemented vigorously. 
 
20. Key Areas to Note 
 
Improving Performance  
• Overall satisfaction with Municipality’s services is stable.  
• The issues raised by the auditor general in the year 2015/2016 has been resolved and the portfolio of 
evidence is available for audit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
21. SUMMARY OF 2016/17 TARGETS AND PERFOMANCE RESULTS 
 
TOTAL TARGETS              : 168 
TOTAL TARGETS MET             : 131= 79% 
TOTAL TARGETS NOT MET                : 16 
22. Conclusion 
 
The organization has achieved 78.9% of the total Annual performance score and it shows an improvement and much 
effort to improve the overall situation during this financial year as compared to previous   report which is 78.3%.  
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IDP 

Alignment

National KPA Strategy Key 

Performance  

Indicator 

Unit of 

measure

Demand Baseline 

2015/2016 

Actuals

ACTUAL CORRECTIVE  

MEASURE 

ACTUAL CORRECTIVE  

MEASURE 

CORPORATE SERVICES
Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance 

and 

accountability 

of the 

municipality

 To ensure the 

proper financial 

management

Date of Preparation 

and submission of 

Departmental 

procurement plan

Date 30-Aug 30-Aug 0 N/A

Preparation and 

submission of 

departmental 

procurement 

plan and submit 

by  30 August

R 0.00 Preparation and 

submission of 

departmental 

procurement 

plan w as 

prepared and 

submitted to 

supply  chain

N/A Departmental 

procurement plan 

not prepared and 

not submitted due 

to non 

understanding 

and lack of 

submission 

Target w ill be met in 

the nex t financial 

y ear by  30 August 

2017 after the 

w orkshop to be 

conducted by  

supply  chain office 

to all head of 

CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A

Copy of 

Procurement 

plan and Proof 

for the 

submission

Page 76 ref 

10.6

Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

To improve 

service 

delivery and 

the image of 

the 

municipality

Eployment equity 

plan adopted 

and 

implemented

Number of 

people form 

employment 

equity target 

groups 

employed in the 

three highest 

levels of 

management in 

complience 

with approved 

equity plan

Number

1 5 0

3000/3040/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

Approval of 

the Eployment 

equity plan by 

council.by 30 

June 2017

R 0.00 The equity 

plan was not 

completed 

and  

submitted to 

council by  30 

June  2016

Target w ill be met in 

the nex t financial 

y ear

The equity plan 

was not 

completed and  

submitted to 

council by  30 

June  2017 due 

to lack of 

capacity to 

design a plan

Target w ill be met in 

the nex t financial 

y ear w ith the 

support of labour 

w ho w ill conduct a 

w orkshop to HR 

staff.The plan w ill be 

finalised by  30 

September 2017

CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Copy of 

employment 

equity plan 

and council 

aproval

Page 76 ref 

10.6

Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

Strengthen and 

improve 

employment 

equity in the 

municipality

To implement 

employment 

equity plan

Number of 

women 

appointed in 

management 

position

Number

1 1 0

3000/3040/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

Number of 

women 

appointed in 

the 

Manegerial 

positions by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00 The Chief 

finance officer 

and director 

community 

service was 

appointed 

both are 

males.

The females who 

applied for these 

posts did not 

qualify.

The community  

serv ice post that 

w as av ailable 

w as not filled 

.due to non 

qualify ing 

applicants 

The post w ill be 

filled in the nex t 

financial y ear.The 

post w ill be 

adv ertised in the first 

quarter

CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Appointment 

letter, ID Copy 

and EE Plan 

Page 76 ref 

10.6

Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

To improve 

service 

delivery and 

the image of 

the 

municipality

To develop the 

Human 

Resources 

Development 

Strategy

Date of 

development of 

HR Strategy

Date

1 5 0

3000/3040/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

To develop the 

Human 

Resources 

Development 

Strategy by 30 

June 2017

R 65 000.00  4 out of 5 HR 

policies 

dev eloped and 

aprov ed by  

council , 

attraction and 

retention 

strategy , leav e 

policy , 

cellphone policy  

and trav elling 

Equiy  Plan and 

customer care 

policy  not 

dev eloped 

Human 

Resources 

Development 

Strategy was 

approved on 

the 27th of  

June 2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Copy of HR 

Strategy

POE 

Required

Responsible 

department

PERFOMANCE REPORT FOR 

2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR

PERFOMANCE REPORT FOR 

2016/2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

PERFORMANCE COMPARISONS WardStrategic 

Objective

Backlogs Vote 

Number

2016/2017  

Annual Budget 

2016/2017 

Annual Target



92 

 

 

Pg.77ref.10.8 Municipal 

Good 

governance

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To review 

municipal 

policies annually

Number of 

policies 

reviewed

Number

4 6 0

NONE Review of 2 HR 

polices. 

(Leave policy 

and 

Recruitment & 

Selection 

Policy) by 30 

June 2017

The cellphone 

policy, car and 

allowance  

policy was 

approved by 

council 

N/A The Leave and 

the 

Recruitment & 

Selection 

Policy was 

approved  by 

council and 

workshop to 

staff members 

was conducted 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Council 

Resolutions, 

Copy of 

approved 

policies 

Pg.69ref.10.4 Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

To improve 

service 

delivery and 

the image of 

the 

municipality

To review 

municipal 

organogram 

Date Date 

1 1 0

NONE Approval of 

Organogram 

by 30 March 

2017

N/A The 

organogram 

for 2016/2017 

was adopted 

by council on 

the 24 March 

2016

N/A The final 

Organogram 

was approved   

on the 28th of 

March 2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Council 

Resolutions, 

Copy of 

approved 

organogram

Pg.76ref.10.6 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

% spent on 

implementing 

Workplace Skills 

Plan (WSP)

Percentage 

spent on 

implementation 

of WSP per 

quarter 

Percentage 

100% 100% 0

4400/4475/0

205/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

100% of  

budgeted 

spent on 

implementing 

Workplace 

Skills Plan by 

31 June  2017

R 500 000.00 R600 000 

budget and 

R194 000 

spent on WSP 

which is 32%

N/A 20% of  budget 

was spent on 

implementing 

the Workplace 

Skills Plan  by 

30 June 2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Expenditure 

report on 

training vote 

Pg.76ref.10.6 Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

Organizational 

skills 

development 

and capacity 

building

Number of 

beneficiaries 

trained as per 

Workplace Skills 

Plan 

Number of 

beneficiaries 

trained 

Number 

40 5 0

4400/4475/0

205/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

30 

beneficiaries 

trained as per 

workplace 

skills plan by 

30 June 2017

21  

beneficiaries 

trained as per 

workplace 

skills plan

N/A 10 

beneficiaries 

were  trained 

as per 

workplace 

skills plan by 

30 June 2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Training 

report, proof of 

payment and 

attendance 

registers

Pg.76ref.10.7 Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

Organizational 

skills 

development 

and capacity 

building

To implement 

Employee 

Assistance 

Programme (EAP)

Number of 

programs 

implemented

Number

2 1 0

4400/4420/0

205/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To implement 

the 

Organizational 

skills 

development 

and capacity 

building by 30 

June 2017

R 190 000 Two EAP 

(wellness 

program) 

programs 

implemented

N/A No EAP 

program was 

implemented 

during quarter 

this financial 

year due to 

lack of funds.

The  EAP programs 

w ill implemented  in 

the nex t financial 

y ear.The 

municipality  has a 

rolling plan of 

implementing 

rev enue 

CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Attendance 

registers,EAP 

Report 

Pg.76ref.10.7 Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

Organizational 

skills 

development 

and capacity 

building

To conduct Job 

evaluation to all 

staff members

Date Job 

evaluation to all 

staff members

Date 

1 0 0

Develop and 

approve Job 

description to 

all staff 

members  by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00 This target w as 

not planned for 

this financial 

y ear

N/A The evaluation 

of Job 

descriptions  

started but not 

finalised by 30 

June 2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Job evaluation 

evaluation 

report

Pg.63ref.10.1

.1

Municipal 

Good 

governance

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

 To hold Council 4 

meetings per 

annum.

Number of 

council meeting 

held

Number

4 4 0

4400/4421/0

101/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

4 Council 

meetings to 

be held by 30 

June 2017

R 0.00 4 Council 

meeting with 

agenda 

distributed 5 

Days prior to 

Council 

Meeting was 

held by 30 

N/A 4 Council 

meeting was 

held  by 30 

June 2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Council 

Agenda, 

Minutes and 

Resolutions

Pg.64.ref 

10.1.2

Municipal 

Good 

governance

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

 To hold 12 ExCo 

meetings per 

annum.

Number of EXCO 

meeting held

Number

12 12 0

NONE 12 EXCO 

meetings by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00 12 EXCO 

meeting held 

with agenda 

distributed 5 

Days prior to 

Council 

Meeting by 30 

June 2016

N/A 12 EXCO 

meeting held 

with agenda 

distributed 5 

Days prior to 

Council 

Meeting by 30 

June 2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A ExCo agenda, 

Minutes and 

and 

attendance 

register

Pg.63ref.10.1

.1

Municipal 

Good 

governance

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To approve 4 

resolution  

registers per 

annum

Number of 

resolution 

registers 

submitted to 

Council 

Number

4 4 0

NONE 4 resolution 

registers 

submitted to 

Council by 30 

June 2017

R 0.00 2 resolution 

registers 

submitted to 

Council by 30 

june 2016

N/A 2 resolution 

register was 

submitted to 

Council  by 30 

June 2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Resolution 

Register and 

Signed Council 

minutes

Pg.94 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To ensure 

perfomance of 

contracted 

service provider

Number of 

Quorterly 

perfomance 

report

Number

4 4 0

NONE To implement 

effective 

contract 

management 

throuh 

monitoring 

and 

evaluation of 

service 

providers on 

quortely 

R 0.00  The 

perfomance of 

the   service 

provider were 

evaluated and 

monitored  on 

quortely basis

N/A Service 

provider 

perfomance 

was  monitored 

and evaluated 

on quortely 

basis  

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A quarterly 

perfomance 

report of 

contracted 

service 

provider to 

council

Page 14 ref 

1.7.2

Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To maintain 

server room by 

June 2017

Date to 

maintained  of 

server room, 

fire suppression 

system, 

airconditioning 

and UPS

Date

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0

4200/4220/0

205/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

To maintain 

server room, 

fire 

suppression 

system, 

airconditionin

g and UPS by 

30 June 2017

R 1 000 000.00 The server 

room, fire 

suppression 

system and  

airconditionin

g were 

maintained 

and UPS not 

procured due 

to insufficient 

budget

UPS to be 

procured in the 

next financial 

year

Server room, 

fire 

suppression 

system, 

airconditioning 

maintained 

30June 2017

UPS to be 

procured in the 

next financial 

year

CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Invoices,  

Maintainance 

report



93 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To ensure 

administrative 

oversight

Number of  

Local  Labour 

forum meetings 

Number

4 4 0

NONE 4 Local  

Labour forum 

meetings by 

meeting by 31 

June 2017

Four local labour 

forum w as held 

by  30 June 

2016

N/A One out of four  

Local  Labour 

forum meeting  

was held  by in 

November 

2016

The letter has been 

submitted to the 

speaker to report 

non attendance of 

councillors and the 

committee w ill be 

rev iew ed in the nex t 

financial y ear

OMM N/A Minutes and 

Attendance 

register 

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To Decrease 

municipal IT risks 

through risk 

management

Date of Sitting of 

steering 

committee 

Date

1 0 0

4200/4220/0

205/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

Sitting of 4 IT 

steering 

committee 

meetings by 

30 June 2017

 IT steering 

committee 

and terms of 

reference has 

been 

established 

and two 

steering 

committee 

meetings 

were held on 

25 February 

and June 

2016.

N/A 4  Sitting of IT  

steering 

Committee 

was held  by 30 

June  2017

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A  Attendance 

register and 

udated  risk 

register 

Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To review  IT 

policies-1. User 

Accouunt and 

Password 

Management 

Policy  2.ICT 

Disaster 

Recovery Plan 3. 

ICT  Change 

Management 

Poilicy and 

Procedure 4. ICT 

Third Party 

Management 

Policy 5. Patch 

Management 

Policy 6. Physical 

Access and 

Computer Room 

Envir

Date to conduct 

workshop and 

implement   IT 

policies-

date

6  IT polices 6 IT Polices 0

4200/4220/0

205/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

To conduct 

workshop and 

implement   IT 

policies-1. 

User Accouunt 

and Password 

Management 

Policy  2.ICT 

Disaster 

Recovery Plan 

3. ICT  Change 

Management 

Poilicy and 

Procedure 4. 

ICT Third Party 

Management 

Policy 5. Patch 

Management 

Policy 6. 

Physical Acces

The IT policies-

1. Back-up 

Procedure 2. 

Disaster 

Recovery Plan 

3. IT 

Governance 

Framework 4. 

Change 

management 

control.were 

reviewed and 

adopted by 

council

N/A The workshop 

for the  

implementatio

n of    IT policies-

1. User 

Accouunt and 

Password 

Management 

Policy  2.ICT 

Disaster 

Recovery Plan 

3. ICT  Change 

Management 

Poilicy and 

Procedure 4. 

ICT Third Party 

Management 

Policy 5. Patch 

Management 

Policy 6. 

Physical Acces 

was conducted

N/A CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Council 

resolution and 

copies of IT 

policies

Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

 To purchase the 

microsoft volume 

licences 

Date to 

purchase  

microsoft 

volume licences 

Date

100 users 0 0

4200/4220/0

205/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

 To purchase 

the microsoft 

volume 

licences 

(Microsoft 

office and 

windows 

operating 

licence by 30 

June 2017

R 200 000.00 The  purchase 

of  the 

microsoft 

volume 

licences 

(Microsoft 

office and 

windows 

operating 

licence not 

done due to 

insuffitient 

budget

The  purchase of  

the microsoft 

volume licences 

(Microsoft office 

and windows 

operating licence 

is  budget for the 

next financial 

year

  Microsoft 

volume 

licences 

(Microsoft 

office and 

windows 

operating 

licence not 

purchased

The  purchase of  

the microsoft 

volume licences 

(Microsoft office 

and windows 

operating licence 

is  budget for the 

next financial 

year

CORPORATE 

SERVICE

N/A Report on the 

upgrade of 

Software and 

licences  and 

invoice
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           PERFOMANCE MANAGEMENT
Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To adopt and 

implement a 

Performance 

Management 

Framework

Date to adopt 

perfomance 

management 

framework

Date

30-Jun-16 29 May 2016 0

NONE Implementati

on of 

Performance 

Management 

Framework  by 

30 June 2017 

to all staff 

members

R 0.00 The 

Perfomance 

management 

framework 

reviewed and 

adopted by 

council by 30 

June 2016

N/A Performance 

Management 

Framework 

was on 

implemented 

to section 

54/56 

Managers and  

was not 

implemented 

to all staff 

members

Target to be 

implemented in 

the next financial 

year to all staff 

members

OMM N/A Attendance 

register and 

asessment 

conducted

Pg.215-219 Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To have quarterly 

performance 

reports 

submitted to 

Council 

Number of 

reports 

submitted 

Number

4 4 0

NONE 4 quarterly 

Performance 

reports 

submitted to 

Council by 30 

June 2017

R 0.00 4 quarterly 

Performance 

reports 

submitted to 

Council  by 30 

June 2016

N/A 4th  quarter 

Performance 

reports was 

submitted to 

Council on the 

27th June 2017

N/A OMM N/A SDBIP for the 

year 01 July 

2017 to 30 

June 2018 and 

SDBIP and a 

signed 

resolution 

certificate 

Pg.94 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To ensure 

perfomance of 

contracted 

service provider

Number of 

Quorterly 

perfomance 

report

Number

4 4 0

NONE To implement 

effective 

contract 

management 

throuh 

monitoring 

and 

evaluation of 

service 

providers on 

quortely basis

R 0.00 Service 

provider 

perfomance 

was 

monitored 

and evaluated 

of quortely 

basis 

N/A Service 

provider 

perfomance 

was monitored 

and evaluated 

on quortely 

basis 

N/A OMM N/A quarterly 

perfomance 

report of 

contracted 

service 

provider to 

council

Pg.215-219 Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To adopt and 

implement a 

Performance 

Management 

Systems annually

Number of 

performance 

agreements for 

senior 

managers 

signed and 

submitted to 

CoGTA 

Number

5 5 0

NONE 5 performance 

agreements 

for senior 

managers 

signed by 31 

July 2016 and 

submitted to 

CoGTA by 31 

August 2016

R 0.00 Four 

performance 

agreements 

for senior 

managers 

(Two 

agreements 

for Director 

Corporate 

service and 

Technical 

Service signed 

by 31 July 

2015 and Two 

agreements 

for Director 

Community 

service and 

CFO signed in 

February 

2016) and 

submitted to 

CoGTA 

N/A Only four 

perfomance 

agreements 

signed by 31 

August 2016

The agreement of 

Municipal 

Manager not 

signed because 

he was not yet 

appointed in 

2016/2017 

financial year

OMM N/A Copies of 

signed 

performance 

agreements

Pg.215-219 Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To Review of 

AUDIT Plan

Date of Audit 

plan adopted by 

council

Date 2016/2017 

Audit plan

2015/2016 

Audit plan

0 4400/4405/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To Review of 

AUDIT Plan by 

31December 

2016

R 700 000 The Audit plan 

was reviewed 

in october 

2015 And 

audit 

committee 

terms of 

reference 

reviewed on 

the 24 March 

2016

N/A The annual 

audit plan was 

reviewed by 

Audit 

committee in 

March 2017

N/A OMM N/A Copy of Audit 

plan and 

Council 

resolution

Pg.215-219 Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To prepare Mid-

year perfomance 

report as per 

section 46 of MSA

Date  of reports 

submitted on 

performance in 

terms of section 

46 and section 

47 of the  MSA

Date 25-Jan-17 25-Jan-16 0 NONE 1 reports 

submitted on 

performance 

in terms of 

section 46 and 

section 47 of 

the  MSA by 25 

January 2017

R 0.00 Midyear 

perfomance 

report 

submitted to 

council on the 

25 Janauary 

2016

N/A Midyear 

perfomance 

report 

submitted to 

council on the 

25 Janauary 

2017

N/A OMM N/A Council 

resolution, 

Mid-Year 

performance 

Report  

Pg.144.Ref.1

4.4

Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To hold the 

Municipal 

excellence 

awards

Date of 

Municipal 

excellence 

awards

Date Dec 2016 Dec 2015 0 4400/4405/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To hold the 

Municipal 

employees 

excellence 

awards by 31 

Dec 2016

R 200 000 The Municipal 

employees 

excellence 

awards was 

held in 

December 

2015

N/A The Municipal 

employees 

excellence 

awards was 

held in 

December 

2016

N/A OMM N/A Attendance 

register,photo

s and list of 

awarded 

people

Pg.144.Ref.1

4.4

Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To hold quortely 

Audit committee 

meetings

Number of audit 

committee 

meetings

Number 4 4 0 4400/4405/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To hold 4 audit 

committee 

meetings by 

the 31 June 

2017

R 546 000.00 4 audit 

committee 

meeting was 

held on the 

following 

dates(21 

August ,10 

November 

2015 , 08 

March 2016 

and 24 May 

2016)

N/A Audit 

Committee 

meeting was 

held in August 

2016 

,December 

2016 ,February 

2017on the 

25th of April 

2017

N/A OMM N/A Minutes and 

Attendance 

register 

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To ensure 

administrative 

oversight

Number of 

MPAC meetings

Number 4 4 0 4400/4405/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

4 MPAC 

meetings held 

by end of each 

quarter

R 0.00 4 MPAC 

meetings was 

held 

N/A Four MPAC 

meeting was 

held the last 

meeting was 

held on the 

22nd of  June 

2017

N/A OMM N/A Minutes and 

Attendance 

register 

Pg.145 

Ref14.6

Financiial 

Management 

and viability

To Decrease 

municipal risks 

through risk 

management

Tto Updated risk 

register and 

Mitigation 

reports

Number of risk 

management 

commitee 

meetings

Number 4 4 4 NONE 4 risk 

management 

commitee 

meetings by 

end of 4th 

quarter

R 0.00 The three risk 

management 

committee 

was held  by 

30 June 2016

N/A Risk 

management 

commitee 

meetings not 

held

Risk meeting 

scheduled to sit 

in the next 

financial year due 

to lack of staff in 

Monitoring office

OMM N/A Minutes, 

Attendance 

register and 

updated risk 

register

Pg.215-219 Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To Submission of 

Annual report to 

Cogta,Treasury 

and AG 

Date of 

submission of 

annual report to 

AG

Date 30-Aug-16 30-Aug-15 0 4400/4451/0

191/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

 Annual Report 

submitted to 

Council and 

treasury by 31 

March 2017

R 0.00 The Draft 

Annual Report 

submitted to 

AG by 30 

August 2015 

and final 

annual report 

submitted to 

council on 24 

March 2016

N/A The Draft 

Annual Report 

submitted to 

AG by 30 

August 2016 

and final 

annual report 

submitted to 

council on 28 

March 2017

N/A OMM N/A Copy of final 

report and 

MPAC 

oversight 

report

Pg.145 

Ref14.6

Financiial 

Management 

and viability

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To implement 

Effective risk 

management by 

updated risk 

register

Date of 

adoption of the 

risk register

Date 30-Sep-16 2015/16 0 NONE 1 adopted risk 

register by 31 

December 

2016

R 0.00 The risk 

register was 

reviewed by  

on 07 

December 

2015

N/A The risk 

register was 

reviewed by  on 

December 

2016

N/A OMM N/A Council 

resolution and 

Risk register 

and 

attendance 

register for risk 

meetings

Pg.145 

Ref14.6

Cross cutting 

interv entions

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To prevent 

internal 

fraudulent 

activities

Number of  

fraud and 

prevention  

meetings and 

compaigns

Number 2 2 0 NONE To facilitate  

fraud and 

prevention 

strategy by 31 

June 2017

R 0.00 The  fraud and 

prevention 

strategy 

reviewed by 

council on  31 

June  2016 

and fraud 

awareness 

compaigns 

conducted on 

quartely 

bases

N/A One Fraud and 

prevention 

awareness 

compaign was 

held by 30 June 

2017

N/A OMM N/A Atendance 

register and 

copy of 

awareness 

document. 
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INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

1.1 To ensure the 

proper financial 

management

Date of Preparation 

and submission of 

Departmental 

procurement plan

Date 1 1 0 N/A

Preparation and 

submission of 

departmental 

procurement 

plan by  30 

August 2017

R 0.00

The 

Procurement 

plans w ere 

prepared and 

submitted to 

supply  chain in 

August 2015

N/A

The Procurement 

plan not prepared 

and submitted to 

supply  chain 

The procurement 

plans w ill be 

prepared in the nex t 

financial y ear

OMM

None
Proof for the 

submission

Page 146 ref 

14.8

Good 

gorvernance, 

community 

participation, 

and ward 

committee 

systems

Enhance 

community 

participation 

in governance

To Prepare 

2016/2017  

Municipal IDP 

Date of 

2016/2017 IDP 

Adopted by 

council 

Date 2016/2017 

IDP

2015/2016 IDP 0 NONE To  adopt 

2017/2018 

IDP by 30 June 

2017 and 

process plan

R 0.00 The Final 

2016/2017 

IDP adopted 

by council on 

the 28 June 

2016 IDP, 

Budget and 

PMS process 

plan compiled 

and adopted 

by MANCO

N/A Final 

2017/2018 IDP 

was  adopted 

by council in 28 

June 2017 and 

the process 

plan was 

adopted in 

august 2016

N/A OMM Council 

resolution and 

IDP Document 

and process 

plan

Pg.140-142 Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To hold the  

Municipal state 

of the Municipal 

address

Date Municipal 

state of adress

Date 1 1 0 4400/4412/0

102EQSR/NO

NE/ADMN

To hold the  

Municipal 

state of the 

Municipal 

address by 

August 2017

0.00 The Municipal 

state of the 

Municipal 

address was 

held on 

February 2015

N/A The Municipal 

state of the 

Municipal 

address was 

held on August 

2016

N/A OMM Attendance 

register and 

copy of the 

adress

Pg.142 

Ref.14.2.3

Good 

gorvernance, 

community 

participation, 

and ward 

committee 

systems

Enhance 

community 

participation 

in governance

To promote 

effective public 

participation

Number of 

Public 

Participation 

sittings

Number 4 3 0 4400/4486/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

4 Public 

Participation 

sittings by 30 

June 2017

0.00 4 Public 

Participation 

sitting held by 

30 June 2016

N/A 4 Public 

Participation 

sitting held by 

30 June 2017

N/A OMM Minutes and 

Attendance 

register, 

Procurement 

documents 

Pg.142 

Ref.14.2.3

Good 

gorvernance, 

community 

participation, 

and ward 

committee 

systems

Enhance 

community 

participation 

in governance

To promote 

effective public 

participation

Number of 

regulated public 

participation 

road shows

Number 4 10 0 4400/4486/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

4 regulated 

public 

participation 

road shows by 

30 June 2017

R 1 500 000.00 Two regulated  

public 

participation 

road shows  

held (The first 

road show 

was held on 

the 27 

February 2016 

and second 

road show 

was held on 

June 2016

N/A 4 regulated 

public 

participation 

road show held 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A OMM Photos, 

expenditure 

report and 

attendance 

register

Pg.144. Good 

gorvernance, 

community 

participation, 

and ward 

committee 

systems

Enhance 

community 

participation 

in governance

To establish 

ward 

committees

Number of 

functional ward 

committees 

Number 14 14 0 4400/4446/

MSIG/NONE/

ADMN

To hold 

quartely ward 

committee 

meetings in 14  

wards by 30 

June 2017

13 Ward 

Committees 

Functional 

functional in 

Nkandla 

Municipality

To be corrected 

by the New 

council in 

2016/2017

14  ward 

commitees 

were 

established 

and are 

functional and 

meetings are 

held on 

quortely basis 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A

OMM Attendance 

Registers, 

Minutes of 

meetings and 

Proof of 

payment

Pg.144. Good 

gorvernance, 

community 

participation, 

and ward 

committee 

systems

Enhance 

community 

participation 

in governance

To establish 

functional ward 

committees

Date of 

Adoption of 

Ward 

Committee 

Functionality 

policy 

Date 30-Jun-16 04 December 

2015

0 4400/4446/

MSIG/NONE/

ADMN

Ward 

Committee 

Policy 

adopted by 

Council by 31 

June 2017

N/a The Ward 

Committee 

Policy finaly 

revied not 

done   by 

Council by 31 

June 2016

To be finalised by 

the New council 

in 2016/2017

Ward 

Committee 

Policy was 

adopted by 

Council in 

September  

2017

N/A OMM Council 

Resolution, 

and Copy 

Policy 

document 

Pg.144. Good 

gorvernance, 

community 

participation, 

and ward 

committee 

systems

Enhance 

community 

participation 

in governance

IDP Forum 

Meeting 

Number of IDP 

Forum meetings

Number 4 4 0 NONE 4 IDP Forum 

meeting 

conducted in 

third quarter 

and fourth 

quarter by 30 

June 2017

Four IDP 

Forum 

Meeting were 

held  by 30 

June 2016

N/A 4 IDP Forum 

Meeting held 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A OMM Minutes and 

Attendance 

register 

Pg.144. Good 

gorvernance, 

community 

participation, 

and ward 

committee 

systems

Enhance 

community 

participation 

in governance

To hold reguler 

IDPSC meetings

Number of 

IDPSC meetings 

held

Number 4 4 0 NONE 4 IDPSC 

meetings held 

by 30 June 

2017 

4 IDPSC 

meetings 

were held  by 

30 June 2016

N/A 4 DPSC 

meetings held  

by 30 June 

2017

N/A OMM Minutes and 

Attendance 

register 

Page 14 ref 

1.7.7

Good 

gorvernance, 

community 

participation, 

and ward 

committee 

systems

To ensure 

efficicient and 

effective 

internal and 

external 

communicatio

n

To review, adopt 

and implement 

community 

participation 

strategy

Date of 

adoption of the 

community 

participation 

strategy

date 2016/17 

Public 

participation 

strategy

2015/16 Public 

participation 

strategy

0 NONE Date of 

adoption of 

the 

community 

participation 

strategy by 31 

June 2017

 The 

community 

participation 

strategy not 

adopted by 

council  by 31 

June 2016

To be finalised by 

the New council 

in 2016/2017

Community 

participation 

strategy was 

adopted in 

June 2017

N/A OMM Council 

Resolution & 

copy of 

community 

participation 

strategy
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               COMMUNICATIONS
Pg.140-141

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve 

service 

delivery and 

the image of 

the 

municipality

To improve 

customer care by 

conforming to 

Batho Pele 

Principles

Development of 

the Complaints 

handling 

procedure 

manual

date 2016/2017 0 0 NONE To 

development  

complaints 

handling 

procedure 

manual by 2nd 

quarter (31 

December 

2016

R 0.00 The  

Complaints 

handling 

procedure 

manual  not 

developed 

The customer 

care employee 

will be appointed 

in the next 

financial year for 

the development 

of Complaints 

handling manual

Complaints 

handling policy 

was developed  

by 30 June 

2017

N/A OMM Council 

Resolution and 

copy of 

complaints 

handling 

manual

Pg.140-142 Good 

governance 

and 

community 

participation 

and ward 

committee 

systems

To ensure 

efficicient and 

effective 

internal and 

external 

communicatio

n

To have   mayoral 

media slots held

Number of  

mayoral media 

slots held

Number 7 7 0 4400/4412/0

102EQSR/NO

NE/ADMN

seven (7) 

mayoral 

media slots 

held by 30 

June 2017

R 1 060 000.00 Seven Local 

radio station 

media slots 

were held by 

30 June 2016

N/A Seven  Local 

radio station 

media slots 

was not held by 

30 June 2017

N/A OMM Official Order

Pg.140-142 Good 

governance 

and 

community 

participation 

and ward 

committee 

systems

To ensure 

efficicient and 

effective 

internal and 

external 

communicatio

n

To promote 

effective public 

participation

Number of 

public editorial 

page  issued

Number 12 12 0 4400/4412/0

102EQSR/NO

NE/ADMN

To  publisise 

municipal 

programes 

with 12 press 

media by 30 

June 2017

R 395 000.00 12 Editorial 

page and out 

door 

advertising 

publisised by 

30 June 2016

N/A 6 Editorial page 

and out door 

advertising 

publisised by 

30 June 2017

N/A OMM invoice and 

copy of article

Pg.140-142 Good 

governance 

and 

community 

participation 

and ward 

committee 

systems

To ensure 

efficicient and 

effective 

internal and 

external 

communicatio

n

To have 

municipal 

newsletters 

published

Number of 

issues of 

municipal 

newsletters 

published

Number 2 bimonthly 0 4400/4412/0

102EQSR/NO

NE/ADMN

four (4) issues 

of municipal 

newsletters 

published by  

30 June 2017 

and Purchase 

of 

promotional 

items

R200 000 Two issues on 

a municipal 

newsletters  

was published 

by 30 June 

2016

N/A Two issue on 

municipal 

news letter by 

30 June 2017

N/A OMM Copy of the 

newsletter 

published and 

GRN

Pg.140-142 Good 

governance 

and 

community 

participation 

and ward 

committee 

systems

To ensure 

efficicient and 

effective 

internal and 

external 

communicatio

n

To have adopted 

events calender

Date of 

adoption of 

events calender

Date 2016/2017 

Calender of 

events

2015/2016 

Calender of 

events

0 NONE Adoption of 

events 

calendar by 

EXCO by 30 

September 

2016

Events 

calendar 

adopted by 

EXCO  by 30 

July  2015 

N/A Events 

calendar 

adopted by 

EXCO  by 30 July  

2016

N/A OMM EXCO 

resolution and 

Calendar of 

events

Pg.140-142 Good 

governance 

and 

community 

participation 

and ward 

committee 

systems

To ensure 

efficicient and 

effective 

internal and 

external 

communicatio

n

To Review of 

Communiation 

Strategy and 

Policy

Date of review 

of 

communication 

strategy and 

policy

Date 31-Mar-16 30 June 2015 0 4400/4412/0

102EQSR/NO

NE/ADMN

Review of 

Communicatio

n Strategy and 

Policy by 31 

March  2017

R 0.00 The  

Communicatio

n Strategy and 

Policy not 

reviewed by 

31 March 

2016

The 

Communication 

Strategy and 

Policy will be 

reviewed in the 

next financial 

year 2016/2017

Communicatio

n Strategy and 

Policy  

reviewed by 31 

March 2017
N/A

OMM Council 

Resolution and 

copy of 

Communicicati

on Strategy 

and Policy
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         SPECIAL PROGRAMMES
Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To have 14 

functional ward 

Aids Council

Number of Local 

AIDS Council ( 

LAC) meetings

Number 56 56 0 4400/4433/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To hold 

Quortetly 

Wards aids 

council(14 

wards to have 

meetings on 

by 30 June 

2017

0.00 Quortetly 

Wards aids 

council(14 

wards were 

held by 30 

June 2016 

N/A Quortetly 

Wards aids 

council(14 

wards were 

held by 30 June 

2017

N/A OMM Procurement 

documents, 

Attendance 

registers 

Pg110-114 Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To develop 

comprehensive 

response to 

HIV/AIDS

Number of Local 

AIDS Council ( 

LAC) meetings

Number 4 4 Local AIDS 

Coucil 

meetings

0 4400/4433/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

4 Local Aids 

Council ( LACl) 

by 30 June 

2017

R 0 Four Local 

Aids Coucil ( 

LAC) were held 

in June 2016

N/A 4 Local Aids 

Coucil ( LAC) 

held in June 

2017

N/A OMM Procurement 

documents, 

Attendance 

registers 

Pg110-114 Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To develop 

comprehensive 

response to 

HIV/AIDS

Number  HIV/ 

AIDS campaigns

Number 2 2 0 4400/4433/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

2 HIV & AIDS 

Awareness 

Campaigns by 

30 June 2017

R 293 000 One  HIV/AIDS 

Awareness 

campaigns

The target will be 

achieved in the 

next financial 

year

2 HIV/AIDS 

Awareness 

campaign was 

held by June 

2017

N/A OMM Procurement 

documents 

and 

Attendance 

register 

Pg110-114 Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To monitor 

service delivery 

by engaging 

relevant 

stakeholders

Number of 

operation 

sukumasakhe 

program

Number 4 4 0 4400/4433/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To implement 

operation 

sukumasakhe 

program by 

providing 

support to 

needy families 

by 30 June 

2017

R 175 000 intervention 

to families 

identified with 

sukumasakhe 

program was 

held by 30 

June 2016

N/A intervention to 

families 

identified with 

sukumasakhe 

program was 

held by 30 June 

2017

N/A OMM List of 

beneficiaries, 

proof of 

purchase

Pg110-114 Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To monitor 

service delivery 

by engaging 

relevant 

stakeholders

Number of Local 

Task Team (LTT) 

meetings 

Number 12 12 Local Task 

Team( LTT) 

meeting held 

0 4400/4433/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

12 Local Task 

Team ( LTT) 

meetings by 

30 June 2017

R 89 000 Nine Local 

Task Team ( 

LTT) meetings 

by 30 June 

2016 

N/A 9 Local Task 

Team ( LTT) 

meetings held 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A OMM Attendance 

registers  & 

procument 

documets 

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To have a 

functional 

Disability Forum

Number of 

disability 

awareness 

campaigns

Number 4 1 0 4400/4418/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

4 Disability 

Awareness 

Campaigns by 

30 June 2017

R 87 500.00

four  Disability 

Awareness 

Campaign by 

30 September 

2015

N/A 1 Disability 

Awareness 

Campaign not 

held by 31 

March 2016 

due to 

insuffient 

budget

This will be 

budgeted for the 

next financial 

year

Procurement 

documents  

Attendance 

register 

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To have a 

functional 

Disability Forum

Date to 

Establish 

Nkandla 

disability Forum

Date 31-Mar-17 0 0 4400/4418/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

Established 

Nkandla 

disability 

Forum by 31 

March 2017

Nkandla 

disability 

Forum not 

established  

The Municipality 

has a standing 

forum that is 

inline with 

council and will 

be re established 

after a new 

council

Nkandla 

disability 

Forum not 

established by 

31 March 2017

To be established 

in the next 

financial year

OMM Procurement 

documents  

Attendance 

register 

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To Establish 

Nkandla 

Functional 

Wheelchair 

Repair Centre by 

30 June 2015

Date to 

Establish 

Nkandla 

Functional 

Wheelchair 

Repair Centre 

by 30 June 2015

Date 30-Jun-17 0 0 4400/4418/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

Establish 

Nkandla 

Functional 

Wheelchair 

Repair Centre 

by 30 June 

2016

Nkandla 

Functional 

Wheelchair 

Repair Centre 

was not 

established

N/A Nkandla 

Functional 

Wheelchair 

Repair Centre 

was not 

established

N/A OMM Copy of invoice

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To prepare Local 

Plan of Action for 

disabled 

adopted by 

Council

Date of Local 

Plan of Action 

for disabled 

adopted by 

Council

Date 30-Jun-17 0 0 4400/4418/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

1 Local Plan of 

action for 

disabled by 31 

December 

1 Local Plan of 

action for 

disabled held 

by 31 Dec 

2016

N/A 1 Local Plan of 

action for 

disabled held 

by 31 Dec 2016

N/A OMM Procurement 

documents, 

Council 

Resolution,Co

py of the Plan 

of Action 

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To implement 

three childrens 

program 

Number  of 

mplement three 

childrens 

program

Number 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15 0 4400/4462/0

102/EQRS/N

ONE/ADMN

To implement 

three 

childrens 

program by 31 

June 2017

R 600 000.00 1 Local Plan of 

action for 

children held 

by 31 Dec 

2016

N/A ECD equipment 

not  purchased

Target to be 

implemented in 

the next financial 

year

OMM

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5
Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To  purchased 

assertive devices 

for disabled 

Number of 

purchased 

assertive 

devices  for 

disabled

Number 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4418/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

Purchasing 

100 assertive 

devices for 

disable by 31 

March 2017

R 150 000.00

 100 assertive 

devices for 

disable was 

purchased by 

31 March 

2016

N/A 30 Assertive 

device 

purchased by 

31 March 2017

Target to be 

implemented in 

the next financial 

year

OMM Procurement 

documents, 

List of 

beneficiaries 

and photos

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To conduct 

disability 

awareness 

compaigns 

Number of 

disability 

awareness 

compaigns 

conducted 

Number 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4418/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

Conduct two 

disability 

awareness 

program

 disabilty  

aw areness 

campaign not 

held due to 

insufficient 

budget 

The compaign not 

held  and w ill be 

held in the nex t 

financial y ear

Two disability 

awareness 

held on the 7 of 

December 

2016 in ward 3 N/A

OMM Copy of invoice 

and the list of 

beneficiaries

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To prepare Local 

Plan of Action for 

disabled 

adopted by 

Council

Date of Local 

Plan of Action 

for disabled 

adopted by 

Council

Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4418/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

1 Local Plan of 

action for 

disabled by 31 

December 

1 Local Plan of 

action for 

disabled held 

by 31 Dec 

2015

N/A The Local Plan 

of action for 

disabled not 

held by 31 Dec 

2016

N/A OMM Procurement 

documents, 

Council 

Resolution,Co

py of the Plan 

of Action 

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To have a 

functional Senior 

Citizens Forum

Date of 

establishment 

of Nkandla 

Senior Citizen

Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4458/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

Establishment 

of Nkandla 

Senior  

Citizens forum 

by 31 

December  

2016

 The  Nkandla 

Senior citizen 

forum was 

established  

on 31 

September 

2015

N/A N/A N/A OMM Attendance 

Registers and 

procurement 

documents

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To provide 

gender 

empowerment

Date of Local 

Plan of Action 

for Gender 

Empowerment 

Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4429/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

1 Local Plan of 

action for 

gender 

empowermen

t by 31 

December 

R 266 000.00

1 Local Plan of 

action for 

gender 

empowermen

t  was held 31 

Dec 2015

N/A 1 Local Plan of 

action for 

gender 

empowerment  

was held 31 

Dec 2016

N/A OMM copy of local 

plan of action

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To provide 

gender 

empowerment

Number of 

Gender  events

Number 1 1 0 4400/4429/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

1 Women`s 

Day Event held

1 Womens 

Day Event held

N/A 1 Womens Day 

Event was held 

in Ducember 

2016

N/A OMM Procurement 

documents  

Attendance 

register 

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To have a 

functional Senior 

Citizens Forum

Number of  

Izimbizo  for 

Senior Citizens

Number 1 none 0 4400/4458/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

1 Imbizo for 

Senior Citizens 

(Christmas)

1 Imbizo for 

Senior Citizens 

(Christmas) 

held

N/A Imbizo for 

senior Citizen 

established

N/A OMM Attendance 

Registers and 

procurement 

documents

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To have a 

functional Senior 

Citizens Forum

Number of 

Senior citizen 

support 

programmes 

Number 6 4 poverty 

alleviation 

programmes in 

four wards 

0 4400/4458/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

6 poverty 

alleviation 

programmes 

in 6 different 

wards (Food 

Relief and 

Uniform for 

child headed 

families )

The 

Municipality 

conducted 8 

poverty 

alleviation 

programmes 

(Food Relief 

and Uniform)

N/A The 

Municipality 

conducted 8 

poverty 

alleviation 

programmes 

(Food Relief 

and Uniform)

N/A OMM Attendance 

registers and 

procurement 

documents

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To provide 

gender 

empowerment

Number of men 

and women 

trained

Number 20 None 0 4400/4429/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

 20  Men and 

women 

trained in 

skills 

development 

 25 

men/women 

trained on  

skills for self 

help and 

capacity 

development 

programs

N/A  10 

men/women 

were trained 

on  skills for 

self help and 

capacity 

development 

programs

N/A OMM Procurement 

documents  

Attendance 

register and 

copy of 

training 

manual

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

Youth 

Empowerment  

Programme

Date Youth 

Development 

Policy adopted 

by council

Date 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15 0 4400/4482/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

1  Youth 

Developmet 

Policy 

adopted by 

Council

R 300 000.00

1 Youth 

Development 

Policy 

adopted by 

Councill by 31 

December 

2015

N/a 1 Youth 

Development 

Policy adopted 

and adopted by 

Councill by 31 

December 

2016

N/A OMM Copy of Youth 

Development 

Policy and 

Council 

Resolution

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To implement 

Youth 

Empowerment  

Programme

 Number  of 

students 

supported 

through 

Mayoral tertiary 

registration 

program

Number 85 27 students 0 4400/4482/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

30Nkandla 

students 

provided with 

tertiary 

education 

study 

assistance / 

registration 

support

R 300 000.00 42  Nkandla 

students 

provided with 

tertiary 

education 

study 

assistance / 

registration 

support

N/a 30 Nkandla 

students 

provided with 

tertiary 

education 

study 

assistance / 

registration 

support

N/A OMM List of 

beneficiaries, 

proof of 

payment 

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To provide Youth 

skills 

development 

Number of  

youth provided 

with skills

Number 140 28 0 4400/4482/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

140 youth 

provided with 

skills

R 600 000.00

70 youth 

selected to do 

drivers licence 

70 youth with 

catered with 

skills(drivers 

licence) in the 

next financial 

year 2016/2017

70 youth  was 

provided with 

skills(drivers 

licence)

N/A OMM 14 wards List of 

beneficiaries, 

proof of 

payment 

Pg.119 

Ref12.6.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

To review 

Nkandla Youth 

Forum

Date Reviewed 

Nkandla Youth 

Forum

Date 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15 0 4400/4482/0

102/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

Reviewed 

Nkandla Youth 

Forum by 31 

December 

2015

Nkandla Youth 

Forum 

reviewed by 

31 December 

2015

N/A Nkandla Youth 

Forum not 

reviewed                                     

Target w ill be met in 

the nex t qauarter

OMM List of Youth 

Forum and 

attendance 

register
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         LIBRARY SERVICE
Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

1.1 To ensure the 

proper financial 

management

Date of Preparation 

and submission of 

Departmental 

procurement plan

Date 1 1 R 0.00 N/A Date of 

Preparation and 

submission of 

departmental 

procurement 

plan by  30 

August 2016

R 0.00  departmental 

procurement 

plan w ere 

prepared and 

submitted to 

supply  chain by  

30 August 2015

N/A  departmental 

procurement plan 

w ere prepared 

and submitted to 

supply  chain by  

30 August 2016

N/A COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

None Proof of 

submission (E-

mail sent report)

Pg.117-118 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To implement 

Children Holiday 

Programme

Date of Children 

event held

Date 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15 0 4400/4442/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

1 Children 

holiday event 

by 31 Dec 

2016
R 559 000

1 Children 

Holiday Event 

held on the 

8th December 

2015

N/A Children 

holiday event 

was  held by 31 

December 

2016

N/A
COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Reports with 

photos and 

attendance 

register

Pg.117-118 Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To  Library 

Orientation 

program

Number of 

Library 

Orientation 

program

Number 100 books 0 0 4400/4442/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

12 Library 

Orientation 

program by 30 

June 2017

100 Library 

books 

purchased

N/A The library 

orientation 

programme 

was held on 

the ……..

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

User survey 

forms,list of 

books to be 

purchased,pro

curement 

documents

Pg.117-118 Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To implement  

trainings for 

Reading and 

Writing Club by 

30 June 2017

Date of  

trainings for 

Reading and 

Writing Club by 

30 June 2017

Date 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 0 4400/4442/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

Two trainings 

for Reading 

and Writing 

Club by 30 

June 2017

One 

Publishing  

Skills Training 

was hekd on 

the 14th 

November 

2015

N/A one publishing 

skills training 

for the writers 

held by 31 

December 

2016

N/A
COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Procurement 

documents 

and Pictures 

attendance 

register

PUBLIC FACILITIES  MANAGEMENT 
Pg.90 

Ref.11.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To develop public 

facility 

operational plan

Date to develop 

public facility 

operational 

plan

Date 31-Mar-17 30-Dec-16 0 3800/3850/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

 Developed 

Public facility 

operational 

plan adopted 

by Council by 

31 March 

2016

R 500 000.00 Facilities 

operational 

plan drafted 

but not 

adopted by 

council 

N/A Facilities 

management 

operational   

plan prepared 

and adopted by 

council by 31 

March 2017

n/a
COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Draft 

Operational 

Plan for 

Facilities and 

Council 

Resolution  

Pg.90 

Ref.11.5

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To capacitate the 

members of 

Facilities 

management 

Committees 

through trainings

Number of  

facilities 

management  

committees 

trained

Number 27 0 0 3800/3850/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

27 Facilities 

Management 

Commitees 

trained by 30 

June 2017

27 Facilities 

Management 

Committees 

on the role of 

the 

committees in 

facilities 

management 

not done

To be done in the 

next financial 

year

27 Facilities 

Management 

Committees on 

the role of the 

committees in 

facilities 

management 

not done

To be done in the 

next financial 

year

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

14 Attendance 

Register of the 

facilities 

management 

Committte 

Members 

trained

Pg.90 

Ref.11.5

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve the 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development

To  compile  

quarterly report 

on the status of 

Public Facilities 

Number of 

reports To 

monitor the 

functionality of 

public facilities 

by compiling 

quarterly  

report on the 

status and 

functionality of 

facilities 

Number 4 0 0 3800/3850/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

4 Facilities  

Quarterly 

Reports by 30 

June 2017

R 0.00 3 Reports on 

the Status of 

Facilities was 

compiled 

N/A The report on 

the status of 

facitites was 

compiled

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Copy of the 

Report on the 

Status of 

Facilities 

Pg.90 

Ref.11.5
Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve the 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development

To establish 

public facilities 

committees

Number to 

establish public 

facilities 

committees

Number 10 14 0 3800/3850/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To establish 

10 public 

facilities 

committees 

by 30 June 

2017

5 public 

facilities  

committees

N/A 3 Public 

Facilities 

Committee 

Meeting were 

formed

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

List of public 

facility 

committee 

and 

attendance 

registers
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SPORTS AND RECREATION  
Pg.109

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve the 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development

To participate in 

District SALGA 

games

Date of District 

SALGA games 

event

Date 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15 0 4400/4468/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To Participate 

in District 

SALGA games 

by  31 

September 

R 430 000.00 Provincial 

SALGA games 

were 

attended on 

the 9th to the 

14th  

December 

2015 in 

Ilembe 

District 

N/A Provincial 

SALGA games 

attended

N/A
COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

List of 

participants, 

Pictures and 

report

Pg.109

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve the 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development

To improve 

sports through 

Nkandla Mayoral 

Cup

Date of Mayoral 

Cup tournament 

held

Date 1 1 0 4400/4468/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To have 1 

Mayoral Cup 

tournament   

held 30 June 

2017

R 1 200 000.00 The Mayoral 

Cup was 

hosted on the 

06 June 2016

N/A The  mayoral 

cup event 

planned for  30 

April 2017 was 

postponed for 

next financial 

year

The build up 

events of mayoral 

cup will start in 

quarter 4 with the 

ward selections

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Mayoral Cup 

Plan, Minutes 

and Agendas of 

meetings as 

well as 

Pictures

Pg.109

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve the 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development

Support  Nkandla 

Sports 

Federation

Number of 

sports 

federation 

supported with 

sports material

Number 10 0 0 4400/4468/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To Support  

Nkandla 

Sports 

Federation by 

30 Sept 2016

R 150 000.00 The  

Soccer,Netball

,Dance,Boxing

,athletics,che

ss,Indigeneou

s 

games,karate,

rugby,volleyba

ll supported 

with material

N/A The  

Soccer,Netball,

Dance,Boxing,a

thletics,chess,I

ndigeneous 

games,karate,r

ugby,volleyball 

supported with 

material

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Copy of invoice 

and photos

Pg.109
Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve the 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development

To improve 

sports through 

Nkandla   Horse 

Riding event

Date to  host 

one  Nkandla 

open Marathon 

Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4468/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To host one  

Nkandla open 

Marathon 

R 100 000.00 The two 

School 

Tournaments 

were held on 

the 15-16 April 

2016

N/A   Nkandla open 

Marathon was 

not conducted 

by 31 

September 

2016

This was 

postponed due to 

insufficient funds 

and will be done 

in the next 

financial year

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

14

Attendance 

Register 

,report and 

pictures.

Pg.109

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve the 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development
To host the 

Nkandla May 

Horse Riding 

event 

Date of  Nkandla 

May horse 

riding event

Date 1 1 0 4400/4468/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To have one 

Nkandla May 

horse riding 

event by 31 

May 2017

Nkandla 

Municipality 

Hosted 

Nkandla May 

horse riding  

Event on the 

N/A Nkandla May  

Horse Riding 

Event was held 

on the 26th 

May 2016

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

All wards
Agenda and 

Minutes of 

Plenary 

meetings. 

Proof of 

procurement 

of the required 

material and 

report with  

Pictures. 
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LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Pg.152Ref.15

.4

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To improve and 

sustain culture 

through cultural 

events

Number of 

cultural events 

held to promote 

pride and 

cultural dignity 

amongst youth 

of Nkandla 

Number 2 1 Cultural 

events held

0 4400/4444/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMIN

5 Cultural 

events held 

within 

Nkandla

1 250 000

Four cultural 

events held 

(uMhlanga 

Reed Dance 

event was 

held on the 

3rd to the 6th 

September 

2015,Indlamu 

was held on 

the 26th  

December 

2015 

,Umkhosi 

Womviliyelo 

(Operation 

Siyaya 

Emhlangeni) 

was held on 

the 28th and 

29th August 

2015   

Maskandi 

Festival was 

held on the 

31st October 

2015

N/A Operation 

siyaya 

emhlangeni 

and   uMhlanga 

Reed 

Dance,annual 

indlamu and 

Umkhosi 

Woselwa event 

was held by 

Nkandla Youth 

by 30 Sept 

2016

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Copy  of 

attendance 

register and 

photos

Pg.152Ref.15

.4

Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To improve and 

sustain culture 

through cultural 

events

Number of 

cultural events 

held to promote 

pride and 

cultural dignity 

amongst youth 

of Nkandla 

Number 2 1 Cultural 

events held

4400/4444/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMIN

30  jobs 

created 

through EPWP 

and CWP 

120  local 

labourers to be 

employ ed                           

through EPWP 

not achiev ed 

due to insuffient 

funds.The 

Municipal apply  

for additional 

funding on public 

w orks. 

N/A

30  jobs 

created 

through  EPWP 

and CWP

N/A Report with 

photos and 

attendance 

register or 

registration 

schedule

Pg.152Ref.15

.4

Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To support 

Nkandla co-

operatives

Number of 

programmes/pr

ojects 

implemented 

through CWP 

Number 14 10 0 NONE 30  jobs 

created 

through EPWP 

and CWP 

0.00 415 local 

labores 

employ ed 

through capital 

projects

N/A 50  jobs 

created 

through EPWP 

and CWP 

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

CWP and EPWP  

Report with 

photos proof of 

payments

Pg.93-104 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To create a 

number of jobs  

through EPWP 

and CWP 

Number of jobs 

created through 

EPWP and CWP 

Number 1000 935 0 NONE 30 Material 

support to co 

operatives

R 0.00 79 co 

operatives 

supported 

with material 

and the hand 

over of 

material 

started on the 

N/A 30 co 

operatives 

were 

supported with 

material

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

CWP Report 

with photos

Pg.93-104 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To support 

Nkandla co-

operatives

Number of  Co 

operatives 

supported with 

material

Number 30 28 N/A 4400/4444/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMIN

30 Small 

business 

practitioners 

trained  on 

business 

management  

and 

entrepreneuri

al skills 

necessary to 

grow small 

businesses

1 250 000 93 SMME`s 

trained on 

business 

management 

skills  on the 

28th 

September 

2015,The 15 

SMME'S were 

registered and  

supported 

through SMME 

development 

N/A 15 SMME'S 

were  

registered and  

supported 

through SMME 

development 

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Attendance 

register. List of 

cooperatives 

supported, list 

of assets 

funded with 

(inventry)  and 

pictures 

Pg.93-104 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To capacitate 

SMME's through 

SMME 

development 

programme

Number of 

SMME's trained 

& on business 

management 

skills

Number 60 0 0 4400/4444/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMIN

Create Access 

to market 

opportunities 

for economic 

growth by 31 

June 2017

R 900 000 Launch of Co 

opearatives 

and  SMME fair 

was held on 

the 14th Dec 

2015 

N/A The business 

plan  to solicit 

for business 

franchise was 

finalised

n/a

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Attendance 

registers and 

list of 

supported 

SMME's

Pg.93-104 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To establish 

NkandlaCommun

ity Tourism 

Organisation 

(CTO)

Date of 

Operational 

Nkandla 

Community 

Tourism 

Organisation

Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4444/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMIN

To ensure fully 

functional of 

NkandlaComm

unity Tourism 

Organisation 

(CTO) by 

holding four 

meetings by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00  Four Nkandla 

Community 

Tourism 

Organisation 

(CTO) was held 

by 30 June 

2016

N/A  Four Nkandla 

Community 

Tourism 

Organisation 

(CTO) was held 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

 Attendance 

registers and 

minutes of the 

meetings

Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To establish 

NkandlaCommun

ity Tourism 

Organisation 

(CTO)

Date to  

promote 

Nkandla 

tourism 

Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4444/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMIN

To promote 

Nkandla 

tourism 

program

R 0.00 N/A N/A Operational 

plan for 

tourism and 

resasitating of 

Amatshenezim

pisi was 

developed

N/A
COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Pg.93-104 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To establish   

Nkandla  

Informal 

Economy 

Chamber

Date to 

Established  

Informal 

Economy 

Chamber

Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4444/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMIN

To review   

Nkandla  

Informal 

Economy 

Chamber by 

30 June 2017

R 12 500.00 The  terms of 

reference for 

Nkandla 

Informal 

Economy was 

reviewed and 

Nkandla 

Informal 

Economy 

Chamber was 

also reviewed 

N/A The Meeting 

with Nkandla 

Informal 

traders 

Meeting was 

held on the  

28th June 2017

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Policy 

Document
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DISASTER MANAGEMENT

Pg.51-61
Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To prevent 

disaster 

occurences in 

the Nkandla 

community

Date of launch 

of fire 

protection 

services

Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 4400/4414/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To conduct 

quortely(total 

of 4) multi 

disciplinery 

road blocks by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00 The 

quortely(total 

of 4) multi 

disciplinery 

road blocks 

was 

conducted

N/A The 

quortely(total 

of 4) multi 

disciplinery 

road blocks 

was conducted

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Report with 

photos  and 

attendance 

register

Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To establish  and 

run law 

enforcement unit

3 Advisory 

Committee 

meetings

Number

3 0 0

4400/4414/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To hold one  

Advisory 

Committee 

Meeting by 30 

Sept 2016

R 0.00 Disaster 

management 

Advisory 

forum was 

established 

on the 30 

March  2016

N/A Three Disaster 

management 

Advisory forum 

meeting was 

held by 30 June 

2017 

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Minutes,Atten

dance Register

Pg.51-61
Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To establish  and 

run protection 

services 

Number of 

incidents 

reports 

prepared

Number

4 0 0

4400/4414/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To prepare 12 

Incidents 

Reports by 30 

June 2017

R 0.00 thwelf  

Incident 

Reports 

compiled 

annual

N/A thwelf  Incident 

Reports 

compiled 

annual

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Monthly 

Incident 

reports

Pg.51-61
Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To implement 4 

Fire Drills

Number of  Fire 

Drills conducted 

Number

4 0 0

4400/4414/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To conduct 4 

Fire Drills by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00 Four Fire Drill 

conducted 

was 

conducted by 

30 June 2016

N/A Four Fire Drill 

was conducted 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Report with 

photos and 

attendance 

register or 

registration 

schedule

Pg.51-61
Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To procure 

disaster material

Date of  disaster 

response 

materials 

procured 

Date

30 Jne 2017 30-Jun-16 0

4400/4414/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To 

Procurement 

Disaster 

response 

materials  

every  quarter

R 750 000.00 Disaster 

Resonse  

Material was 

procured and 

delivered to 

the 

beneficiaries 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A The process 

was started 

but due to 

financial 

contraints this 

project was 

stopped in 

terms of the 

municipal 

recovery plan.

Financial 

constraints

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

Procurement 

documents 

and report on 

delivery to 

beneficiaries

Pg.51-61

Good 

governance 

and Public 

participation

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To implement 12 

Monthly 

Awareness 

Campaigns

Number of  

Monthly 

Awareness 

Campaigns

Number 12 6 0 4400/4414/0

507/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To implement 

12 Monthly 

Awareness 

Campaigns by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00 12 Monthly 

Awareness 

Campaigns 

conducted

N/A 12 Monthly 

Awareness 

Campaigns 

were 

conducted

N/A

COMMUNITY 

SERVICE

N/A Report with 

photos and 

attendance 

register
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BUDGET AND TREASURY
Pg.134

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development

To pay all FBE 

invoices from 

Eskom and 

Municipal 

indigent 

households 

within 30 days

Day of payment 

of FBE invoices 

from Eskom 

Days 30 days 30 days 0 4400/4426/0

191/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

Payment of all 

FBE invoices 

received 

within 30 days

R 884 780.00 all the FBE 

invoices 

received were 

paid within 30 

days

N/A The target for 

quarter 4 is 

timeous 

payment of FBE 

invoices from 

Eskom within 

30 days. All FBE 

invoices 

received were 

paid within 30 

days

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Payment 

vouchers & 

monthly bank 

statements

Pg.134

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improve 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development

To increase  

Eskom and 

Municipal 

indigent 

households 

receiving free 

basic electricity

Number of 

Beneficiaries 

receiving free 

basic electricity 

per month

Number 1500 

beneficiaries

1054 

beneficiaries

0 4400/4426/0

191/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

 To increase 

the number of 

beneficiaries 

receiving free 

basic 

electricity.

The 

beneficiaries 

receiving FBE 

by the 30th of 

June 2016 

were 1303

The number of 

beneficiaries 

receiving free 

basic electricity 

will be increase 

in the next 

financial year

1409 indigent 

qaulified as at 

31 May 2017 as 

per Eskom 

approval. The 

latest as at 30 

June 2017 has 

not been 

obtained due 

to email  

problem 

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Application 

forms for FBE 

sent to Eskom 

for approval 

and indigent 

house hold 

database

Pg.134 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

Compliance with 

Reporting 

requirements of 

the MFMA, Act 

No. 56 of 2003

Number of 

submitted  

monthly 

financial 

reports to 

Treasury (Sec 

71) & EXCO

Number 12 12 0 NONE Submission of 

12  monthly 

financial 

reports to 

Treasury (Sec 

71) & EXCO

0 Submission of 

12  monthly 

financial 

reports to 

Treasury (Sec 

71) & EXCO 

was 

submitted 

with 10 

working days 

of the 

following 

month

N/A  All FBE invoices 

received were 

paid within 30 

daysSection 71 

reports were 

submitted to 

National 

Treasury, 

Provincial 

Treasury, 

Finance 

Portfolio 

Committee and 

Exco within 10 

working days of 

the next month 

(10 May, 13 

June & 13 July). 

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Sec 71 Returns 

submitted 

within 10 

working days 

of the next 

month 

Pg.134 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

Number of 

submitted 

quarterly 

financial 

reports to 

Treasury and 

EXCO

Number 4 4 0 NONE Submission of  

(4) quarterly 

financial 

reports to 

Treasury and 

EXCO

Submission of  

(4) quarterly 

financial 

reports was 

submitted to 

Treasury and 

EXCO

N/A 1 quarterly 

report was 

submitted to 

National 

Treasury, 

Provincial 

Treasury, 

Finance 

Portfolio 

Committee and 

Exco on 13 July. 

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Returns 

submitted 

Pg.134 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

Compliance with 

section 72 of the 

MFMA

Date of 

Submission of 

midyear 

Assessment 

report

Date 28-Feb-17 28-Feb-16 0 NONE  To submit 

Section 72 

Reports to 

Council  by  

the 25th of 

January 2017

R 0.00  Section 72 

Reports  

submitted to 

Council  on the 

25th of 

January 2016

N/A  Section 72 

Reports  were 

submitted to 

Council  on the 

25th of January 

2017

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Section 72 

report, council 

resolution

Pg.138 Good 

governance 

and public 

participation

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

Annual Financial 

Statements 

submitted on 

time  (MFMA  

S126 (1)a)

Date of 

Submission for 

audit purposes 

of the Annual 

Financial 

Statements for 

the 2016/2017 

financial year

Date 31-Aug-17 31-Aug-16 0 NONE Submission for 

audit 

purposes of 

the Annual 

Financial 

Statements 

for the 

2015/2016 

financial year 

by the 31st of 

August 2016

R 0.00  The 

2014/2015 

financial 

statements 

was 

submitted to 

auditor 

general  for 

audit 

purposes  by 

the 31st of 

August 2015

N/A  The 2015/2016 

financial 

statements 

was submitted 

to auditor 

general  for 

audit purposes  

by the 31st of 

August 2016

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Proof of 

submission of 

AFS from AGSA 

Pg.146. 

Ref.14.8

Good 

governance 

and public 

participation

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

Approved budget 

of 2016/2017 

financial year

Date of 

Approval of the 

budget process 

plan

Date 31/08/2016 31/08/2015 0 NONE Approval of 

the budget 

process plan 

by 31 August 

2016

R 0.00 Budget 

process plan 

was approved 

by council 

before the 

31st of August 

2015

N/A Budget process 

plan was 

approved by 

council before 

the 31st of 

August 2016

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Copy of budget 

process plan 

and council 

resolution
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Pg.146.Ref.1

4.8

Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

Approved budget 

of 2016/2017 

financial year

Date of 

Adoption of the 

Operating and 

Capital Budget 

of the 

Municipality for 

2016/2017

Date 31-May-17 31-May-16 0 NONE Adoption of 

the Operating 

and Capital 

Budget of the 

Municipality 

for 2016/2017 

by 31 May 

2017

R 0.00 The Operating 

and Capital 

Budget of the 

Municipality 

for 2016/2017 

was adopted  

by council on 

26 May 2016

N/A The 2017/18 

Draft Budget 

was tabled in 

council on 31 

May 2017 and 

submitted to 

both National 

and Provincial 

Treasuries. 

Provincial 

Treasury 

comments on 

the Approved 

Budget were 

received and 

the budget was 

re-tabled in 

council on 27 

June 2017. 

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Copy of budget 

and council 

resolution

Pg.146.Ref.1

4.8

Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

Approved 

Adjustment 

Budget for the 

Municipality in 

respect of 

2015/16 

financial year

Date Approval 

of an 

Adjustment 

Budget in 

accordance 

with the 

provisions of 

Section 28 of 

the MFMA , as 

amended

Date 28-Feb-17 28-Feb-16 0 NONE Approval of an 

Adjustment 

Budget in 

accordance 

with the 

provisions of 

Section 28 of 

the MFMA , as 

amended by 

28 February 

2017

R 0.00 The mid year 

Adjusted 

Budget were 

approved  by 

council  on the 

25 February 

2016

N/A The mid year 

Adjusted 

Budget were 

approved  by 

council  on the 

28 February 

2017

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Copy of an 

Adjustment 

Budget with 

Council 

Resolution

Pg.125 

Ref.6.3

Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

Implementation 

of revenue 

enhancement 

strategy

Date 

Implementation 

of Revenue 

Enhancement 

Strategy

date    30 June 

2017

        30 June 

2016

0 NONE Implementati

on of Revenue 

Enhancement 

Strategy

R 0.00 The Revenue 

Enhancement 

Strategy  were 

approved by 

council on the 

24 March 

2016

N/A Vigorous 

implementatio

n of electricity 

disconnection 

as per Credit 

control and 

Debt ollection 

policy for arear 

account  & 

electricity 

tempering. All 

business 

people not 

paying for rate 

and refuse are 

disconnected 

after 7 days 

notices were 

issued. Out of 

R925 410 billed 

rates, R1.3 

million was 

collected in 

quater 4. 

Revenue 

Enhancement 

Strategy was 

implemented 

and 3 reports 

were 

submitted to 

EXCO. 

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Revenue 

Enhancement 

Stratergy 

Implementatio

n Plan & 

Reports
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Pg.125 

Ref.6.3

Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

To ensure 

collection of  

budgeted 

revenue

Percent of  

budgeted 

revenue 

collection on 

property rates

Percentage >60% >60% 0 NONE Above 60% 

budgeted 

revenue 

collection on 

billed revenue

11878006.22(Pro

perty rates

The budgeted  

revenue 

collection on 

billed revenue 

is above 60% 

which is R11 

470 2015.30

N/A 60% revenue 

was collected 

on billed 

revenue was 

achieved for 

quarter 4.

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Report on 

actual revenue 

on rates 

collected

Pg.125 

Ref.6.3

Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

To ensure 

collection of  

budgeted 

revenue

Percent of 

budgeted 

revenue 

collection on 

property rates

Percentage >60% >60% 0 NONE Above 60% 

budgeted 

revenue 

collection on 

billed revenue

R14624764 

(Electricity

The two 

agreements 

between the 

Municipality 

and other 

parties  for 

vendor were 

signed

N/A 60% revenue 

was collected 

on billed 

revenue was 

achieved in 

quarter 4.

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Report on 

actual revenue 

on electricity 

collected

Pg.125 

Ref.6.3

Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

To ensure 

collection of  

budgeted 

revenue

Percent of  

budgeted 

revenue 

collection on 

property rates

Percentage >60% >60% 0 NONE Above 60% 

budgeted 

revenue 

collection on 

billed revenue

R550959.8  

(refuse)

60% revenue 

was collected 

on billed 

revenue was 

achieved in 

quarter 4.

N/A 60% revenue 

was collected 

on billed 

revenue was 

achieved in 

quarter 4.

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Report on 

actual revenue 

on refuse 

collected

Pg.125 

Ref.6.3

Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

To ensure 

collection of  

budgeted 

revenue

Percent of  

budgeted 

revenue 

collection on 

property rates

Percentage >60% >60% 0 NONE Above 60% 

budgeted 

revenue 

collection on 

billed revenue

R725920.00    

(rent)

60% revenue 

was collected 

on billed 

revenue was 

achieved in  

quarter 4.

N/A 60% revenue 

was collected 

on billed 

revenue was 

achieved in 

quarter 4.

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Report on 

actual revenue 

on rent 

collected

Pg.127 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Advance and 

maintain the 

financial 

viability of the 

municipality

To ensure that 

customers 

receive the 

statements of 

accounts in time

Date of Monthly 

statements are 

forwarded to 

customers 

Date 07th of each 

month

07th of each 

month

0 4400/4451/0

191/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

Bills 

statements 

fowarded to 

customers by 

the 07th of 

each month

R 72 000.00 Bills 

statements 

were 

fowarded to 

customers by 

the 07th of 

each month

N/A Account 

statements 

delivered/post

ed to 

customers by 

the 10th of 

each month. 

Therefore, the 

target for 

quarter 

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Statement 

Delivery 

Register  & 

proof of 

postage by 

Nashua

Pg.136 

Ref.C6.5

Financial 

Viability and 

management

Optimise 

budget 

implementatio

n in the 

municipality

Ensured that 

expenditure from 

grant funding is 

in accordance 

with grant 

stipulations

Number of 

Preparation of a 

consolidated 

report on the 

receipt and 

expenditure of 

grant funds 

Number 12 12 0 NONE Preparation of 

a 

consolidated 

report on the 

receipt and 

expenditure of 

grant funds 

R 0.00 All grants 

reports  were 

submitted to 

treasury on 

monthly bases

N/A Grants reports 

were 

submitted to 

National 

Treasury, 

Provincial 

Treasury, 

Finance 

Portfolio 

Committee and 

Exco

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Monthly 

reports & 

Grants 

reconcilliation

s & proof of 

submission
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Pg.121 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Optimise 

budget 

implementatio

n in the 

municipality

Reconcilliation 

reports on 

receipt and 

expenditure  for 

submission to 

the Municipal 

Manager and 

EXCO

Number of 

Approved 

Reconcilation 

statements

Number 12 12 0 NONE Preparation 

and review of 

12 

reconciliation 

statements by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00 The 12 

reconciliation 

(Pay roll,bank 

reconciliation,

debtors and 

vat) 

statements 

were 

completed in 

each month

N/A Monthly 

reconciliations 

(Debtors, Other 

Income, Stores, 

Assets, Payroll, 

Creditors, and 

Monthly Bank 

Recons) were 

performed

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Monthly 

reconcilliation

s (Debtors, 

Other Income, 

Stores, Assets, 

Payroll, 

Creditors) 

(Montly Bank 

Recons)

Pg.121 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Optimise 

budget 

implementatio

n in the 

municipality

Exercised 

financial and 

fiscal control 

Number of 

Preparation of 

updated cash 

flow projections 

for the 

Municipality

Number 4 0 0 NONE Preparation of 

updated cash 

flow 

projections for 

the 

Municipality 

on monthly

R 0.00 2 cash flow 

projection 

report 

completed 

N/A Cash Flow 

projection 

reports were 

compiled and 

submitted to 

MANCO and 

EXCO. On 

monthly basis

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Quarterly  

Cash flow 

Projections 

Reports

Pg.121 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Optimise 

budget 

implementatio

n in the 

municipality

Containment of 

expenditure 

incurred by the 

Directorate for 

2015/2016 

financial year 

within budgetary 

limits

Prcentage 

Budget 

Expenditure 

Reports Per 

Vote

Percentage 100% 100% 0 NONE To ensure 

100% 

expenditure 

on all finance 

related grants 

and subsides ( 

FMG and 

MSIG) to avoid 

grants 

rollovers

R 1 825 000.00 100% spent  

on received 

Finance 

Grants (FMG 

and MSIG) by 

30 June 2016

N/A 100% 

expenditure on 

received 

Finance 

Management 

Grants (FMG ) 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Statement of  

comparison of 

actuals with 

Income and 

Expenditure 

budget

Pg.121 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

GRAP 16 & 17 

Asset Register in 

place

Number of GRAP 

compliant asset 

register

Number 4 GRAP -

2015/16 

compliant 

asset register

2014/15GRAP 

compliant 

asset register

nil NONE To prepare 

quartely 

2015/16 GRAP 

compliant 

asset register

R 0.00 To update 

asset register 

quartely to be 

GRAP 

Complient 

was updated 

on quately 

bases

N/A Asset register 

was updated  

on quortely 

basis

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Fixed Asset 

Register

Pg.136 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

GRAP 16 & 17 

Asset Register in 

place

Number of 

Updating of 

fixed asset 

register to 

reflect all 

infrastructure 

and moveable 

assets within 

the Municipality

Number 4 4 0 NONE To prepare  

Asset 

additions 

Schedules per 

Quarter

R 0.00 4 Asset 

additions 

Schedules was 

prepared per 

year

N/A No Asset 

additions 

required  per  

Quarter was 

completed. 

Training will be 

conducted to staff 

in order to 

acquire skills

Budget and 

treasury

N/A Asset 

Additions 

Schedules & 

Updated Asset 

Register

Pg.136 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

GRAP 16 & 17 

Asset Register in 

place

Number of 

Update the 

investment 

property 

register

Number 4 4 0 NONE To Undertake 

scheduled 

inspections of 

assets on 

quarterly 

basis to 

confirm 

location of 

assets

R 0.00  Scheduled 

inspection 

conducted for 

property 

register on 

quartely basis

N/A No Asset 

additions 

required per 

Quarter was 

completed.

Training will be 

conducted to staff 

in order to 

acquire skills

Budget and 

treasury

N/A 4 Updated 

Property 

Register

Pg.136 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

GRAP 16 & 17 

Asset Register in 

place

Number of 

Undertake 

scheduled 

inspections of 

assets on 

quarterly basis 

to confirm 

location of 

assets

Number 4 4 0 NONE To Undertake 

scheduled 

inspections of 

assets on 

quarterly 

basis to 

confirm 

location of 

assets

R 0.00  Scheduled 

inspection 

conducted for 

assets on 

quartely basis

N/A 4 Inspection 

Schedules 

conducted by 

30 June 2017

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Schedule and 

Asset 

Inventory 

Sheets

Pg.136 Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

Number of 

emsure regular 

stock-counting 

(quarterly)

Number 4 0 0 NONE Quarterly 

Stock count 

Reports

R 0.00 1 Stock count 

Report was 

issued on 

quortely 

bases

N/A 4 quortely 

Stock Count 

was performed 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Stock Count 

Reports

Page. 120-

138

Municipal 

Good 

governance

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

To decrease 

Unauthorized, 

Irregular, 

fruitless & 

wasteful 

expenditure

Percent of 

Implementation 

of compliance 

checklist

Percent 100% 

Compliance 

with SCM 

processes

0 0 NONE 100% 

compliance 

with 

Procurement 

Requirements 

for  each & 

every 

payment

R 0.00 The payment 

complience 

checklist was 

Developed & 

Approved by 

30 September 

2015

N/A 100% 

compliance 

with 

Procurement 

Requirements 

was achieved. 

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Reports on 

irregular, 

unauthorised, 

fruitless & 

wasteful 

Expenditure

Page. 120-

138

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

Minimise service 

delivery 

distribution 

losses

Percentage to 

Reconcile of 

Bulk purchases 

vs Distributions 

Percentage 

decrease in 

distribution 

losses

>15% >55% 0% 4100/4110/0

302/EQSR/N

ONE/ADMN

To Minimise 

distribution 

losses greater 

than 15% in 

each quarter

R 0.00 The 

distribution 

losses 

minimised 

with greater 

than 15% in 

each quarter

N/A Distribution 

losses are less 

than 15% (1% 

April, 3 % May 

& 15% June)in 

quarter 4, 

therefore this 

target has 

been achieved.

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Reconcilliation 

Report on 

Electricity 

(Bulk Purchase 

vs Sales)

Pg.215-219 Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

To improve 

institutional 

efficiency 

through 

adequate 

systems and 

effective 

internal 

controls

Implementation 

of intership 

programme with 

the directorate

Number ensure 

the 

Implementation 

of intership 

programme

Number of 

Interns

5 5 0 4400/4489/0

191/FMGR/N

ONE/ADMN

To ensure that 

5 interns are 

employed at 

Finance 

Departnent

R 547 650.00 The 

municipality 

has ensured 

that 5 finance 

intrns are 

employed as 

per treasury 

requirement 

N/A The 

municipality 

has ensured 

that 5 finance 

interns are 

employed as 

per treasury 

requirement. 

Currently there 

are 5 interns in 

the employ of 

the 

municipality.

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Appointment 

Letters.

Pg.215-219 Municipal 

transfomation 

and 

institutional 

development

To improve 

institutional 

efficiency 

through 

adequate 

systems and 

effective 

internal 

controls

Implementation 

of intership 

programme with 

the directorate

Number 

Evaluation of 

the 

performance of 

the Interns 

engaged within 

the Finance 

function at the 

Municipality

Number  of 

evaluation 

reports

4 None 0 4400/4489/0

191/FMGR/N

ONE/ADMN

Evaluation of 

the 

performance 

of the Interns 

engaged 

within the 

Finance 

function at the 

Municipality

R 0.00 5 evaluation 

reports for 

each intern 

were signed 

and reviewed

N/A 5 evaluation 

reports for 

each intern 

were signed 

and reviewed

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Monitoring 

and Evaluation 

Report

Pg.94 Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To ensure 

perfomance of 

contracted 

service provider

Number of 

Quorterly 

perfomance 

report

Number 1 0 0 NONE To implement 

effective 

contract 

management 

throuh 

monitoring 

and 

evaluation of 

service 

providers

R 0.00 The service 

providers 

were 

evaluated and 

monitored on 

quortely 

bases

N/A The service 

providers were 

evaluated and 

monitored on 

quortely bases

N/A Department of 

corporate 

service

N/A quarterly 

perfomance 

report of 

contracted 

service 

provider to 

council

Pg.104 Good 

governance 

and public 

participation

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio 

economic 

growth 

Reported SCM 

Performance 

Number of 

Submit 

quarterly 

reports to the 

Municipal 

Manager and 

the Mayor 

regarding the 

functioning of 

the SCM process

Number of 

Reports

4 4 0 NONE Submit (4) 

quarterly 

reports to the 

Municipal 

Manager and 

the Mayor 

regarding the 

functioning of 

the SCM 

process

R 0.00 4 quarterly 

report sent to 

MANCO and 

EXCO

N/A 4 quarterly 

report sent to 

MANCO and 

EXCO

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A SCM Quarterly 

Reports

Pg.104 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To create a 

conducive 

environment 

for socio -

economic 

growth

To   provide the  

business to local 

businesses 

through supply 

chain processes

Number of 

business 

provided to 

local people

Number 5 5 0 4400/4403/0

191/EQSR/N

ONE/WMUN

To   provide 

the  business 

to local 

businesses 

through 

supply chain 

processes

R 0.00 More than 5 

local business 

provided with 

jobs through 

supply chain

N/A More than 5 

local business 

provided with 

jobs through 

supply chain

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A SCM Quarterly 

Reports

Pg.120 Good 

governance 

and public 

participation

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To review finance 

related  policies 

annually

Date Adoption 

of all finance 

related policies

Date of 

review

31 May 2017 31-May-16 nil NONE To review 

finance 

related  

policies 

annually

R 0.00 The 6 finance   

policies ( 

Tarrif,property 

rates,credit 

control ,cash 

management,f

unding and 

reserve,suppl

y 

chain,indigent  

were 

reviewed  by 

councl on 31 

May 2016

N/A 6 finance   

policies ( 

Tarrif,property 

rates,credit 

control ,cash 

management,f

unding and 

reserve,supply 

chain,indigent 

were reviewed 

by 31 May 2017

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Council 

Resolution

Pg.145 

Ref14.6

Cross cutting 

interv entions

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

To prevent 

internal 

fraudulent 

activities

Number of fraud 

prevention 

compaign

Number 1 non 0 NONE To 4 conduct 

fraud 

prevention 

compaign

R 0.00 Two Fraud 

prevention 

awareness 

conducted to 

staff members 

N/A Two Fraud 

prevention 

awareness 

conducted to 

staff members 

N/A Budget and 

treasury

Council 

resolution and 

fraud and 

prevention 

strategy

Pg.138 

Ref.C.6.9

Good 

governance 

and public 

participation

Attain effective 

and efficient 

municipal 

administration

Ensure that the 

municipality 

maintains the 

unqualified audit 

opinion

Maintaining the 

unqualified 

audit opinion

Yes/No yes Unqualified 

audit 

nil NONE To 

Maintaining 

the 

unqualified 

audit opinion 

for the 

2015/2016 

Financial year

R 0.00 The 

unqualified 

audit opinion 

was 

maintained

N/A The unqualified 

audit opinion 

was 

maintained

N/A Budget and 

treasury

N/A Unqualified 

Audit opinion 

report 

received
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TECHNICAL SERVICE
1. ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

1.1 To ensure the 

proper financial 

management

Date of Preparation 

and submission of 

Departmental 

procurement plan

Date 1 1 Nil N/A

Preparation and 

submission of 

departmental 

procurement 

plan by 30 Sept 

2016

R 0.00

 The 

departmental 

procurement 

plan prepared 

and submitted

N/A  The 

departmental 

procurement plan 

prepared and 

submitted

N/A

Technical serv ice None
Proof for the 

submission

2. FINANCIAL VIABILITY AND MANAGEMENT
Financial 

Viability and 

management

Improve the 

financial 

performance of 

the 

municipality

2.1 To ensure 

financial 

management

% of quortely  

financial 

ex penditure on 

capital transfers

% 12 12 Nil N/A

ensure 100% 

ex penditure on 

all capital 

transfers by  30 

June 2017

R 39 795 000.00

The ex penditure 

on all capital 

transfers  

achiev ed is 

abov e 25%(16 

208 713/14 297 

000

N/A 100% 

expenditure on 

all capital 

transfers  was 

completed by 

30 June 2017

N/A

Technical serv ice None

Monthly 

financial 

report 

(reconciliation

s and 

expenditure 

report)

Municipal 

Transformatio

n and 

institutional 

development

To improve 

service 

delivery and 

the image of 

the 

municipality

2.2 To ensure 

performance of 

contractedserv ice 

prov ider

Number of 

Quarterly  

Performance 

Report

Number 1 0 0 N/A

To implement 

effectiv econtract 

mananagement 

through 

monitoring and 

ev aluation for 

Serv ice 

Prov iders.

R 0.00

The service 

provider 

perfomance  

was 

monitored 

and evaluated   

on quortely 

bases

N/A Service 

provider 

performance 

was  monitored 

and evaluated 

on quortely 

basis 

N/A

Technical serv ice None

quarterly 

perfomance 

report of 

contracted 

service 

provider to 

council

3. ELECTRICITY

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

3.1 To attend & 

resolv e all 

electricity  faults 

reported in Nkandla 

Tow n

% of households 

electricity   faults 

resolv ed w ithin 

24hrs subject to 

the ex tent of the 

fault

% 100% 100% nil

3800/3830/030

2/EQSR/NON

E/ADMIN

100% 

attendance  to 

electricity  faults 

reported in 

Nkandla tow n

R 0.00

100% 

attendance  to 

electricity  faults 

w ere done in 

24hours. 

N/A 100% 

attendance  to 

electricity 

faults reported 

in Nkandla 

town was 

attendad 

within 24hours

N/A

Technical serv ice 5

report of faults 

attended to.

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

3.2 To attend all 

faulty  streetlights in 

tow n

% of street lights 

attended to w ithin 

48hrs 

% 100% 100% nil

3800/3890/030

2/EQSR/NON

E/ADMIN

100% 

attendance to all 

faulty  streetlights 

in tow n
R 0.00

100% of street 

lights attended to 

w ithin 48hrs not 

achiev ed

This w as not 

achiev ed due to 

lack of cherry  

picker.The 

municipality  is in the 

process of hiring the 

cherry  picker

All faulty  street 

lights w ere 

attended

N/A

Technical serv ice 5

report of faults 

attended to.

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

3.3 To maintain and 

serv ice Tow n 

Electricity  

Infrastructure

Number serv ice 

and replace faulty  

transformers

Number 27 27 Transfomers nil

3800/3830/030

2/EQSR/NON

E/ADMIN

To serv ice 27 

Transformers by  

30 June 2017
R 0.00

Electrical 

contractor: to 

serv ice 9 

transformers not 

achiev ed.

To be done in the 

nex t financial y ear

23  Transformers 

w ere serv iced 

and 2 

transfomers w ere 

replaced by  30 

June 2017

N/A

Technical serv ice 5

Maintainance 

and service 

Report.

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

3.4 To reduce 

electricity  losses to 

80% by  30 June 

2016

Percent of 

electricity  loss
% 100% 60% 0

Reduce 

electricity  loss 

by  80% by  30 

June 2017
R 0.00

The reduction 

by  80% 

Electricity  loss 

not achiev ed 

To install 

electricity metres  

on street lights 

and to upgrade 

infrastructure for 

Nkandla tow n

electricity loss 

reduced  from 

30% to 25% by 

31 March 2018

N/A

Technical serv ice 5

Electricity 

consumption 

and 

expenditure 

report.
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Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

To hav e completed 

Self Built 

Electrification 

Projects

Number of 

connected 

households

Number  households 395 households 0

Construction 

and 

completion of 

166 House 

holds(Ezijibeni

,Makhanyezi) 

R 3 500 000.00

Serv ice prov ider 

to construct and 

complete the 

Ezijibeni,Makha

ny ezi self built 

electrification

N/A 166 House 

holds(Ezijibeni, 

and 

Makhanyezi) 

were 

connected 

N/A

Technical serv ice 8,7 and 9

Progress Report, 

Practical 

Completion 

Certificate

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

To hav e completed 

Self Built 

Electrification 

Projects

Number of 

connected 

households

Number  households 395 households 0

Construction and 

completion of 

395 Ntshiza Self-

Built 

Electification by  

30 June 2017

R 3 500 000.00

The serv ice 

prov iders  for 

the self-Built 

Electrification 

Project 1. 

Six hoko/Mpond

o 

2.Sidashi/Qothu/

N/A Ntshiza Self-

Built 

Electification 

395 was 

constucted and 

completed but 

not energised

N/A

Technical serv ice 8

Progress Report, 

Practical 

Completion 

Certificate

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

To hav e completed 

Self Built 

Electrification 

Projects

Number of 

connected 

households

Number  households  households 0

Construction of 

330 Nhloshane 

Self-Built 

Electification R 5 000 000.00

The appointment 

of serv ice 

prov iders  for 

the self-Built 

Electrification 

Project not 

finalised  1. 

N/A Nhloshane Self-

Built 

Electification 

170 was 

constructed 

and completed 

N/A

Technical serv ice 9

Progress Report, 

Practical 

Completion 

Certificate

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

To hav e completed 

Self Built 

Electrification 

Projects

Number of 

connected 

households

Number  households 141 households 0

Construction and 

completion of 

285 Thaleni 

Vimbimbobo self-

built 

Electrification

R 4 500 000.00

Thaleni/Vimbi

mbobo Self-

Built 

Electification 

phase 1 was 

constructed 

N/A Thaleni/Vimbi

mbobo Self-

Built 285 

Electification 

was 

constructed 

and completed 

but not 

energised 

N/A

Technical serv ice 3

Appointment 

letter,technica

l report  and 

expenditure 

report

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

To hav e completed 

Self Built 

Electrification 

Projects

Number of 

connected 

households

Number  households  households 0

Construction of 

901 Mv utshini-

Malunga-

Bhacane Self-

Built 

Electification by  

30 June 2017

R 5 000 000.00

Malunga-

Bhacane Self-

Built 

Electification 

was 

constructed 

and 

completed

N/A Malunga-

Bhacane Self-

Built 901 

Electification 

still under 

construction 

N/A

Technical serv ice 10

Appointment 

letter,technica

l report  and 

expenditure 

report

4. ROADS AND MAINTENANCE

Pg.189 Ref.1.6
Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

4.1. To maintain  

Residentail  Roads 

Number of km 

roads maintained                                
km 3.5 km 3.5 km 0

3800/3860/030

2/EQSR/NON

E/ADMN

To maintain 

3.5KM 

ResidentIial 

Roads by  30 

June 2017

R 1 000 000.00

The 2.4 km road 

in CBD  

maintained 

 N/A 3.52 KM 

ResidentIial 

Roads per 

quarter  were 

maintained

N/A

Technical serv ice 5

Maintenance 

Report.

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

 Implentation of 

updrading CBD 

Roads and 

Stormw ater

Number of Kms to 

be upgrade                             
km 2.4 km 2.4km 0

 Implentation of 

upgrading 1.4km 

CBD Roads and 

Stormw ater

The serv ice 

prov ider to 

maintain w hite 

city   w as 

appointment on 

June 2016

N/A  Construction of 

1.4km CBD 

Roads and 

Stormw ater w as 

not achiev ed due 

to fincial 

constraints.

The municipality 

will be engaged to 

the compaign of 

collecting all the 

money owed to 

the municipality 

through the 

revenue 

enhancement 

strategy to have 

enough funds to 

complete its 

projects.

Technical serv ice 5

Ex penditure 

report, pictures, 

Report and 

completion 

certificates

Pg.189 Ref.1.6

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

 Adv ertisement for 

the supply  of small 

tool plant

Date of 

appointment of 

serv ice prov ider  

to supply  and 

deliv er small tool.

Date 30-Sep 30-Sep-15 0

4400/4432/030

2/EQSR/NON

E/ADMIN

appointment of 

serv ice prov ider  

to supply  and 

deliv er small 

tool.by  30 

Septer 2016 R 330 000.00

Serv ice prov ider  

to supply  and 

deliv er small 

tool w as 

appointed by  30 

December 2015

N/A

Serv ice prov ider  

to supply  and 

deliv er small tool 

w as appointed 

by  30 December 

2016 

N/A Technical serv ice None

Appointment 

letter,ex penditure 

report

Pg.189 Ref.1.6

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

To appoint the 

serv ice prov ider to 

prov ide and  

operate the plant to 

maintain the roads

Date of the 

appointment  of the 

Serv ice prov ider

Date 30-Sep-16 30-Jun-13 0 Nil

Appointment  of 

the Serv ice 

prov ider by  30 

December 2016 

to prov ide and 

operate grader

R 0.00

The Serv ice 

prov ider 

tooperate and 

prov ide plant  

w as appointed 

by  30 

September 2015

N/A
Serv ice prov ider  

to prov ide and 

operate grader 

w as appointed 

by  30 September 

2016

N/A Technical serv ice None

Proof of 

payment, 

pictures and 

construction 

progress 

report
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Pg.189 Ref.1.6

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

To maintain grav el 

roads in all w ards 

through RRUP

Number of kms 

and maintained
Km 50 km 14 0

4400/4432/030

2/EQSR/NON

E/ADMIN

To maintain 50 

km roads  

arround Nkandla 

Municipality  by  

30 June 2017

R 2 000 000.00

The total of 

47.5km  roads  

maintained 

through RRUP 

by  30 June 

2016

N/A 15 km roads  

arround 

Nkandla 

Municipality 

maintained in 

each quarter 

due to financial 

constraints.

The municipality 

will be engaged to 

the compaign of 

collecting all the 

money owed to 

the municipality 

through the 

revenue 

enhancement 

strategy to have 

enough funds to 

complete its 

projects.

Technical serv ice All w ards
Maintenance 

Report.

5. CAPITAL PROJECTS

Pg.189 Ref.1.6

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

5.2 To appoint 

serv ice prov iders 

for the construction 

of MIG projects

Date of appointed 

serv ice prov iders  

for the construction 

of  the follow ing 

project        

(Aw ationg Council 

priorities)

Date 30-Sep 30-Sep non

4400/4495/030

2/MIGR/NONE

/ADMIN

Appointment of 

the serv ice 

prov ider to 

implement   

Capital Projects: 

by  30 

September 2016                   

R 0.00

Four projects 

Egosw eni,ediphi

ni,Makhany ezi 

access 

road,Vumanhlan

v u CSC 

registered

N/A

Serv ice 

prov iders for the 

construction of 

MIG projects 

w ere appointed

N/A Technical serv ice None
Appointment 

letters

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

 To implement MIG 

Projects by  

2016/2017

Number of 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

Number of KM projects  projects 0

4400/4495/030

2/MIGR/NONE

/ADMIN

Contruction and 

completion of 

Kw aNtshiza 

access road by  

30 June 2017
R 21 795 000.00

The serv ice 

prov iders for the 

construction of 

MIG projects 

w as appointed 

by  30 June 

2016

N/A KwaNtshiza 

access road  

was 

constructed 

and completed

N/A

Technical serv ice 9

Proof of 

pay ment, 

pictures and 

Practical  

completion 

certificate

Pg.189 Ref.1.6

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

 To implement MIG 

Projects by  

2016/2017

KM 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

KM 1.6km 0.8Km 0

Contruction and 

completion of 

Nkethabaw eli to 

Manzaw ay o  

access road by  

30 June 2017 R 3 730 000.00

The 

Emathengengeni 

access road 

w as 

Construction and   

completed in 22 

June 2016

N/A  Nkethabaweli 

to Manzawayo  

access road 

was 

constructed 

but not 

completed  by 

30 June 2017 

due to 

contractor who 

deserted the 

site 

The municipality 

will re advertise 

the tender in the 

first quarter of 

the next financial 

nyear.The 

contractor who 

deserted the site 

will be taken to 

municipal 

lawyers in order 

to recover the 

cost.

Technical serv ice 9

Completion 

certificate and 

pictures

Pg.189 Ref.1.6

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

 To implement MIG 

Projects by  

2016/2017

KM 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

KM 4KM 4KM 0

Contruction and 

completion of 

Nkomeziphansi 

access road by  

30 June 2017

R 2 800 000.00

Nkomeziphans

i access road 

phase 1  was 

constructed 

and 

completed by 

30 June 2016

N/A Nkomeziphansi 

access road by 

30 June 2017 

was 

constructed 

and completed 

by 30 June 

2017

N/A

Technical serv ice 4

Progress 

report,Comple

tion certificate 

and pictures

Pg.189 Ref.1.6

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

 To implement MIG 

Projects by  

2016/2017

KM 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

KM 2.8KM 0 0

Contruction and 

completion of 

Ediphini access 

road and cause 

w ay  by  30 June 

2017

R 4 500 000.00

Construction of 

kw antshiza 

Access road: 

Phase 1  done 

but not 

completed 

Phase one complete 

and phase tw o w ill 

be completed in the 

nex t financial y ear

Ediphini access 

road and cause 

way was 

constructed 

and completed

N/A

Technical serv ice 9

Progress 

report,Completio

n certificate and 

pictures

Pg.189 Ref.1.6

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

 To implement MIG 

Projects by  

2016/2017

KM 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

KM 1KM 0 0

Contruction and 

completion of 

Nsuze -

Ngomankulu 

road allignment  

w ith the bridge 

by  30 June 

2017

R 3 000 000.00

Bangamanzi-

Mfongosi Link 

Road 

Rehabilitation 

constructed and 

completed by  31 

September 2015

N/A Nsuze -

Ngomankulu  

road 

allignment 

with bridge 

was 

constructed 

and completed

N/A

Technical serv ice 5

 construction 

progress report 

and completion 

certificate

Pg.189 Ref.1.6

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

 To implement MIG 

Projects by  

2016/2017

Date of 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

Date 30/06/2017 30-Jun-16 0

Contruction and 

completion of 

Vumanhlanv u 

CSC by  30 

June 2017
R 5 000 000.00

Construction of 

Vumanhlamv u 

CSC by  30 

June 2016

The funds 

reallocated during 

budget rev iew  to 

Sakhile project and 

the project postoned 

to be implemented 

in 2016/2017 

financial y ear 

Vumanhlanvu 

CSC was 

constructed 

and completed

N/A

Technical serv ice 5

 construction 

progress report 

and completion 

certificate

Pg.189 Ref.1.6 Local 

economic 

development 

and social 

development

To increase 

employ ment 

opportunities in 

the municipality

Ensure 

employ ment of 

local labours

Number of local 

labourers 

employ ed                           

through EPWP 

number 60 labourers 120 labourers 0

4400/4423/030

2/EPWP/NON

E/WMUN

120  local 

labourers 

employ ed                           

through EPWP 

by  30 June 

2017 

R 1 092 650.00

415 local 

labores 

employ ed 

through capital 

projects

N/A
278 local 

labourers  w ere 

employ ed                           

through EPWP by  

31 June 2017

N/A

Technical serv ice

Empoloy ment 

report

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To increase 

employ ment 

opportunities in 

the municipality

To complete 2015 

/16 and 2014/5 

rollov er projects

KM 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

KM 5.6KM 5.6KM 0

4400/4495/030

2/MIGR/NONE

/ADMIN

construction  

and completion 

of Sakhile 

access roads 

by  30 June 

2017 Budget

Completion of 

Esakhile access 

roads not 

completed due 

to heav y  rains

The serv ice 

prov ider w as 

issued w ith an 

intention to terminate 

and reason w ere 

sufficient to approv e 

an ex tension to 31 

September nex t 

finantial y ear

Esakhile Road 

was 

constructed 

and completed

N/A

Technical serv ice

progress 

report, 

pictures , proof 

of payment

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To increase 

employ ment 

opportunities in 

the municipality

To complete 2015 

/16 and 2014/5 

rollov er projects

Date of 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

date 30/06/2017 0 0

4400/4495/030

2/MIGR/NONE

/ADMIN

construction of 

Ngomankulu/ 

Nsuze bridge by  

30 March  2017

Completion of 

Ngomankulu/ 

Nsuze-

pedestrian 

bridge not 

completed

The project w ill be 

completed in the 

nex t finantial 

y ear.The 

municipality  w as 

issued an intention 

to terminate to the 

serv ice prov ider 

and if the project not 

completed the 

serv ice prov ider 

w ill be blacklisted 

and new  cotracter 

appointed to 

complete the bridge

Nsuze -

Ngomankulu  

road 

allignment 

with bridge 

was 

constructed 

and completed

N/A

Technical serv ice

Practical 

completion 

certificate, 

pictures
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Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To increase 

employ ment 

opportunities in 

the municipality

To complete 2015 

/16 and 2014/5 

rollov er projects

Date 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

date 0.8KM 0.8Km 0

4400/4495/030

2/MIGR/NONE

/ADMIN

construction  

and completionof 

Nkethabaw eli-

Manzaw ay o 

access road, 

phase 1 by  30 

March  2017

The 

Nkethabaw eli to 

Manzaw ay o 

road: Phase 1 

contructed but 

not completed 

30 June 2016

Nkethabaw eli w ill 

be completed in the 

nex t financial y ear

Nkethabaw eli 

Project completed

N/A Technical serv ice

Practical 

completion 

certificate, 

pictures

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To increase 

employ ment 

opportunities in 

the municipality

To complete 2015 

/16 and 2014/5 

rollov er projects

KM 

Implementation of 

the  Capital 

Projects:                                                           

KM 4KM 4KM 0

4400/4495/030

2/MIGR/NONE

/ADMIN

construction and 

completion of 

Nkemeziphansi 

access roads, 

Phase 1 by  30 

March 2017

The 

Nkomeziphansi 

Road : Phase 1 

constructed not 

completed 

Phase tw o w ill be 

completed  in the 

nex t financial y ear

Nkomeziphansi 

Project completed

N/A Technical serv ice

Practical 

completion 

certificate, 

pictures

6. WASTE MANAGEMENT

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

 To maintain 

hygene and 

healthy living by 

ensuring removal 

of refuse on a 

regular basis

A number of 

truckloads of 

waste disposed 

in a landfill site              

Number 1944 486 Nil

4400/4479/030

2/EQSR/NON

E/ADMIN

To implement  

486 of 

truckloads of 

waste 

disposed in a 

landfill site by 

30 June 2017              

R 800 000.00

486 

truckloads of 

waste 

disposed in a 

landfill site              

N/A 122 of 

truckloads of 

waste was 

disposed in a 

landfill site on 

each quarter             

N/A

Technical serv ice
5 and Nodal 

Areas

Delivery 

schedule and 

report

Infrastructure 

development 

and basic 

service 

delivery

To improv e 

quality  of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

dev elopment

To conduct waste 

awareness 

campaigns

Number of 

waste 

Awareness 

campaigns in all 

4 nodes

number 4 4 0

To conduct 4 

waste 

Awareness 

campaigns in 

all 4 nodes by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00

Four waste 

awareness 

campaigns 

conducted 

N/A one waste  

Awareness 

campaigns was 

conducted

N/A

Technical serv ice 5

Delivery 

schedule and 

report

Good 

governance 

and Public 

Participation

To improve 

quality of life 

through social 

infrastructure 

development

To review the 

Nkandla Housing 

Sector Plan (HSP)

Date Adopted 

Housing Sector 

Plan

Date 30-Jun-17

Draft of 

Housing Sector 

Plan-30 June 

2016

nil None

Reviewal and 

implementati

on of housing 

sector plan  by  

30 June 2017

R 0.00

The HSP 

adopted by  

council

N/A Housing sector 

plan  was 

reviewed and 

implemented

N/A

Technical serv ice None

Reviewed 

housing sector 

plan and 

Council 

Resolution

 To Review the 

Nkandla Housing 

Sector Plan (HSP)

A number of 

Housing Forum 

Meetings

Number 4 12 Nil None

Hold four 

Housing 

Forum 

Meetings by 

30 June 2017

R 0.00

The Housing 

Forum 

meeting were 

held per 

month

N/A One housing 

forum meeting 

was held

N/A

Technical serv ice None

Minutes of 

Housing Forum 

meetings
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CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES

7. PLANNING UNIT

Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To implement and 

rev iew  tow n 

planning scheme

Date Implemented  

SPLUMA
Date 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 0 Nil

Implemention of 

SPLUMA by  31 

March 2017

0.00

Alignment of 

PDA 

Delagations to 

SPLUMA 

completed 

and  spluma 

implemented

N/A

 Spluma By -

Law s w ere 

implemented  by  

Submitting to Dept 

of Rural 

Dev elopment by  

31 March 2017

N/A
Technical 

service
None

Reports on 

facilitation of 

gazetting of By-

Laws SPLUMA. 

Submition to 

DRD 

Submission 

register.

Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To implement and 

rev iew  tow n 

planning scheme

date mplemened 

of Tow n Planning 

Scheme                                             

Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 Nil

Assessment of 

reciev ed 

dev elopment 

applications on 

each quarter
0.00

100% 

Attendence to 

Development 

Planning  

applications 

received and 

The received 

development 

applications 

were 

assessed 

N/A  Dev elopment 

Planning  

applications w ere 

reciev ed  and 

attendended to
N/A

Technical 

service
None

Reports on 

approved 

development 

applications in 

Q1and Q2 

Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

To hav e a 

functioanal GIS

Date Functioning 

GIS 
Date 30-Jun-17

30 June 2016-

Functional GIS
0

4400/4431/030

2/EQSR/NON

E/ADMIN

Upgrade of 

ex isting GIS 

equipment by  30 

Sept2016
R 59 000.00

Implemented 

SDF by 30 June 

2016

N/A GIS equipment 

not upgraded .

N/A

Technical 

service

GIS Upgrade 

reports, 

Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community
To legalize all 

dev elopments in 

Nkandla Tow n

Date of Approv al 

of Building Plans
Date 30-Jun-17

30 June 2017 

Building 

Inspectorate

0 Nil

Approv al of 

Building Plans 

on quortely  

basis 

0.00

 Attend GIS 

training and 

Development 

of GIS Policy 

was done but 

not adopted 

by council  and 

implementati

on of GIS 

Policy not 

done 

N/A Housing sector 

plan  was 

reviewed and 

implemented

N/A

Technical 

service

Circulation 

register

Cross cutting 

interv entions

To promote a 

safe and 

healthy 

environment 

for Nkandla 

community

Date of Approv al 

of Building Plans
Date 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 0 Nil

Minimize  illegal 

structured by  30 

June 2017

0.00

100% 

Attendence to  

map requests 

received and 

The GIS Map 

were 

produced  

inhouse by 30 

June 2016

N/A one housing 

forum meeting 

was held by 30 

June 2017

N/A

Technical 

service

 Report on illegal 

structure and 

photos
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Nkandla Municipality 
(Registration number KZN 286) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval_____________________________________________ 
 
The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate accounting 
records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information 
included in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly 
present the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows 
for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.  
 
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. 
 
The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 
 
The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by 
the municipality and places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting 
officer to meet these responsibilities, the municipality sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or 
deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined 
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 
controls are monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in 
ensuring the municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus 
of risk management in the municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the 
municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that 
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures 
and constraints.  
 
The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of 
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual 
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance 
against material misstatement or deficit. 
 
The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2018 and, in the light of this 
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 
 
The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the municipality's annual financial 
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the municipality's external auditors and their report 
ispresented on page 5. 
 
 I also certify that salaries, allowances and benefits of Councillors, loans made to Councillors, if any, and payments made to 
Councillors for loss of office as disclosed in the Annual Financial Statements below are within the upper limits of the framework 
envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read in conjunction with the Public Office Bearers Act and the Minister of 
Provincial and Local Government's determination in accordance with this Act. 
 
 The annual financial statements set out on page s 6 to 53, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the accounting officer on 31 August 2017 and were signed on its behalf by: 
 

__________________________________ 

Mr LS Jili 
Accounting Officer 
31 August 2017 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2017 

  
 
Note(s) 

2017 
 

R 

2016 
Restated* R 

 
Assets 

   

Current Assets    

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 8 3,987,910 3,432,305 

VAT receivable 10 3,026,320 9,469,089 

Prepayments 6 299,139 - 

Receivables from exchange transactions 7 5,209,915 5,985,848 

Cash and cash equivalents 11 806,935 4,481,813 

  13,330,219 23,369,055 

Non-Current Assets 
   

Investment property 3 5,201,018 5,432,507 

Property, plant and equipment 4 344,498,145 322,690,696 

Intangible assets 5 1,055,050 553,160 

  350,754,213 328,676,363 

Total Assets  364,084,432 352,045,418 

Liabilities 
   

Current Liabilities    

Payables from exchange transactions 14 27,871,383 29,955,921 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 12 1,990,606 2,914,495 

Provisions 13 63,897 30,832 

  29,925,886 32,901,248 

Non-Current Liabilities 
   

Provisions 13 6,653,273 6,194,563 

Total Liabilities  36,579,159 39,095,811 

Net Assets  327,505,273 312,949,607 

Accumulated surplus  327,505,273 312,949,607 
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Statement of Financial Performance  

  
 

Note(s) 

2017 
 

R 

2016 
Restated* R 

 
Revenue 

   

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Service charges 

 
15 

 
9,329,143 

 
7,964,344 

Rental of facilities and equipment 16 677,768 599,329 

Interest on consumer debtors  1,895,671 1,718,217 

Other income 17 620,358 4,853,151 

Interest received - investment 18 663,980 2,077,041 

Total revenue from exchange transactions  13,186,920 17,212,082 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
   

Taxation revenue 

Property rates 

 
19 

 
18,834,654 

 
12,818,076 

Transfer revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 

 
21 

 
125,217,142 

 
144,059,550 

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions  144,051,796 156,877,626 

Total revenue  157,238,716 174,089,708 

Expenditure 

Employee related costs 

 

22 

 

(40,336,969) 

 

(37,327,577) 

Remuneration of councillors 23 (8,044,661) (7,895,971) 

Depreciation and amortisation 24 (11,689,785) (8,975,770) 

Impairment loss/ Reversal of impairments 25 (141,675) (89,823) 

Lease rentals on operating lease 31 (3,766,842) (2,846,294) 

Debt Impairment 26 (4,237,564) (5,580,123) 

Bulk purchases - Electricity 27 (12,721,485) (9,379,505) 

Contracted services 28 (8,485,934) (6,344,381) 

Grant expenditure 20 (7,435,551) (4,376,001) 

General Expenses 29 (46,660,733) (43,550,875) 

Total expenditure  (143,521,199) (126,366,320) 

Operating surplus  13,717,517 47,723,388 

Surplus or (Loss) on disposal of assets  863,377 459,903 

Assets written-off  (25,228) (92,080) 

  838,149 367,823 

Surplus for the year  14,555,666 48,091,211 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets  

 Accumulated 
surplus 

R 

Total net 
assets  R 

Balance at 01 July 2015 268,058,547 268,058,547 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 

 

48,091,211 
 

48,091,211 

Prior period errors (3,200,151) (3,200,151) 

Total changes 44,891,060 44,891,060 

Restated* Balance at 01 July 2016 312,949,607 312,949,607 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 

 

14,555,666 
 

14,555,666 

Total changes 14,555,666 14,555,666 

Balance at 30 June 2017 327,505,273 327,505,273 

Refer to Note 36 for prior period errors   
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Cash Flow Statement  

  
 

Note(s) 

2017 
 

R 

2016 
Restated* R 

 
Cash flows from operating activities 

   

Receipts 
   

Sale of goods and services  27,052,549 20,838,724 

Grants  124,281,923 143,774,387 

Interest income  663,980 2,077,041 

  151,998,452 166,690,152 

 
Payments 

   

Employee costs  (48,381,630) (46,087,087) 

Suppliers  (66,784,986) (57,587,673) 

  (115,166,616) (103,674,760) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 32 36,831,836 63,015,392 

 
Cash flows from investing activities 

   

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (40,652,084) (68,303,930) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4 1,198,001 761,403 

Purchase of other intangible assets 5 (1,052,631) (41,809) 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (40,506,714) (67,584,336) 

 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

  
(3,674,878) 

 
(4,568,944) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  4,481,813 9,050,757 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11 806,935 4,481,813 
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Budget on Accrual Basis  

Approved budget 

 
 

R 

Adjustments 

 

 

R 

Final Budget 

 

 

R 

Actual amounts 
on comparable 

basis 
 

R 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 
R 

Reference 

 
Statement of Financial Performance 

     

Revenue      

Revenue from exchange 
transactions 

Service charges 15,176,000 

 

 
845,000 

 

 
16,021,000 

 

 
9,329,143 

 

 
(6,691,857) 

 

 
1 

Rental of facilities and 726,000 (13,000) 713,000 677,768 (35,232) 2 

equipment 

Interest on consumer debtors 1,880,000 
 

- 

 

1,880,000 
 
1,895,671 

 

15,671 
 

3 

Agency services 5,000 (5,000) - - - 4 

Licences and permits 131,000 (75,000) 56,000 - (56,000) 5 

Other income 3,145,000 (1,457,000) 1,688,000 620,358 (1,067,642)  

Interest received - investment 950,000 (150,000) 800,000 663,980 (136,020) 6 

Gains on disposal of assets 900,000 (500,000) 400,000 - (400,000)  

Total revenue from exchange 22,913,000 
transactions 

(1,355,000) 21,558,000 13,186,920 (8,371,080)  

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions 

     

Taxation revenue 

Property rates 11,878,000 

 
6,052,000 

 
17,930,000 

 
18,834,654 

 
904,654 

 
7 

Property rates - penalties 436,000 
imposed 

Fines 50,000 

- 

 
(50,000) 

436,000 

 
- 

- 

 
- 

(436,000) 

 
- 

 

Transfer revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 123,676,000 

 
- 

 
123,676,000 

 
125,217,142 

 
1,541,142 

 

Total revenue from non- 136,040,000 
exchange transactions 

6,002,000 142,042,000 144,051,796 2,009,796  

Total revenue 158,953,000 4,647,000 163,600,000 157,238,716 (6,361,284)  

Expenditure 

Employee costs (39,445,000) 

 

(126,000) 

 

(39,571,000) 

 

(40,336,969) 

 

(765,969) 

 

8 

Remuneration of councillors (8,526,000) 400,000 (8,126,000) (8,044,661) 81,339 9 

Depreciation and amortisation (2,755,000) (3,115,000) (5,870,000) (11,689,785) (5,819,785) 10 

Impairment loss/ Reversal of - 
impairments 

Lease rentals on operating lease (1,830,000) 

- 

 
- 

- 

 
(1,830,000) 

(141,675) 

 
(3,766,842) 

(141,675) 

 
(1,936,842) 

 

 
11 

Bad debts written off and Debt (560,000) (235,000) (795,000) (4,237,564) (3,442,564) 12 

impairment 

Repairs and maintenance (5,100,000) 
 

670,000 

 

(4,430,000) 
 

- 

 

4,430,000 
 

13 

Bulk purchases (11,000,000) (1,000,000) (12,000,000) (12,721,485) (721,485) 14 

Contracted Services (12,637,000) (3,980,000) (16,617,000) (8,485,934) 8,131,066 15 

Transfer and grants (885,000) - (885,000) (7,435,551) (6,550,551) 16 

General Expenses (34,684,000) 2,109,000 (32,575,000) (46,660,733) (14,085,733) 17 

Total expenditure (117,422,000) (5,277,000) (122,699,000) (143,521,199) (20,822,199)  

Operating surplus 41,531,000 (630,000) 40,901,000 13,717,517 (27,183,483)  

Gain on disposal of assets and - 
liabilities 

- - 863,377 863,377  
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Budget on Accrual Basis  

Approved 
budget 

 

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts 
on comparable basis 

 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

 

Reference 

R R R R R 

Assets written-off - - - (25,228) (25,228) 

 - - - 838,149 838,149 

Surplus before taxation 41,531,000 (630,000) 40,901,000 14,555,666 (26,345,334) 

Actual Amount on Comparable 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 

41,531,000 (630,000) 40,901,000 14,555,666 (26,345,334) 

 

 
(1) Service charges - electricity was sold at a profit, however in terms of units the municipality sold less and was unable 
generate more revenue from electricity due to internal consumption and electricity losses. Refuse removal made a loss of 
R330 058 which in total resulted in a negative amount for Service charges. 
(2) Defaulting tenants had their lease agreements terminated, new lease agreements were signed the tenants paid however 
the budgeted target was not achieved due to terminations. 
(3) Interest on Consumer debtors increased due to the increase of the number of customers in arrears. The municipality 
embarked on the vigorious credit control and debt collection policy and as a result more customers made arrangements to 
pay fo arrear accounts. 
(4) There were no agency fees paid to the municipality due to the traffic unit not being functional during the year. 
(5) The municipality anticipated to collect revenue on the Traffic Unit but due to the operating licence not being approved on 
time, no transactions took place at the Traffic Unit for the year ended 30 June 2017. 
(6) The decrease in Interest Received can be attributable to Grant allocation received and less investments made in call 
accounts. 
(7) This is due to Section 78 of the MPRA, which allows for a change of market value of property at anytime during the year, 
which result in the increase in rates from the budgeted amount. 
(8) The actual expenditure is in line with the budgeted amount as variance is equal or below 10% and is considered to be 
reasonable and does not require further investigations. 
(9) The actual expenditure in line with the budgeted amount as variance is equal or below 10% and is considered to be 
reasonable and does not require further investigations. 
(10) The depreciation was erroneously estimated during budget preparation and did not include depreciation on new assets 
capitalised on the current financial year. 
(11) The variance is due to new five vehicles that were leased during the current financial year. The budgeted amount 
erroneously omitted the vehicles that were to be leased. 
(12) The budgeted figure was based on an amount of outstanding debtors in the previous period and before considering the 
implementation of revenue enhancement strategy, during the financial year the revenue enhancement strategy was 
enforced and debtors started availing themselves to honour their debts. This therefore resulted in a reduced amount of 
outstanding debtors. 
(13) The actual expenditure with the budgeted amount as variances equal to or below 10% are considered to be reasonable 
and does not require further investigations. 
(14) The actual expenditure in line with the budgeted amount as variance is equal or below 10% and is considered to be 
reasonable and does not require further investigations. 
(15) The variance is due to some transactions falling under contracted services being misallocated to general expenditure. 
(16) The variance is due to an amount of free basic services on electricity being misallocated to grant expenditure - bulk 
purchases during the budget process. All grant expenditure is reallocated according to the nature of expenditure. 
(17) The variance is due to most transactions falling under contracted services being misallocated to general expenditure 
and vice versa during budget preparations. 
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1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 
 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised  Accounting 
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance 
Management Act (Act 56 of 2003). 
 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African 
Rand. 
 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual 
financial statements, are disclosed below. 
 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 
 

1.1 Presentation currency 
 

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipality. 
 

1.2 Going concern assumption 
 

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to 
operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. 
 

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 
 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates 
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: 
 

1 Provisions 
 

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of 
these estimates of provisions are included in note 13 - Provisions. 
 

2 Provision for landfill site 
 

The entity has an obligation to rehabilitate it's landfill site in terms if it's license stipulations. Provision is made for this 
obligation based on the size / extent of the land to be rehabilitated, the rehabilitation cost per square metre, the monitoring 
cost per square metre, and the rehabilitation period. Current costs are projected using the average rate of inflation over the 
remaining period until rehabilitation, and then discounted to their present value to represent the time value of money. 
 

3 Other provisions 
 

The municipality's other provisions consist of a provision for leave pay and a provision for long service award. Provisions are 
measured as the present value of the estimated future outflows required to settle the obligation. 
 

Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note 13 - Provisions. 
 

4 Allowance for doubtful debts 
 

The measurement of receivables is derived after consideration of the allowance for doubtful debts. Management makes 
certain assumptions regarding the categorisation of debtors into groups with similar risk profiles so that the effect of any 
impairment on a group of receivables would not differ materially from impairment that would have been determined had  each 
debtor been assessed for impairment on an individual basis. The determination of this allowance is predisposed to the 
utilisation of estimates,assumptions and management judgements. In determining this allowance the estimates are made 
about the probability of recovery of the debtors based on their past payments history and risk profile. The municipality firstly 
assesses whether objectve evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant and 
collectively for financial assets that are not significant. 
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1.4 Investment property 
 

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation or both, rather than for: 

 use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
 administrative purposes, or 
 sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

 

Owner-occupied property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative 
purposes. 
 

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are 
associated with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investment property can be 
measured reliably. 
 

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement. 
 

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. 
 

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If 
a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part 
is derecognised. 
 

5 Cost model 
 

Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
 

Depreciation is provided to write down the cost, less estimated residual value over the useful life of the property, which is as 
follows: 
 

6 Item Useful life 
Property - land indefinite 
Property - buildings 30 years 
 

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and 
no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal. 
 

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property is the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal. 
 

1.5 Property, plant and equipment 
 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more 
than one period. 
 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the 

municipality; and 
 the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 
 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 
 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 
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7 1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 
 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 
 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one accounting period are included in 
property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with an 
item of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 
 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the 
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 
 
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The 

useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

8 Item Average useful life 
in 

years 

Infrastructure 
 Roads and paving 30 
 Pedestrian malls 30 
 Electricity 20-80 

Community 
 Buildings 30 
 Recreational facilities 20-30 
 Security 5 

Other 
 Buildings 30 
 Other vehicles 5 
 Office Equipment 3-7 
 Furniture and fittings 7-10 
 Bins and containers 5 
 Other items of plant and equipment 2-5 
 Landfill sites 15 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the municipality's expectations about the 
residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceeding reporting. If any such indication exists, the 
municipality revises the expected the useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change(s) shall be accounted for as a 
change in an accounting estimate in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors. 
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

 

In assessing whether there is any indication that the expected useful life of an asset has changed, the municipality considers the 

following indications: 

(a) The composition of the asset changed during the reporting period, i.e. the significant components of the asset changed; 

(b) The use of the asset has changed, because of the following: 

(i) The municipality has changed the manner in which the asset is used. 

(ii) The municipality has changed the utilisation rate of the asset. 

(iii) The municipality has made a decision to dispose of the asset in a future reporting period(s) such that this decision changes 

the expected period over which the asset will be used. 

(iv) Technological, environmental, commercial or other changes that occurred during the reporting period that have, or will, 

change the use of the asset. 

(v) Legal or similar limits placed on the use of the asset have changed. 

(vi) The asset was idle or retired from use during the the reporting period. 

(c) The asset is approaching the end of its previously expected useful life. 

(d) Planned repairs and maintenance on, or refurbishments of, the asset and /or its significant components either being 

undertaken or delayed. 

(e) Environmental factors, e.g. increased rainfall or humidity, adverse changes in temperatures or increased exposure to 

pollution. 

(f) There is evidence that the condition of the asset improved or declined based on assessments undertaken during the 

reporting period. 

(g) The asset is assessed as being impaired in accordance with GRAP 21 and GRAP 26. 

 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 

depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 

another asset. 

 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 

benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when 

the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

 

Assets which the municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of 

activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these 

assets are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash 

flow statement. 

 

1.6 Intangible assets 

 

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. The entity recognises an intangible asset in 

its Statement of Financial Position only when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that 

are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

 

An asset is identifiable if it either: 

 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or 

exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the 

entity intends to do so; or 

 arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are 

transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations. 

 

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the 

form of a contract. 

 

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured 

at its fair value as at that date. 

 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 
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1.6 Intangible assets (continued) 
 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the 
asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its 
useful life. 
 

Intangible assets consist of computer software. 
 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 
 

9 Item Useful life 
Computer software 5 years 
 

Intangible assets are derecognised: 
 on disposal; or 
 when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. 

 

The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in 
surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised. 
 

1.7 Financial instruments 

Classification 

The municipality classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories: 
 Financial assets at amortised cost. 
 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 
 Financial instruments at fair value. 

 

10 Initial recognition and measurement 
 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the municipality becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. 
 

The municipality classifies financial instruments, or their components parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a 
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 
 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value plus in case of a financial instrument not subsequently measured at 
fair value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition or issue. 
 

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value are recognised in surplus or deficit. 
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued) 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial instruments at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair 
value being included in surplus or deficit for the period. 
 

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method. 
 

11 Impairment of financial assets 
 

At each end of the reporting period the municipality assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value, to 
determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired. 
 

For amounts due to the municipality, significant financial difficulties of debtor, probability that the debtor will enter 
bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment . 
 

Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related objectively to an 
event occuring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset 
at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not 
been recognised. 
 

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 

12 Receivables from exchange transactions 
 

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or deficit 
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. 
 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the deficit is 
recognised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the 
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 
operating expenses in surplus or deficit. 
 

Trade and other receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost. 
 

13 Payables from exchange transactions 
 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest rate method. 
 

14 Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and 
subsequently recorded at amortised cost. 
 

1.8 Leases 
 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
 

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately. 
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1.8 Leases (continued) 

Operating leases - lessor 

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue. 
 

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 
 

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line 
basis. 
 

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance. 
 

15 Operating leases - lessee 
 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset 
or liability. 
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1.9 Impairment of cash-generating assets 
 

Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a 
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity. 
 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic 
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 
 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 
 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial 
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets. 
 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income 
tax expense. 
 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 
 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 
 

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 
 

Useful life is either: 
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or 
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality. 

 

16 Identification 
 

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired. 
 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 
 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the municipality also test a cash-generating intangible asset 
with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by 
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If 
an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for 
impairment before the end of the current reporting period. 
 

17 Value in use 
 

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from 
the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. 
 

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived 
from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to 
those future cash flows. 
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1.10 Employee benefits 

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees. A 

qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the 
Standard of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to 
pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors 
(even in liquidation) and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either: 

 the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit 
obligations; or 

 the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid. 
 

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either: 
 an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or 
 an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. 

 

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) 
that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related 
service. 
 

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment. 
 

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past 
practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will 
accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that 
it will discharge those responsibilities. 
 

18 Short-term employee benefits 
 

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. The cost of short-term 
employee benefits are recognised as expense in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted. 
 

Short-term employee benefits include items such as: 
 wages, salaries and social security contributions; 
 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the 

absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees 
render the related employee service; 

 bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related service; and 

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars 
and cellphones) for current employees. 

 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected 
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 
 

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present 
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation 
can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments. 
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18.10 Employee benefits (continued) 
 

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans 
 

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate 
entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 
 

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the contribution 
payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service: 

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds 
the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) 
to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and 

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset. 
 

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time 
value of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent 
with the currency and estimated term of the obligation. 
 

Contributions to Natal Joint Pension Fund are as follows:- Provident: 
83 Members 7% Council 13.65% 
Retirement: 11 Members 8.65% Council 38.37% 
Superannuation: 8 Members 9.25% Council 21.63% 
 

18.11 Provisions and contingencies 
 

Provisions are recognised when: 
 the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 

settle the obligation; and 
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at 
the reporting date. 
 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation. 
 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. 
 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the 
municipality settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the 
reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision. 
 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it 
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle 
the obligation. 
 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense. 
 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 34. 



133 

 

 

18.12 Commitments 
 

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the 
outflow of cash. 
 

Commitments are measured at the value of the contract less amount incurred. 
 

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial 
statements. 
 

18.13 Revenue from exchange transactions 
 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in 
an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 
 

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in 
exchange. 
 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction. 
 

19 Measurement 
 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates. 
 

20 Rendering of services 
 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with 
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of 
a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; 
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

 

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a 
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage 
of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed 
until the significant act is executed. 
 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is 
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 
 

21 Service Charges 
Service charges revenue relating to refuse removal is recognise on a monthly basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff. 
Service charges relating to electricity are based on consumption. Meters are read on regular basis and revenue is recognised 
when billed. Provisional estimates of consumption are made when meter readings can not be done. Prepaid electricity is 
recognised based on the approved tarrifs. 

 

Service charges revenue relating to other services is recognise on a monthly basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff. 
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1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued) 

Interest 

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is 
recognised when: 

 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
municipality, and 

 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 
 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 
 

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is 
performed. 
 

1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an 
municipality either receives value from another municipality or organ of state without directly giving approximately equal value 
in exchange, or gives value to another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 
 

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be 
used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not 
deployed as specified. 
 

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred 
asset by entities external to the reporting municipality. 
 
The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation. 

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes. 

22 Recognition 
 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that 
a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 
 

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non- 
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an 
amount of revenue equal to that reduction. 
 

23 Measurement 
 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the municipality. 
 

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent   to 
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. 
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is 
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is 
recognised as revenue. 
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1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

Rates, including collection charges and penalties interest 

Revenue from rates, including collection charges and penalty interest, is recognised when: 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; 
 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and 
 there has been compliance with the relevant legal requirements. 

 

Changes to property values during a reporting period are valued by a suitably qualified valuator and adjustments are made to rates 
revenue, based on a time proportion basis. Adjustments to rates revenue already recognised are processed or additional rates 
revenue is recognised. 
 

24 Government grants 
 

Government grants are recognised as revenue when: 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; 
 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and 
 to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant. 

 

The municipality assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service potential on the 
basis of the available evidence. Certain grants payable by one level of government to another are subject to the availability of 
funds. Revenue from these grants is only recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. An announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants may be 
available for qualifying entities in accordance with an agreed programme may not be sufficient evidence of the probability of the 
flow. Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the probability of the flow becomes available. 
 

Restrictions on government grants may result in such revenue being recognised on a time proportion basis. Where there is no 
restriction on the period, such revenue is recognised on receipt or when the Act becomes effective, which-ever is earlier. 
 

When government remit grants on a re-imbursement basis, revenue is recognised when the qualifying expenditure has been 
incurred and to the extent that any other restrictions have been complied with. 
 

1.15 VAT 
 

The municipality accounts for Value Added Tax on the payments basis. 
 

1.16 Investment income 
 

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 
 

1.17 Borrowing costs 
 

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.18 Comparative figures 
 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 
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1.19 Unauthorised expenditure 
 

Unauthorised expenditure means: 
 overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and 
 expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance 

with the purpose of the main division. 
 

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in 
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and 
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 
 

1.20 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised. 
 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 
 

1.21 Irregular expenditure 
 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the MFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including - 

(a) this Act; or 
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or 
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

 

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the MFMA 
requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008): 
 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end 
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. 
In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 
 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being 
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of 
updating the note to the financial statements. 
 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, 
the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned. 
 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for 
the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. 
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the 
accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note 
to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure 
has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant 
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the 
irregular expenditure register. 
 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the 
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of 
the economic entity’s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular 
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is 
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
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1.22 Budget information 
 

Municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), 
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar. 
 

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used 
in accordance with the legally adopted budget. 
 

The approved budget is prepared on an accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance 
outcome objectives. 
 

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/07/2016 to 30/06/2017. 
 

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the 
budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual 
amounts. 
 

1.23 Related parties 
 

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant 
influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. 
 

As a minimum, the following are regarded as related parties of the municipality: 
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that person: 
(i)(ii)(iii) 

has control or joint control over the reporting entity; has significant influence over the reporting entity; or is a member of 
the management of the entity or its controlling entity. 

(b) An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply: 
(i) the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled entity, 

and fellow controlled entity is related to others); 
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of an 
economic entity of which the other entity is a member); 
(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; 
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity; 
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the entity or an entity related to the 
entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity; 
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and 
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over that entity or is a member of the management of that entity (or 
its controlling entity). 

 

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including 
those charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to 
perform such functions. 
 

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed. 

 

 
1.24 Events after reporting date 

 

Events after the reporting date that have been classified as adjusting events are accounted for in the annual financial 
statements. Events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the 
annual financial statements. 
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1.25 Grant expenditure 
 

Grant expenditure refers to expenditure incurred by the municipality to deliver services funded by grants received from 
National and Provincial Government. Grant expenditure includes only operational grants which are conditional. Grant 
expenditure is only recognised as expenditure when the full conditions of the grant have been complied with. To the extent 
that the grant is not fully utilised at year end, an unspent conditional grant liability is disclosed. 
 

1.26 Bulk purchase 
 

Bulk purchase expenditure refers to bulk electricity purchased from Eskom and consumed during the year. Expenditure on 
bulk purchase is recognised as electricity is consumed and electricity not consumed at year end if any is recognised as 
inventory. At each reporting date, the municipality determines electricity distribution losses and are included in bulk 
purchases and disclosed separately. 
 

1.27 Contracted services 
 

Contracted services refer to expenditure contracted to external service providers over an agreed period of time. A contracted 
service is recognised as expenditure when the external service provider renders services to the municipality as agreed "in terms 
of accrual basis of accounting". 
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2. New standards and interpretations 
 

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year 
 

In the current year, the municipality has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current 
financial year and that are relevant to its operations: 
 

25 Standard/ 
Interpretation: Effective date: 

Years beginning on or after 

Expected impact: 

 GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 01 April 2016 Not Applicable 
 GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables 01 April 2016 The impact of the 

amendment is not 
material. 

 IGRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a 
Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset 

01 April 2016 Not Applicable 

 GRAP 16 (as amended 2015): Investment Property 01 April 2016 The impact of the 
amendment is not material. 

 GRAP 17 (as amended 2015): Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

01 April 2016 The impact of the 
amendment is not material. 

 

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective 
 

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory 
for the municipality’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2017 or later periods: 
 

26 Standard/ 
Interpretation: Effective date: 

Years beginning on or after 
 GRAP 25: Employee Benefits 01 April 2017 

27 Expected impact: 

 GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 01 April 2017 Not Applicable 
 GRAP 20: Related parties 01 April 2017 The impact of the 

amendment is not 
material. 

 GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents 01 April 2017 Not Applicable 
 GRAP 21 (as amended 2015): Impairment of non-cash- 

generating assets 
 

 GRAP 26 (as amended 2015): Impairment of cash- 
generating assets  

 

 Directive 12: The Selection of an Appropriate Reporting 
Framework by Public Entities 

         01 April 2017 The impact of the 
amendment is not material. 
          01 April 2017 The impact of the 
amendment is not material. 
         01 April 2018 Not Applicable 
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3. Investment property 

 

2017 2016 
Cost / Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation and  

accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value 
 Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation and  

accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value 

 
 

Investment property 6,955,451 (1,754,433) 5,201,018 6,955,451 (1,522,944) 5,432,507 

 

28 Reconciliation of investment property - 2017 

 
 Opening 

balance 
Depreciation Total 

Investment property 5,432,507 (231,489) 5,201,018 

 
Reconciliation of investment property - 2016 

   

 

 
Investment property 

Opening 
balance 
5,663,995 

Depreciation 
 

(231,488) 

Total 
 

5,432,507 

 
Pledged as security 

   

There was no investment property pledged as security. 
   

 

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the municipality. 
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4. Property, plant and equipment 

 
  2017   2016  

Cost / Valuation Accumulated 
depreciation 

and  
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and  
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value 

Land  101,806,440 - 101,806,440 102,116,940 - 102,116,940 
Buildings  13,766,503 (2,867,015) 10,899,488 13,065,691 (2,393,482) 10,672,209 
Plant and machinery  3,522,913 (1,276,834) 2,246,079 2,518,227 (690,557) 1,827,670 
Furniture and fixtures  2,687,089 (1,527,500) 1,159,589 2,665,456 (1,232,500) 1,432,956 
Motor vehicles  2,276,125 (1,218,136) 1,057,989 2,396,666 (1,023,409) 1,373,257 
Computer equipment  2,662,117 (1,714,656) 947,461 2,410,505 (1,369,763) 1,040,742 
Infrastructure  210,106,195 (37,703,786) 172,402,409 167,765,111 (28,977,962) 138,787,149 
Work in progress  52,694,006 - 52,694,006 63,940,975 - 63,940,975 

Landfill site  2,892,562 (1,607,878) 1,284,684 2,892,562 (1,393,764) 1,498,798 

Total  392,413,950 (47,915,805) 344,498,145 359,772,133 (37,081,437) 322,690,696 

 
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017 

       

 

 
Land 

Opening 
balance 

102,116,940 

Additions Disposals 
 
- (310,500) 

Transfers 
 

- 

Assets written- 
off 

- 

Depreciation 
 

- 

Impairment 
loss 

- 

Total 
 
101,806,440 

Buildings 10,672,209 700,812 - - - (473,533) - 10,899,488 
Plant and machinery 1,827,670 1,005,593 - - (723) (534,048) (52,413) 2,246,079 
Furniture and fixtures 1,432,956 100,061 - - (12,511) (316,403) (44,514) 1,159,589 
Motor vehicles 1,373,257 - (5,558) - - (307,460) (2,250) 1,057,989 
Computer equipment 1,040,742 315,952 (18,566) - (11,994) (370,700) (7,973) 947,461 
Infrastructure 138,787,149 - - 42,341,085 - (8,691,300) (34,525) 172,402,409 
Work in progress 63,940,975 38,529,666 - (49,776,635) - - - 52,694,006 

Landfill site 1,498,798 - - - - (214,114) - 1,284,684 

 322,690,696 40,652,084 (334,624) (7,435,550) (25,228) (10,907,558) (141,675) 344,498,145 
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29 4. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016 

 Opening 
balance 

Additions Disposals Transfers Newly 
identified 
assets 

Assets written- 
off 

Depreciation Impairment 
loss 

Total 

Land 102,418,440 - (301,500) - - - - - 102,116,940 
Buildings 7,859,552 - - 3,192,656 - - (379,999) - 10,672,209 
Plant and machinery 997,349 942,762 - - 60,130 (455) (172,116) - 1,827,670 
Furniture and fixtures 1,394,272 350,404 - - 26,955 (48,143) (284,651) (5,881) 1,432,956 
Motor vehicles 842,352 783,013 - - - - (252,108) - 1,373,257 
Computer equipment 1,346,787 138,968 - - 39,337 (31,964) (452,386) - 1,040,742 
Infrastructure 109,002,632 1,398,157 - 35,061,491 - - (6,591,189) (83,942) 138,787,149 
Work in progress 41,880,496 64,690,626 - (42,630,147) - - - - 63,940,975 

Landfill site 1,712,912 - - - - - (214,114) - 1,498,798 

 267,454,792 68,303,930 (301,500) (4,376,000) 126,422 (80,562) (8,346,563) (89,823) 322,690,696 
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30 4. Property, plant and equipment 

(continued) Pledged as security 

There was no property, plant and equipment pledged as security. 
 

31 Property, plant and equipment that is being constructed/ developed: 
Included in property, plant and equipment are property that have been identified as taking significantly longer period of time 
to complete than expected, due to the following: 

 
- - 

 

32 Qedisimo 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R1 447 637. The only outstanding work is the installation of cooling fridge, 
water connection and electricity connection. 

33 Nkethabaweli-Manzawayo 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R1 447 637.The contractor deserted the site towards the end of the project. 

34 Thaleni-Vimbimbobo Electrification 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R5 421 786.The project is on hold due to financial constrains, the 
municipality did not receive the grant from the department of energy. 

35 Mvutshini Electrification 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R3 201 314. The project is on hold due to financial constrains, the 
municipality did not receive the grant from the department of energy. 

36 Masololo Electrification 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R4 300 002. Difficulties experienced in getting outage dates from Eskom to 
energize the project due to some transformer zones being inaccessible due to the rain. 

37 Dolwane Electrification 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R318 294. Difficulties experienced in getting outage dates from Eskom to energize 
the project due to some transformer zones being inaccessible due to the rain. 

38 Esixhokolo Electrification 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R1 916 335. There was miscalculation on the document and the contractor amount 
was without VAT, this was discovered by the municipality did not have enough funds to cover the cost. 

39 Ntshiza Electrification 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R7 812 352. The project is on hold due to financial constrains, the 
municipality did not receive the grant from the department of energy. 

40 Nhlosane Electrification 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R13 262 183. The project is on hold due to financial constrains, the 
municipality did not receive the grant from the department of energy. 

41 Creches ward 8, 6, 5 and 3 
The accumulative expenditure has amounted to R1 666 704. The contractor deserted the site. 

 

 
Repairs and maintenance  

Property, plant and equipment that was not used for any period of time during 
the reporting period that significantly impacted the delivery of goods and 
services of the entity (Carrying amount) 
Contracted services 

 
 

 
2,122,965 

 
 

 
- 

Materials 1,302,597 - 

Employee costs 993,514 - 

 4,419,076 - 

 
Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2017 

  

 
Infrastructure 

 
53,879,642 

 
63,940,974 
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4. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the municipality. 
 

5. Intangible assets 

 

2017 2016 
Cost / Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation and  

accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value 
 Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation and  

accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value 

 
 

Computer software 2,564,952 (1,509,902) 1,055,050 1,512,321 (959,161) 553,160 

 

42 Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017 
 

Opening balance Additions Amortisation Total 

Computer software 553,160 1,052,631 (550,741) 1,055,050 

 

43 Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016 
 

Opening balance Additions Assets written- 
off 

Amortisation Total 

Computer software 920,584 41,809 (11,515) (397,718) 553,160 

 

44 Pledged as security 
 

There were no intangible assets pledged as security. 
 

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the municipality. 
 

6. Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 

 
Prepayments 1,514,811 1,229,763 

Less: Provision (1,229,763) (1,229,763) 

Sundry debtors 285,048 - 
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7. Receivables from exchange transactions 

 
Gross Balances 
Electricity 

 
3,170,538 

 
3,502,950 

Sundry 2,913,436 2,503,918 
Refuse 5,344,037 5,006,614 

Other 1,570,178 1,647,686 

 12,998,189 12,661,168 

 
Less: Allowance for credit impairment 
Electricity 

 
 

(1,397,734) 

 
 

(717,358) 
Sundry (1,685,529) (2,104,548) 
Refuse (3,992,879) (3,281,663) 

Other (712,133) (571,755) 

 (7,788,275) (6,675,324) 

 
Net balance 
Electricity 

 
 
1,772,804 

 
 
2,785,592 

Sundry 1,227,906 399,371 
Refuse 1,351,159 1,724,952 

Other 858,046 1,075,933 

 5,209,915 5,985,848 

 
Reconciliation of allowance for credit impairment 
Balance at beginning of the year 

 
 

(6,675,324) 

 
 

(6,188,848) 

Contributions for impairment (1,112,951) (486,476) 

 (7,788,275) (6,675,324) 

 
8. Receivables from non-exchange transactions 

  

Rates - Gross Balance 10,256,061 5,473,861 

Add back: Credit balance in debtors 813,936 2,392,103 

 11,069,997 7,865,964 

 
Less: allowance for credit impairment 
Rates 

 
 

(7,082,087) 

 
 

(4,433,658) 

 
Net Balances 
Rates 

 
 
3,987,910 

 
 
3,432,305 

 
Reconciliation of allowance for credit impairment 
Balance at beginning of the year 

 
 

(4,433,658) 

 
 

(4,006,707) 

Contributions to allowance (2,648,429) (426,951) 

 (7,082,087) (4,433,658) 
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45 9.Consumer Debtors by Classification 

 
Consumers  

Current (0-30 days) 118,510 118,597 
31-60 days 117,016 100,530 
61-90 days 109,124 139,234 

91-180+days 6,868,722 6,295,862 

 7,213,372 6,654,223 

 
Business 

  

Current (0-30 days) 342,278 227,788 
31-60 days 224,700 163,773 
61-90 days 155,040 175,358 

91-180+days 3,573,446 2,533,429 

 4,295,464 3,100,348 

 
State Owned 

  

Current (0-30 days) 328,409 222,024 
31-60 days 150,409 140,116 
61-90 days 105,301 170,006 

91-180+days 4,618,939 3,348,088 

 5,203,058 3,880,234 

 
Other 

  

Current (0-30 days) 2,300,571 305,719 
31-60 days    124,573 158,700 
61-90 days 55,466 154,946 

91-180+days 4,061,748 3,880,926 

 6,542,358 4,500,291 

 
Total 

  

Current (0-30 days) 3,089,769 874,127 
31-60 days      616,697 563,124 
61-90 days      424,930 639,545 
91-180+days 19,122,855 16,058,313 
Add back: Credit balances in debtors    813,936 2,392,103 

Less: Debt impairments (14,870,362) (11,108,980) 

 9,197,825 9,418,232 

 
Consumer debtors past due but not impaired 

  

 

Other Consumer debtors which are 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2017, R 4,229,971 
(2016: R2,785,029) 

 
1 month past due 2,697,998 1,567,031 
2 month past due 753,123 1,032,365 

3 month past due 778,850 185,633 

 

10. VAT receivable 
  

VAT 3,026,320 9,469,089 

 
Nkandla Municipality accounts for VAT on cash basis. 
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11. Cash and cash equivalents 

  

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 
  

Cash on hand 5,370 2,707 

Bank and cash                 801,565 4,479,106 

                 806,935 4,481,813 

 
The municipality had the following bank accounts 

  

 

 

 

 
`  

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances 
 

 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2015 

ABSA - Primary Bank Account - 
4053858355 
ABSA - Call Account - 

652,992 
 
1,627 

4,402,554 
 

69 

5,406,879 
 

438,311 

652,992 
 
1,627 

4,409,461 
 

69 

5,406,879 
 

438,311 

9104679851 
ABSA - MIG Call Account - 

 
11,432 

 
621 

 
1,992,684 

 
11,432 

 
621 

 
    1,992,684 

9108997407 
ABSA - MIG Call Account - 

 
1,228 

 
1,156 

 
1,094 

 
1,228 

 
1,156 

 
           1,094 

9287118398 
ABSA - Conditional Call Account 

 
46,587 

 
44,741 

 
43,199 

 
46,587 

 
44,741 

 
         43,199 

- 9132397071 
ABSA - DOE Call Account - 

 
74,014 

 
12,125 

 
24,085 

 
74,014 

 
12,125 

 
         24,085 

9287118576 
ABSA - EPWP Call Account - 

 
1,073 

 
1,010 

 
236,095 

 
1,073 

 
1,010 

 
       236,095 

9287118801 
ABSA - MSIG Call Account - 

 
8,154 

 
7,677 

 
381,374 

 
8,154 

 
7,677 

 
       381,374 

9287117928 
ABSA - FMG Call Account - 

 
3,229 

 
1,010 

 
525,942 

 
3,229 

 
1,010 

 
       525,942 

9287118110 
ABSA - Investment Account - 

 
1,228 

 
1,156 

 
1,094 

 
1,228 

 
1,156 

 
           1,094 

9287138394 
Petty Cash 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
5,371 

 
2,707 

 
- 

Direct deposit clearing - - - - 79 - 

Cash customer control - - - - 1 - 

Total 801,564 4,472,119 9,050,757 806,935 4,481,813       9,050,757 

 
12. Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

  

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of: 
  

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 
Cyber Cadet Grant 

 
34,847 

 
88,655 

E-Learning Grant - 167,230 
Electrification Grant - 640 
Facility Grant - 750,000 
Qedisimo Grant 1,447,676 1,447,676 

Library Grant 508,083 460,294 

 1,990,606 2,914,495 

 

Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been recognised. 

See note 21 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government. 

These amounts are invested in a ring-fenced investment until utilised. 
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13. Provisions 

      

Reconciliation of provisions - 2017 
      

Opening Balance 
 
Environmental rehabilitation 4,940,563 

Additions 

 
 

323,607 

Acturial 
(gain)/loss 
recognised 

- 

Interest cost 

 
 

- 

Service cost 

 
 

- 

Total 

 
 

5,264,170 

 

Long service award - short 30,832 
term 
Long service award - long 1,254,000 

33,065 
 
(99,897) 

- 
 

(133,000) 

- 
 

112,000 

- 
 

256,000 

63,897 
 
1,389,103 

 

term       

6,225,395 256,775 (133,000) 112,000 256,000 6,717,170  

 

46 Reconciliation of provisions - 2016 

 
 Opening 

Balance 
Additions Acturial 

(gain)/loss 
recognised 

Interest cost Service cost Total 

Environmental rehabilitation 4,636,849 303,714 - - - 4,940,563 
Long service award - short - 30,832 - - - 30,832 
term       

Long service award - long 1,152,000 (34,000) (144,000) 97,000 183,000 1,254,000 

term       

 5,788,849 300,546 (144,000) 97,000 183,000 6,225,395 

 
Non-current liabilities 6,653,273 6,194,563 

Current liabilities 63,897 30,832 

 6,717,170 6,225,395 

 
Environmental rehabilitation provision 

  

 

The provision for rehabilitation of landfill site relates to the legal obligation to rehabilitate landfill sites used for waste 
disposal. It is calculated as the present value of the future obligation, discounted at 6.55% over an average period of 5 
years. 
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47 13. Provisions 

(continued) Long service 

award provision 

In line with the guidelines of the Bargaining Council, the municipality remunerates its employees for the long service rendered 
to the municipality. The estimates of the present obligation are determined through the use of Actuarial expertise. Such 
estimates are reviewed annually at the end of each financial year. The finance cost and acturial gains/losses are recognised 
directly in the statement of financial performance. 
 

The municipality offers bonuses for every 5 years of completed service from 10 to 45 years. Long service accumulated leave 
must be taken within one year of receiving such leave or wholly or partially cashed. In most cases employees exercise the 
option to wholly convert their accumulative leave bonus days into cash. 

 
Key assumptions (%) 
Discount rate 

 
9.50% 

CPI 6.34% 
Salary increase rate 7.34% 
Net Discount Rate 2.01% 
Mortality SA85-90 
Normal retirement age 63 

 
 
 
 

14. Payables from exchange transactions  

Trade payables 12,646,674 17,157,267 
Payments received in advanced 2,329,209 3,978,535 
Other payables 2,217,802 117,693 
Accrued leave pay 2,988,106 2,552,292 
Accrued bonus 920,704 823,882 

Retentions 6,768,888 5,326,252 

 27,871,383 29,955,921 

 
15. Service charges 

  

Sale of electricity 8,594,655 7,340,362 

Refuse removal 734,488 623,982 

 9,329,143 7,964,344 

 
16. Rental of facilities and equipment 

  

Premises 
Premises 

 
614,086 

 
543,417 

 
Facilities and equipment 
Rental of facilities 

 
 

63,682 

 
 

55,912 

 677,768 599,329 
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17. Other income 

  

Burial fees 9,082 4,911 
Connection fees 83,441 4,238,888 
Donations received - 126,522 
Housing plan 3,781 2,623 
Library fees 22,241 26,180 
Lindela Thusong Services 15,789 22,998 
Refunds - 5,604 
Temparing fees 52,965 20,607 
Taxi and bus licences 12,897 14,673 
Tender monies 104,954 181,673 
Wood sales - 246 
Plan submission 109,282 7,429 
Recoveries from employees 26,857 74,040 
Meter testing fees - 76 
Rates clearance certificates 678 426 
Electricity meter upgrade 18,947 20,228 
Disconnection fees 5,842 6,027 
Sale of land 116,564 100,000 
Penalties and fines 35,349 - 

Advertising billboards 1,689 - 

 620,358 4,853,151 

 
18. Investment revenue 

  

Interest revenue 
Interest from current account 

 
528,991 

 
928,757 

Interest on investment 128,484 1,127,607 

Interest from SARS 6,505 20,677 

 663,980 2,077,041 
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19. Property rates 

  

Rates 
  

Property rates 21,775,754 18,566,400 

Less: Income forgone (2,941,100) (5,748,324) 

 18,834,654 12,818,076 

 
Valuations 

  

Agriculture 56,000 56,000 
Business 82,525,000 82,525,000 
Place of worship 1,870,000 1,870,000 
Residential 76,033,000 76,033,000 
State trust land 115,590,000 115,590,000 
State owned properties 443,140,000 443,140,000 
Vacant land 12,652,000 12,652,500 
Protected area 11,000,000 11,000,000 
Specialised non-market properties 79,630,000 79,630,000 
Public service infrastructure 95,000 95,000 
Public benefit organisations 11,235,000 11,235,000 

Multiple use properties 5,600,000 5,600,000 

 839,426,000 839,426,500 
 

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every four years. The last general valuation came into effect on 1 July  2013. 
Interim valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual property values due to 
alterations and subdivisions. 
 

A fixed rate is applied: Agriculture: 
0.0028c in the Rand Business: 
0.0325 in the Rand 
Place of worship: 0.0189 in the Rand 
Residential: 0.0112 in the Rand State 
trust land: 0.0028 in the Rand 
State owned properties: 0.0346 in the Rand 
Vacant Land: 0.0167 in the Rand 
Protected area: Nil 
Specialised non-market properties: Nil Public 
service infrastructure: Nil 

 

The following rebate rates are applied: 
100% of market value of Ingonyama Trust Land 
100% of market value residential properties less than R80 000 100% 
of market value of worshipping properties 
First R80 000 on any residential properties 
40% of market value less exemption for owners who are eligable pensioners. 

48 20. Grant 

expenditure Other 

subsidies 

Grant expenditure realised 7,435,551 4,376,001 
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21. Government grants and subsidies 

  

Operating grants 
  

Equitable share 79,169,000 82,038,000 
Expanded Public Works Programme Grant 2,149,000 1,108,115 
Financial Management Grant 1,825,000 1,920,616 
Municipal Systems Improvement Grant - 930,000 
Cybercadet Grant 232,808 131,753 
Sports and Recreation Grant - - 
Library Grant 1,016,210 462,862 
Qedisimo Projects - - 
LGSETA 112,255 280,842 
Facility Grant 750,000 - 

E-Learning Grant 167,230 - 

 85,421,503 86,872,188 

 
Capital grants 
Electrification Grant 

 
 

18,000,639 

 
 

34,999,361 

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 21,795,000 22,188,001 

 39,795,639 57,187,362 

 125,217,142 144,059,550 

 
Equitable Share 

  

 

In terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members. 
 

In terms of the Division of Revenue Act an amount of R79 169 000 was gazetted to be received. An amount of R79 169 000 
was received. 
 

Small Town Rehabilitation Grant 

 
Balance unspent at beginning of year 

 
 

- 

 
 
466,266 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (466,266) 

 - - 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

Cyber Cadet Grant 
  

Balance unspent at beginning of year 88,655      50,408 
Current-year receipts           179,000      170,000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (232,808) (131,753) 

 34,847 88,655 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

Municipal Systems Improvement Grant 
  

Current-year receipts -       930,000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (930,000) 

 - - 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 
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21. Government grants and subsidies (continued) 

  

Finance Management Grant 
  

Balance unspent at beginning of year -     120,616 
Current-year receipts        1,825,000    1,800,000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,825,000) (1,920,616) 

 - - 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

E-Learning Grant 
  

Balance unspent at beginning of year 167,230 167,230 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (167,230) - 

 - 167,230 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

Sport & Recreation Grant 
  

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 1,122,219 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (1,122,219) 

 - - 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

Electrification Grant 
  

Balance unspent at beginning of year 640 - 
Current-year receipts      18,000,000   35,000,000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (18,000,640) (34,999,360) 

 - 640 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

Facility Grant 
  

Balance unspent at beginning of year 750,000 750,000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (750,000) - 

 - 750,000 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

Municipal Infrrastructure Grant 
  

Conditions met - transferred to revenue      21,795,000 22,188,000 

Other (21,795,000) (22,188,000) 

 - - 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

Provide explanations of conditions still to be met and other relevant information. 
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21. Government grants and subsidies (continued) 

  

EPWP Grant 
  

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 83,115 
Current-year receipts 2,149,000 1,025,000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2,149,000) (1,108,115) 

 - - 

 
Qedisimo Projects 

  

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1,447,676 1,447,676 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

Library Grant 
  

Balance unspent at beginning of year 460,294 370,156 
Current-year receipts 1,064,000 553,000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,016,211) (462,862) 

 508,083 460,294 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 
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22. Employee related costs 

  

Basic 25,323,873 22,432,703 
Bonus 1,951,258 2,376,819 
Medical aid - company contributions 1,404,730 1,157,261 
UIF 198,337 218,988 
SDL 387,198 336,039 
Leave pay provision charge 735,192 68,810 
Standby allowance 264,888 258,915 
Pension contributions 3,373,477 2,979,317 
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 5,031,011 5,001,781 
Overtime payments 459,120 596,161 
Long-service awards 250,102 288,212 
Acting allowances 457,810 1,035,956 
Housing benefits and allowances 190,831 309,666 
Industrial council 10,675 27,025 
Cellphone allowance 15,200 14,800 

Group life insurance 283,267 225,124 

 40,336,969 37,334,752 

 
Remuneration of Municipal Manager 

  

Annual Remuneration 421,170 739,412 
Car Allowance 116,494 158,440 
Housing Allowance 41,691 15,581 
Acting Allowance 190,420 404,780 

Other 5,345 - 

 775,120 1,318,213 

 
Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer 

  

Annual Remuneration 615,520 191,395 
Car Allowance 205,173 68,266 
Performance Bonuses - 172,747 

Other 7,274 - 

 827,967 432,408 

 
Remuneration of Director of Community Services 

  

Annual Remuneration 382,083 224,749 
Car Allowance 163,749 96,321 

Other 145,563 50,446 

 691,395 371,516 

 
Remuneration of Director of Technical Services 

  

Annual Remuneration 575,653 539,147 
Car Allowance 148,025 138,638 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 52,570 
Housing Allowance 98,683 - 

Other 40,805 - 

 863,166 730,355 



156 

 

 

 2017 
R 

2016 
R 

 
22. Employee related costs (continued) 

  

Remuneration of Director of Corporate Services 
  

Annual Remuneration 548,030 474,515 
Car Allowance 231,629 168,611 

Other 53,309 120,893 

 832,968 764,019 

 
23. Remuneration of councillors 

  

Executive Major 777,647 782,480 
Deputy Mayor 291,481 359,574 
MPAC Chairperson 305,825 317,685 
Speaker 461,606 359,574 
Councillors 5,506,737 5,060,750 

Executive Committee 701,365 1,015,908 

 8,044,661 7,895,971 

 
In-kind benefits 

  

 

The Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Speaker and Mayoral Committee Members are full-time. Each is provided with an office and 
secretarial support at the cost of the Council. 
 

The Mayor is entitled to stay at the mayoral residence owned by Council at no cost. 
 

The Mayor and the Deputy Mayor each have the use of separate Council owned vehicles for official duties. The 

Mayor has three full-time bodyguards . The Deputy Mayor and speaker have two full-time bodyguards. 

24. Depreciation and amortisation   

Property, plant and equipment 10,907,555 8,346,563 
Investment property 231,489 231,488 

Intangible assets 550,741 397,719 

 11,689,785 8,975,770 

 
25. Impairment of assets 

  

Impairments 
Property, plant and equipment 

 
141,675 

 
89,823 

During the physical verification of the assets, certain assets were identified to be in a 
poor condition and thus an impairment was recognised accordingly. 

  

 
26. Debt impairment 

  

Debt impairment 3,761,382 2,143,187 

Bad debts written off 476,182 3,436,936 

 4,237,564 5,580,123 

 
27. Bulk purchases 

  

Electricity 12,721,485 9,379,505 
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28. Contracted services 

  

Information Technology Services 1,651,036 2,708,090 

Security services 6,834,898 3,636,291 

 8,485,934 6,344,381 

 
29. General expenses 

  

Advertising 5,342,730 5,663,278 
Auditors remuneration 1,806,407 2,003,560 
Bank charges 81,638 85,618 
Cleaning 241,198 182,982 
Consulting and professional fees 11,210,231 8,581,294 
Consumables 1,348 41,815 
Commission 619,752 639,177 
Sport & recreation 3,533,933 3,836,848 
Entertainment 65,135 121,151 
Fines and penalties 219,260 112,979 
Indigent burial 361,493 227,100 
Community safety 935,660 994,999 
Plant hire - road maintenance 899,169 666,565 
Insurance 293,232 225,831 
Community development 4,955,841 3,266,155 
Bursaries 96,272 204,813 
Contracted services - repairs and maintenance 2,327,016 525,651 
Material - repairs and maintenance 1,106,659 2,402,357 
Packaging 323,607 303,714 
Social services - 385,116 
Fuel and oil 1,303,514 1,128,459 
Printing and stationery 474,535 397,833 
Library and information services 201,189 376,691 
Software expenses 278,156 235,252 
Staff welfare 74,432 103,661 
Subscriptions and membership fees 500,000 522,072 
Telephone and fax 1,380,020 1,159,691 
Training 466,570 765,728 
Water 527,285 272,284 
Sewerage and waste disposal 162,279 483,339 
Uniforms 692,815 237,802 
Travelling and accommodation 1,155,740 1,767,334 
Youth development 1,546,942 1,290,930 
Free basic electricity 616,756 889,259 
Local economic development 2,182,580 2,709,394 
Spatial planning 3,594 198,300 
Provincialisation 446,638 116,089 
Traffic unit 193,683 301,703 
Strategic planning 26,460 123,746 

Other expenses 6,964 305 

 46,660,733 43,550,875 

 
30. Auditors' remuneration 

  

Fees 1,806,407 2,003,560 
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31. Operating lease 

 
Lease rentals on operating lease 

 

 

 
3,766,842 

 

 

 
2,846,294 

 

Operating leases are in respect of leasing of printing machines from Capital Office. Refer to note 33 on additional lease 
commitment information. 
 

32. Cash generated from operations  

Surplus 14,555,666 48,091,211 
Adjustments for:   

Depreciation and amortisation 11,689,785 8,975,770 
Surplus or (loss) on disposal of assets (863,377) (459,903) 
Impairment deficit 141,675 89,823 
Debt impairment 4,237,564 5,580,123 
Movements in provisions 491,775 436,546 
Grant expenditure realised 7,435,550 4,376,000 
Prior period errors - 1,588,486 
Asset written-off 25,236 92,077 
Newly identified assets - (126,423) 
Changes in working capital:   

Consumer debtors (3,461,631) (4,489,059) 
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (555,605) (1,128,381) 
Prepayments (299,139) 1,229,763 
Payables from exchange transactions (2,084,543) 9,848,676 
VAT 6,442,769 (9,215,670) 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts (923,889) (1,873,647) 

 36,831,836 63,015,392 
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33. Commitments 

  

Authorised capital expenditure 
  

Already contracted for but not provided for 
  

 Electrification 24,497,532 35,176,677 

 Infrastructure assets 8,974,059 15,144,886 

 33,471,591 50,321,563 

 
Not yet contracted for and authorised by accounting officer 

  

 Electrification - 18,000,000 

 Infrastructure assets 1,158,500 - 

 1,158,500 18,000,000 

 
Total capital commitments 

  

Already contracted for but not provided for 33,471,591 50,321,563 

Not yet contracted for and authorised by accounting officer 1,158,500 18,000,000 

 34,630,091 68,321,563 

 
Authorised operational expenditure 

  

 

This committed expenditure relates to assets and will be financed by available grant funding, retained surpluses, existing 
cash resources, funds internally generated, etc. 
 

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 

 
Minimum lease payments due 

 

- within one year 1,867,681 1,058,159 

- in second to fifth year inclusive 3,398,338 7,149 

 5,266,019 1,065,308 

 
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the municipality for vehicles and computer equipment. Leases are 
negotiated for an average term of three years and rentals of vehicles and computer equipment with contingent rentals 
payable. 
 

34. Contingencies 
 

The following cases against the municipality are still pending and management consider them as contigent liability: 
 

Ulungeni Consulting Engineers v Nkandla Municipality. The municipality is the defendant in this Civil matter. The 
municipality is sued for R281 954,76. We have filed our plea, currently waiting for a replication. 
 

Shikani Trading cc v Nkandla Municipality. Summons for damages was issued against the municipality. Financial exposure in 
respect of claim against the municipality is the sum of R2 286 636,56 plus interest. Financial exposure in respect of legal fees 
inclusive of disbursements: approximately R50 000. 
 

Nkandla Municipality v B. Khanyile & others. Action instituted by Nkandla Municipality to interdict, restrain, demarcating 
and/or carrying out any building and construction activity on any portion of land which falls within the Municipal boundaries 
and/or to vacate the illegal occupiers. Financial exposure in respect of respondent's legal costs is R82 684,50. 
 

35. Related parties 
 ̀
 

Relationships 
Management remuneration Refer to employee related costs note 22 
Council remuneration Refer to remuneration of councillors note 23 
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36. Prior period errors 
 

1. Through detailed review and reconciliation of the trade payables ledger balances, suppliers module and confirmation with 
suppliers; the municipality discovered that there were numerous misstatements on the trade payables ledger balances.  
Such misstatements are mainly attributable to duplicate transactions and other invoices that were captured incorrectly on the 
accounting system. Consequently the trade and other payables balances, expenses, work-in-progress and VAT were 
overstated as at 30 June 2016. 

 

2. Through detailed review of the municipal grants records and direct confirmation with the transferring department; the 
municipality discovered that Small Town and Sport & Recreation projects were completed in the prior years. The projects 
close out reports and confirmation with the respective transferring departments clearly indicated that the projects were 
completed and the funds were fully utilised. Therefore it is apparent that the conditional grant liability and accumulated 
surplus was overstated in the prior years. 

 
The effect of the errors on the prior year balances is reflected below: 

 
Statement of financial position 

 

VAT   (196,968) 
Property, plant and equipment   (448,986) 
Payables from exchange transactions   2,257,620 
Unspent grants   1,588,485 

Opening Accumulated Surplus or Deficit   (3,200,151) 

 

 
VAT 

Previously 
reported 
9,666,057 

Adjustment 
 
(196,968) 

Restated 
Balance 
9,469,089 

Property Plant and Equipment 323,139,682 (448,986) 322,690,696 
Payables from exchange transactions (32,213,541) 2,257,620 (29,955,921) 
Unspent Grants (4,502,980) 1,588,485 (2,914,495) 

Accumulated Surplus (309,749,456) (3,200,151) (312,949,607) 

 (13,660,238) - (13,660,238) 

 
Statement of Financial Performance - Adjustments 
Bulk purchase 

  
 

- 

 
 

(275,949) 
Contracted service  -     (46,000) 
General expenses  - (1,035,248) 
Repairs and maintenance  - (247,293) 
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37. Comparative figures 
 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified. The 

effects of the reclassification are as follows: Statement 

of financial performance - extract 

Comparative figures previously reported 

Reclassification  

After 
reclassification 

Repairs and maintenance (2,928,008) 2,928,008 - 
General expenses (41,658,115) (2,928,008) (44,586,123) 

49 Total (44,586,123) -
 (44,586,123) 

 

 

38. Risk management 

Financial risk management 

Liquidity risk 

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages 
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 
 

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored. 
 

The table below analyses the municipality’s financial liabilities balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances 
as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

 
Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 

 
27,871,383 

 
29,955,921 

Unspent conditional grants 1,990,606 2,914,495 

Provision for long service award 63,897 30,832 

 29,925,886 32,901,248 

 
Credit risk 

  

 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The 
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter- 
party. 
 

Consumer debtors comprise of a large number of ratepayers dispersed across different sectors and geographical areas. 
Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. Credit exposure is managed by application of 
the municipality's policies regarding credit control and debt collection. The municipality has made a provision for doubtful 
debts in accordance to its policies. The carrying amount of financial assets is the maximum exposure to credit risk in relation 
to these assets. 
 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 
 ̀
    

Financial instrument                                       2017 2016 
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 5,209,015 5,985,848 
Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions 3,987,910 3,432,305 
Cash and cash equivalents/bank balances 809,935 4,481,813 
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39. Going concern 
 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
 

40. Events after the reporting date 
 

There were no events after the reporting date. 
 

41. Unauthorised expenditure 

 

Opening Balance 3,308,672 - 
Current year movement - actual expenditure exceeds budget 20,822,199 3,308,672 

Uncashed Conditional Grants 1,180,671 - 

25,311,542 3,308,672 

 
Unauthorised expenditure was investigated and council to authorise it in the next adjustment process. 

 

42. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
 

Opening Balance 407,670 328,119 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year not condoned 69,639 53,070 

Interest charged on Eskom Account - Current Year (not condoned) 31,530 26,481 

508,839 407,670 

 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is as a result of penalties/late payments of interest charged by SARS, Telkom and 
Eskom. 
 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure was investigated and council to certify that the figure is irrecoverable and is to be written- 
off in the next financial year. 
 

43. Irregular expenditure  

Opening balance 60,647,202 45,969,730 

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 15,480,874 14,677,472 

 76,128,076 60,647,202 

 
Irregular expenditure relates to procurement of goods and services without following proper supply chain management 
processes. Irregular expenditure has been submitted to council and the council referred it to the MPAC for investigation. 
 

44. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act 

Contributions to organised local government 

Current year subscription / fee 

 
 
 

500,000                             

 
 
 

502,576 

Amount paid - current year - (502,576) 

 500,000 - 

 
Audit fees 

  

Opening balance 95,994 17,942 
Current year subscription / fee        2,222,984  2,003,560 

Amount paid - current year (2,276,538) (1,925,508) 

 42,440 95,994 
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44. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued) 

  

PAYE and UIF 
  

Opening balance    (82,629) 46,052 
Current year subscription / fee     6,864,935     6,492,786 

Amount paid - current year (5,651,692) (6,621,467) 

 1,130,614 (82,629) 

 
Pension and Medical Aid Deductions 

  

Current year subscription / fee       7,889,169     7,057,897 

Amount paid - current year (7,422,989) (7,057,897) 

 466,180 - 

 
VAT 

  

VAT receivable 3,026,320 9,469,089 

 
Nkandla Municipality accounts for VAT on cash basis. 

  

All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year. 
  

Councilors’ arrear consumer accounts 
  

 

There were no Councillors who had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2017: 
 

50 Supply chain management regulations 
 

In terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from the Supply Chain 
Management Policy needs to be approved/condoned by the Municipal Manager and noted by Council. The expenses 
incurred as listed hereunder have been condoned. 

 
Incident  

Impractical 1,108,420 2,899,290 

Sole supplier 327,260 577,944 

 1,435,680 3,477,234 

 
45. Deviation from supply chain management regulations 

  

 

Paragraph 12(1)(d)(i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management 
policy must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process. 
 

Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in 
certain circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the 
and includes a note to the annual financial statements. 
 

Various items were procured during the financial year under review and the process followed in procuring those goods 
deviated from the provisions of paragraph 12(1)(d)(i) as stated above. The reasons for these deviations were documented 
and reported to the council who considered them and subsequently approved the deviation from the normal supply chain 
management regulations. The deviations for 2017 amounted to - R1 435 679.96 (2016 - R3 477 234). 
 

46. Surplus / (Loss) on disposal of asset 

 
Surplus / (Loss) on disposal of assets 863,377 459,903 
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47. Electricity Distribution Losses 

 
Electricity distribution loss in rand value 2,493,984 4,231,510 

 

The electricity losses in units for 2017 - 5 356 520 (Kwh). This constituted a 36.6% loss which is above the norm of 6%-12% 
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Analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2017 Cost/Revaluation Accumulated depreciation 
 

Opening Additions Disposals Transfers Revaluations Assets written-off Closing Opening Newly Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Closing Carrying 

Balance      Balance Balance identified    Balance value 
        assets      

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

 
 

Land and buildings  

Land (Separate for AFS purposes) 102,116,940 - (310,500) - - - 101,806,440 - - - - - - 101,806,440 

Landfill Sites (Separate for AFS 
pursoses) 

2,892,562 - - - - - 2,892,562 (1,393,764) - - (214,114) - (1,607,878) 1,284,684 

Quarries (Separate for AFS purposes) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Buildings (Separate for AFS purposes) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

105,009,502 - (310,500) - - - 104,699,002 (1,393,764) - - (214,114) - (1,607,878) 103,091,124 
 

Infrastructure 

 
Roads, Pavements & Bridges - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Storm water - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Generation - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Transmission & Reticulation - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Street lighting - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Dams & Reservoirs - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Water purification - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Reticulation - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Reticulation - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Sewerage purification - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Transportation (Airports, Car Parks, 
Bus Terminals and Taxi Ranks) 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Housing - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Waste Management - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Gas - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Other (fibre optic, WIFI infrastructur) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Other 1 167,765,111 - - 42,341,085 - - 210,106,196 (28,977,964) - - (8,691,298) (34,525) (37,703,787) 172,402,409 

 
167,765,111 - - 42,341,085 - - 210,106,196 (28,977,964) - - (8,691,298) (34,525) (37,703,787) 172,402,409 

Community Assets         

 
Parks & gardens - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Sportsfields and stadium - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Swimming pools - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Community halls - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Libraries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Recreational facilities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Clinics - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Museums & art galleries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Other - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Social rental housing - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Cemeteries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Fire, safety & emergency - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Security and policing - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Buses - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
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Opening Additions Disposals Transfers Revaluations Assets written-off Closing Opening Newly Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Closing Carrying 
Balance      Balance Balance identified    Balance value 

        assets      

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

 

 
Heritage assets 

 
Buildings - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Other - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

Specialised vehicles 

 
Refuse - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Fire - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Conservancy - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Ambulances - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Buses - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Other assets 
 

General vehicles 2,396,666 - (5,558) - - - 2,391,108 (1,023,409) - - (307,460) (2,250) (1,333,119) 1,057,989 
Plant & equipment 2,518,227 1,005,592 - - - (723) 3,523,096 (690,557) - - (534,048) (52,413) (1,277,018) 2,246,078 
Computer Equipment 2,410,506 315,952 (18,567) - - (11,994) 2,695,897 (1,369,762) - - (370,700) (7,973) (1,748,435) 947,462 

Computer Software (part of computer 
equipment) 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Furniture & Fittings 2,665,456 100,060 - - - (12,511) 2,753,005 (1,232,500) - - (316,403) (44,514) (1,593,417) 1,159,588 
Office Equipment - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Office Equipment - Leased - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Abattoirs - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Markets - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Airports - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Security measures - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Civic land and buildings  -  - - - - -  -  - - -  - -  -  - 
Other buildings 13,065,690 700,814 - - - - 13,766,504 (2,393,483) - - (473,533) - (2,867,016) 10,899,488 

Other land - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Bins and Containers  -  - -  - - -  - - - - - - -  - 
Work in progress 63,940,974 38,529,667 - (49,776,635) - - 52,694,006 - - - - - - 52,694,006 
Other  -  - -  - - - - - - - - - - - 
Other Assets - Leased - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Surplus Assets - (Investment or 
Inventory) 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Housing development - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Other - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

86,997,519 40,652,085 (24,125)    (49,776,635) - (25,228) 77,823,616 (6,709,711) - - (2,002,144) (107,150) (8,819,005) 69,004,611 
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Opening Additions Disposals Transfers Revaluations Assets written-off Closing Opening Newly Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Closing Carrying 
Balance      Balance Balance identified    Balance value 

        assets      

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

 
 
 

Total property plant and equipment  

Land and buildings 105,009,502 - (310,500) - - - 104,699,002 (1,393,764) - - (214,114) - (1,607,878) 103,091,124 
Infrastructure 167,765,111 - - 42,341,085 - - 210,106,196 (28,977,964) - - (8,691,298) (34,525) (37,703,787) 172,402,409 

Community Assets 
Heritage assets 
Specialised vehicles 

- 
- 
- 

- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 

- 
- 
- 

- - - 
- - - 
- - - 

- - 
- - 
- - 

- 
- 
- 

Other assets 86,997,519 40,652,085 (24,125) (49,776,635) - (25,228) 77,823,616 (6,709,711) - - (2,002,144) (107,150) (8,819,005) 69,004,611 

 
359,772,132 40,652,085 (334,625) (7,435,550) - (25,228) 392,628,814 (37,081,439) - - (10,907,556) (141,675) (48,130,670) 344,498,144 

 

Agricultural/Biological assets 
           

 

Agricultural - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Biological assets - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

Intangible assets 

 
Computers - software & programming 1,512,321 1,052,632 - - - - 2,564,953 (959,161) - - (550,741) - (1,509,902) 1,055,051 
Other  -  - - - - -  -  - - -  - -  -  - 

 

1,512,321 1,052,632 - - - - 2,564,953 (959,161) - - (550,741) - (1,509,902) 1,055,051 
 

Investment properties 

 
Investment property 6,955,451 - - - - - 6,955,451 (1,522,944) - - (231,489) - (1,754,433) 5,201,018 

 

6,955,451 - - - - - 6,955,451 (1,522,944) - - (231,489) - (1,754,433) 5,201,018 
 

Total 

 
Land and buildings 105,009,502 - (310,500) - - - 104,699,002 (1,393,764) - - (214,114) - (1,607,878)    103,091,124 
Infrastructure 167,765,111 - - 42,341,085 - - 210,106,196 (28,977,964) - - (8,691,298) (34,525)     (37,703,787)    172,402,409 
Community Assets - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Heritage assets - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Specialised vehicles  -  -  - - -  -  -  - - -  -  -  -  - 
Other assets 86,997,519 40,652,085 (24,125)    (49,776,635) - (25,228) 77,823,616 (6,709,711) - - (2,002,144) (107,150) (8,819,005) 69,004,611 
Agricultural/Biological assets  -  - - - - -  -  - - -  - -  -  - 
Intangible assets 1,512,321 1,052,632 - - - - 2,564,953 (959,161) - - (550,741) - (1,509,902) 1,055,051 
Investment properties 6,955,451 - - - - - 6,955,451 (1,522,944) - - (231,489) - (1,754,433) 5,201,018 

 

368,239,904 41,704,717 (334,625) (7,435,550) - (25,228)    402,149,218 (39,563,544) - - (11,689,786) (141,675)     (51,395,005)    350,754,213 
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Opening Additions Disposals Transfers Revaluations Other changes, Closing Opening Disposals Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Closing Carrying 

Balance     movements Balance Balance     Balance value 

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

 
 

Land and buildings  

Land (Separate for AFS purposes) 114,782,440 - (886,000) - - - 113,896,440 - - - - - - 113,896,440 

Landfill Sites (Separate for AFS 
pursoses) 

2,892,562 - - - - - 2,892,562 (965,536) - - (192,703) - (1,158,239) 1,734,323 

Quarries (Separate for AFS purposes) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Buildings (Separate for AFS purposes) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

117,675,002 - (886,000) - - - 116,789,002 (965,536) - - (192,703) - (1,158,239) 115,630,763 
 

Infrastructure 

 
Roads, Pavements & Bridges - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Storm water - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Generation - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Transmission & Reticulation - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Street lighting - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Dams & Reservoirs - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Water purification - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Reticulation - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Reticulation - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Sewerage purification - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Transportation (Airports, Car Parks, 
Bus Terminals and Taxi Ranks) 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Housing - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Waste Management - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Gas - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Other (fibre optic, WIFI infrastructur) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Other 1 70,529,956 130,500 - 4,014,465 - - 74,674,921 (9,877,768) - - (2,962,067) (1,674,641) (14,514,476) 60,160,445 

 
70,529,956 130,500 - 4,014,465 - - 74,674,921 (9,877,768) - - (2,962,067) (1,674,641) (14,514,476) 60,160,445 

Community Assets          

 
Parks & gardens - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Sportsfields and stadium - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Swimming pools - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Community halls - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Libraries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Recreational facilities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Clinics - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Museums & art galleries  -  - -  - - -  -  - - -  -  -  -  - 
Other 30,804,035 3,252,150 - 3,013,246 - - 37,069,431 (5,420,672) - - (1,194,442) (93,443) (6,708,557) 30,360,874 

Social rental housing - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Cemeteries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Fire, safety & emergency - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Security and policing - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Buses - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

30,804,035 3,252,150 - 3,013,246 - - 37,069,431 (5,420,672) - - (1,194,442) (93,443) (6,708,557) 30,360,874 
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Opening Additions Disposals Transfers Revaluations Other changes, Closing Opening Disposals Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Closing Carrying 
Balance     movements Balance Balance     Balance value 

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

 

 
Heritage assets 

 
Buildings - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Other - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

Specialised vehicles 

 
Refuse - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Fire - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Conservancy - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Ambulances - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Buses - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Other assets 
 

General vehicles 1,605,505 8,148 - - - - 1,613,653 (533,772) - - (237,531) - (771,303) 842,350 
Plant & equipment 1,352,852 278,311 (259,784) - - - 1,371,379 (520,402) 173,600 - (48,512) - (395,314) 976,065 
Computer Equipment 2,195,341 1,084,978 (922,267) - - - 2,358,052 (1,264,358) 800,425 - (541,929) (5,402) (1,011,264) 1,346,788 

Computer Software (part of computer 
equipment) 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Furniture & Fittings 2,403,487 540,601 (515,930) - - - 2,428,158 (1,065,379) 281,327 - (180,581) (21,013) (985,646) 1,442,512 
Office Equipment 171,486 55,350 (76,411) - - - 150,425 
Office Equipment - Leased - - - - - - - 
Abattoirs - - - - - - - 
Markets - - - - - - - 
Airports - - - - - - - 
Security measures - - - - - - - 
Civic land and buildings - - - - - - - 
Other buildings 5,175,984 - - 4,697,050 - - 9,873,034 (1,734,651) - - (278,831) - (2,013,482) 7,859,552 
Other land - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Bins and Containers  -  - -  - - -  - - - - - - -  - 
Work in progress 41,253,709 38,285,810 - (19,937,920) - - 59,601,599 - - - - - - 59,601,599 
Other  -  - -  - - - - - - - - - - - 
Other Assets - Leased - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Surplus Assets - (Investment or 
Inventory) 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Housing development - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Other - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

54,158,364 40,253,198 (1,774,392)    (15,240,870) - - 77,396,300 (5,190,164) 1,317,060 - (1,308,009) (63,644) (5,244,757) 72,151,543 
 

(71,602) 61,708 - (20,625) (37,229) (67,748) 82,677 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
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Opening Additions Disposals Transfers Revaluations Other changes, Closing Opening Disposals Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Closing Carrying 
Balance     movements Balance Balance     Balance value 

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

 
 
 

Total property plant and equipment  

Land and buildings 117,675,002 - (886,000) - - - 116,789,002 (965,536) - - (192,703) - (1,158,239) 115,630,763 

Infrastructure 70,529,956 130,500 - 4,014,465 - - 74,674,921 (9,877,768) - - (2,962,067) (1,674,641) (14,514,476) 60,160,445 
Community Assets 30,804,035 3,252,150 - 3,013,246 - - 37,069,431 (5,420,672) - - (1,194,442) (93,443) (6,708,557) 30,360,874 

Heritage assets 
Specialised vehicles 

- 
- 

- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 

- 
- 

- - - 
- - - 

- - 
- - 

- 
- 

Other assets 54,158,364 40,253,198 (1,774,392) (15,240,870) - - 77,396,300 (5,190,164) 1,317,060 - (1,308,009) (63,644) (5,244,757) 72,151,543 

 
273,167,357 43,635,848 (2,660,392) (8,213,159) - - 305,929,654 (21,454,140) 1,317,060 - (5,657,221) (1,831,728) (27,626,029) 278,303,625 

 

Agricultural/Biological assets 
           

 

Agricultural - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 - 
Biological assets - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 - 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - -

 - 
 

Intangible assets 

 
Computers - software & programming 937,589 717,064 - - - - 1,654,653 (433,002) - - (225,945) -
 (658,947) 995,706 Other  -  - - - - -  -  - - -
  - -  -  - 

937,589 717,064 - - - - 1,654,653 
 
Investment properties 

(433,002) - - (225,945) - (658,947) 995,706 

 

Investment property 6,955,451 - - - - - 6,955,451 

 

(1,059,729) 

 

- - (222,861) 

 

- (1,282,590) 

 

5,672,861 

6,955,451 - - - - - 6,955,451 (1,059,729) - - (222,861) - (1,282,590) 5,672,861 

Total 
      

Land and buildings 117,675,002 - (886,000) - - - 116,789,002 (965,536) - - (192,703) - (1,158,239) 115,630,763 
Infrastructure 70,529,956 130,500 - 4,014,465 - - 74,674,921 (9,877,768) - - (2,962,067) (1,674,641) (14,514,476) 60,160,445 
Community Assets 30,804,035 3,252,150 - 3,013,246 - - 37,069,431 (5,420,672) - - (1,194,442) (93,443) (6,708,557) 30,360,874 

Heritage assets 
Specialised vehicles 

- 
- 

- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 

- 
- 

- - - 
- - - 

- - 
- - 

- 
- 

Other assets 54,158,364 40,253,198 (1,774,392) (15,240,870) - - 77,396,300 (5,190,164) 1,317,060 - (1,308,009) (63,644) (5,244,757) 72,151,543 
Agricultural/Biological assets - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Intangible assets 937,589 717,064 - - - - 1,654,653 (433,002) - - (225,945) - (658,947) 995,706 

Investment properties 6,955,451 - - - - - 6,955,451 (1,059,729) - - (222,861) - (1,282,590) 5,672,861 

281,060,397 44,352,912 (2,660,392) (8,213,159) - - 314,539,758 (22,946,871) 1,317,060 - (6,106,027) (1,831,728) (29,567,566) 284,972,192 
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Nkandla Municipality 
(Registration number KZN 286) 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 

Auditor's Report___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report of the auditor-general to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature and the council on Nkandla Municipality 

1.1 REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1.1.1 Opinion 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Nkandla Municipality set out on pages … to …, which comprise the 

statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes 

in net assets, cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget information with actual information for 

the year then ended 30 June 2017, as well as the notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies.  

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Nkandla 

Municipality as at 30 June 2017, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 

with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP)  and the 

requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and the 

Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2016 (Act No. 3 of 2016) (DoRA).  

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

section of this report.  

4. I am independent of the municipality in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 

Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in 

South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA 

code. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

 

1.1.2 Emphasis of matters  

6. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Restatement of corresponding figures  

7. As disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2016 have been restated as 

a result of an error in the financial statements of the municipality at, and for the year ended, 30 June 2017. 

Material losses – electricity 
8. As disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements, material electricity losses to the amount of R 2,49 million (2015-

2016: R 4,23 million) were incurred which represents 37% (2015-2016: 43%) of total electricity purchased. Technical 

losses were due to distribution losses while non-technical losses were mainly due to illegal connections. 

1.1.3 Other matters  

9. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
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Unaudited disclosure notes 

10. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA the municipality is required to disclose particulars of non-compliance with 

the MFMA in the financial statements. This disclosure requirement did not form part of the audit of the financial 

statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon. 

Unaudited supplementary schedules 

11. The supplementary information set out on pages XX to XX does not form part of the financial statements and is 

presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion 

thereon. 

1.1.4 Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements 

12. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA, DoRA and for such internal control as 

the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

13. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the Nkandla Municipality’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the intention is to liquidate the municipality or cease operations, or there is 

no realistic alternative but to do so. 

1.1.5 Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

14. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

15. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this 

auditor’s report. 

1.2 REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT  

1.2.1 Introduction and scope  

16. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued 

in terms thereof I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information against 

predetermined objectives for selected development priorities presented in the annual performance report. I 

performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

17. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance 

planning documents of the municipality. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the 

performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or 

assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be 

included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.  
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18. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria 

developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the 

following selected development priority presented in the annual performance report of the municipality for the year 

ended 30 June 2017: 

Development priorities Pages in the annual 
performance report 

Development priority 7 – Technical Services x – x 

 
19. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was consistent with the 

approved performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and 

related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information 

to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete. 

20. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 

technical services development priority. 

1.2.2 Other matters  

21. I draw attention to the matters below.  

 

Achievement of planned targets 

22. The annual performance report on pages x to x includes information on the achievement of planned targets for the 

year and explanations provided for the under achievement of a number of targets.  

Adjustment of material misstatements 

23. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These material 

misstatements were on the reported performance information of the technical services development priority. As 

management subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and 

reliability of the reported performance information.  

1.3 REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION 

1.3.1 Introduction and scope  

24. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof I have a responsibility to report material 

findings on the compliance of the municipality with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to 

identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.  

25. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislations are as follows:  

Annual financial statements 
 
26. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the 

requirements of section 122 of the MFMA. Material misstatements of disclosure items identified by the auditors in 

the submitted financial statement were subsequently corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an 

unqualified audit opinion. 
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Expenditure management 
 
27. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent unauthorised expenditure amounting to  

R 22 million, as disclosed in note 41 to the annual financial statements, in contravention of section 62(1)(d) of the 

MFMA. The majority of the unauthorised expenditure was caused by overspending of the approved budget. 

28. Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R101 169, as disclosed in 

note 42 to the annual financial statements, in contravention of section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The majority of the 

disclosed fruitless and wasteful expenditure was caused by interest and penalties charged by suppliers due to late 

payment of invoices. 

29. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to  

R 15,48 million as disclosed in note 43 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 62(1)(d) of the 

MFMA. The majority of the irregular expenditure was caused by procurement of goods and services without following 

proper supply chain management processes. 

1.4 OTHER INFORMATION  

30. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the annual report which includes the audit committee’s report. The other information does not include 

the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected development priorities presented in the annual 

performance report that have been specifically reported in the auditor’s report.  

31. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with 

legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

32. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 

other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected development priorities 

presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated.  

33. The other information I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report is the mayors foreword and the accounting 

officer’s report, and the audit committee report is expected to be made available to me after 30 November 2017. 

34. If, based on the work I have performed on the other information that I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s 

report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. 

35. When I do receive and read the audit committee report, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I 

am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information be 

corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an 

amended report as appropriate; however, if it is corrected this will not be necessary. 

1.5 INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES  

36. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and 

compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon.  
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37. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for 

opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in 

this report. 

Leadership  

38. Notwithstanding the accounting officer’s oversight responsibility and monitoring, there were still inadequacies that 

resulted in non-compliance with legislation relating to expenditure management and annual financial statements. 

Financial and performance management  

39. Systems and controls were not adequately designed in a manner to detect, prevent and address risks that impact on 

financial, performance and compliance reporting. In this regard, senior management did not ensure that regular, 

accurate and complete financial and performance reports were prepared, which were supported and evidenced by 

reliable information. This resulted in material misstatements in the annual financial statements and the annual 

performance report. 

1.6 OTHER REPORTS  

40. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an impact on the 

matters reported in the municipality’s financial statements, reported performance information, compliance with 

applicable legislation and other related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial 

statements or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation. 

41. An independent firm is investigating allegations of possible maladministration, fraud and corruption at the request of 

the municipality, which covers the period 2009 to 2015. The investigation was still in progress at the time of this 

report.  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pietermaritzburg 
30 November 2017 
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2 ANNEXURE – AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT  

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance 

information for selected development priorities and on the municipality’s compliance with respect to the selected 

subject matters. 

2.1.1 Financial statements 

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the auditor’s report, I also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 

is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control  

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

municipality’s internal control 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the accounting officer. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officers’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Nkandla Municipality’s ability 

to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my 

auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the 

information available to me at the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a 

municipality to cease continuing as a going concern  

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation  

2.1.2 Communication with those charged with governance 

3. I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.  

4. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a 

bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. 
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 2016/2017 FINANCIAL YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN 

 Name of Municipality:  Nkandla Municipality 

 Type of Opinion: Unqualified Audit Opinion 

 Type of Opinion Previous Year: Unqualified Audit Opinion 

 Adequacy of Audit Response: 

Nature of Audit 
Query 

 
Audit Query 

Response from Municipality 
Action to resolve query 

Target Date  Person 
Responsible 

Progress  Portfolio of 
evidence  

Restatement of 
corresponding 
figures 

As disclosed in note 36 to the 

financial statements, the 

corresponding figures for 30 June 

2016 have been restated as a 

result of an error discovered in the 

financial statements of the Nkandla 

Municipality at, and for the year 

ended, 30 June 2017. 

The Municipality will perform 
the reconciliation on a regular 
basis. The reconciliations will 
be monitored and reviewed by 
senior management to ensure 
differences are investigated 
and resolved in a timely 
manner. 

30 March 2018 Chief Finance 
Officer 

The reconciliations (Bank, 
Creditors, Payroll, Debtors 
and Petty Cash) have been 
performed as at 30th Sept 
2017. CFO is currently in an 
agreement with finance staff 
to make sure that as from the 
mid-year reconciliations are 
done on monthly basis.  

Reconciliation
s on file. 

Material 

electricity losses 

As disclosed in note 47 to the 

financial statements, material 

electricity losses to the amount of 

R2.49 million (2015-2016:R4.23) 

were incurred which represents 

37% (2015-2016:43%) of the total 

electricity purchased were incurred 

as a result of technical and non-

technical distribution losses. 

The electricity infrastructure 
upgrade will be implemented. 
Investigations to detect and 
disconnect illegal users of 
electricity will be implemented.  

30 March 2018 Chief Finance 
Officer 

The installing of the meters in 
the Municipal buildings and 
facilities to determine 
consumption has been 
completed. Investigations on 
illegal connections completed 
and illegal users have been 
disconnected. Reconciliation 
for distribution losses has 
been prepared as at the end 
of April to monitor if there are 
improvements. The current 
situation shows that there is 
improvement 

Disconnection 
list. Monthly 
reconciliation 
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Non Compliance 

(Predetermined 

objectives) 

Adjustments of material 

misstatements: Material 

misstatements in Annual 

performance report submitted for 

auditing were identified on the 

performance information submitted 

by technical service development 

priorities. Management 

subsequently corrected the 

misstatements 

The report will be reviewed by 
the internal auditor and audit 
committee before the final 
submission. 

30 March 2018 PMS The reports that form the 
annual report are submitted 
on quarterly basis, reviewed 
by PMS office and POE’s are 
currently reviewed by internal 
auditor 

Quarterly and 
annual 
performance 
report 

Non 

Compliance 

(Expenditure 

management) 

Reasonable steps were not taken 

to prevent irregular expenditure of 

the total amount of 

R15 217 127.00, Unauthorised 

expenditure of R22 002 870.00 and 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

of R 101 169.00 as required by 

section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA. 

 All irregular expenditure will 

be disclosed to council to 

allow further investigations 

 Investigations will be 

conducted by council 

30 June 2018 Chief Finance 
Officer 

Preventative measures have 
been put in place such as 
implementation of the 
contract management, to 
ensure irregular expenditure 
is minimised. Contract 
management register is 
updated on regular bases. 
Currently there employee 
assigned as contract 
management officer 

Compiled list 
of irregular 
expenditure. 

Money owed by the Municipality 

was not always paid within 30 days 

as required by section 65(2)(e) of 

the MFMA 

The Municipality has 
developed monthly payment 
checklist to make sure that all 
payments are made within 30 
days. 

30 March 2018 Chief Finance 
Officer 

The invoices are stamped on 
receipt and effort is made to 
pay them within 30 days 
provided that the cash flow 
permits. Where necessary 
arrangements are made to 
settle invoices with the 
agreed period. The 
municipality is also engaged 
on a rigorous revenue 
collection campaign to make 
sure that enough revenue is 
collected to allow enough 
cash on the municipal bank 
account to be able to pay 
creditors within 30 days. 
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Non 

Compliance 

(Procurement 

and contract 

management) 

During the audit of procurement 

and contract management it was 

noted that awards were made to 

providers who were in the service 

of other state institutions in 

contravention of MFMA 112(j) and 

SCM regulation 44. The 

municipality has not followed the 

supply chain management policy by 

accepting quotations from suppliers 

who did not declare their interest. 

The investigations will be 
conducted .Declarations forms 
will be completed by all 
employees and MBD4 forms 
will be completed by service 
providers. Service providers 
where the directors are in a 
service of a state will be 
remove from data base 

30 March 2018 Chief Finance 
Officer 

The investigations were done 
and the municipality has 
removed all suppliers in 
database that are employed 
by the state. The central 
database is utilised for this 
purpose. 

Completed 
declaration 
forms 

SLA /Agreement not signed All contracts will be developed 
in accordance with the general 
conditions of 
contracts(GCC),will be 
monitored by an appointed 
contract management officer 

The Municipality has 
appointed a contract 
management officer who will 
make sure that all contracts 
are prepared in line with 
GCC and are in order 

 

Assessment of the service provider 

not adequate 

 

SLA /Agreement not prepared in 

accordance with the general 

conditions of contracts(GCC) 

 

 SMT Dept. long outstanding :It was 

noted that the SMT debt amounting 

to R 718 000.00 has been 

outstanding since  prior to 2008 .it 

was further noted that the 

municipality cannot  recover the 

amount due to  the entity being 

liquidated and that initial amount 

was due to an over payment that 

could not be recovered, 

The item to write off will be 
made to council and submit 
recommendations to National 
treasury and auditor general. 

30 March 2018 CFO The information is currently 
being collected to prepare an 
item to council 

Council 
resolution, 
National 
treasury 
acknowledgem
ent and 
response 

 No approved salary scale: It was 

determined that there are no salary 

scales in place to determine 

salaries of employees in the 

Municipality and this could lead to 

inaccurate and overpayment of 

salaries and also resulting in the 

Job evaluation will be done 
there after the job descriptions 
will be graded and categorised 
in to Task grade scales. 

30 March 2018 Director 
corporate 

The process of job evaluation 
is in progress up until 
February 2018 thereafter 
salary scales will commence 
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resources of the municipality not 

been used effectively, efficiently 

and economically.  

Leadership The accounting officer did not 

exercise adequate oversight over 

financial reporting and compliance 

as well as internal control as 

material misstatements in the 

annual financial statements were 

identified and subsequently 

corrected, which resulted in 

municipality receiving an 

unqualified audit opinion. 

 The Accounting Officer will 

implement a plan to ensure 

no recurrence of material 

corrections to the financial 

statements as a result of 

occurrence of material 

misstatements of financial 

statements. 

 Develop GRAP Compliant 

checklist 

30 March 2018 Municipal 
Manager 

GRAP Compliant checklist 
has been developed and 
being implemented. 
Moreover, the Internal 
Auditor and the Audit 
Committee will be given 
sufficient time to review and 
ensure that AFS are free of 
material misstatements. 

Financial 
statements at 
30 June 2016. 

Financial and 

performance 

management 

Adequate controls were not in place 

in ensuring that records are 

properly safeguard and monthly 

reconciliations and reporting were 

credible and reliable as material 

misstatements were identified in the 

annual financial statements and 

annual report, which were 

subsequently corrected. 

The Municipality to establish 
records management system 
and make sure that all records 
are accessibly when they are 
needed. 

30 March 2018 Municipal 
Manager 

The filing plan has been 
developed .The audit 
steering committee is 
assisting the departments to 
update records 

Completeness 
of records. 

 

 
 
 
 
 


